
Lori A. ShiUBCttc

Comoinlooer

LoH A. Weaver

Deputy Conmiasiooer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-27!-9260 1-800-852-3345 ExL 9200

Fax: 603-271-4912 TDDAccexx: 1-800-735-2964 vmw.dhhs.nh.gov

April 27. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
amend existing contracts with the Contractors listed below for school-related services for
vulnerable New Hampshire refugees, by increasing the total price limitation by $205,000 from
$600,000 to $805,000 with no change to the contract completion dates of September 29, 2023,
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Furtds.

The original contracts were approved by Govemor and Council on March 21, 2018, Item
#8, amended on September 18, 2019, Item #7, and most recently amended on June 16, 2021,
Item #10.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Ascentria

Community
Services, Inc.

222201 Statewide $300,000 $102,500 $402,500

International

Institute of

New England,
Inc.

177551 Statewide $300,000 $102,500 $402,500

Total: $600,000 $205,000 $805,000

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2022, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide assistance to refugee students grades pre-k
through graduation statewide, who are within five (5) years of arrival to the United States in order
that they may achieve improved academic performance and social adjustments. Additionally, the

Tht Deporlment of Health and Human Services'Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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Contractor will now support Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) eligible clients from
Afghanistan.

Approximately 200 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023.

The Contractors provide culturally competent assistance, in collaboration with agencies
who provide health and mental health care services, child care, and social services, in order to
strengthen the ability of refugee children to achieve success in New Hampshire school systems.
Direct assistance Is provided to all newly arrived students and their parents In areas that include:

•  School enrollment and orientation for students and their parents;

•  Linguistically appropriate tutoring;

• Academic support;

•  Interpretation services;

•  Social integration and leadership development support; and

•  Referrals and guidance for pre-kindergarten supports and services.

The Department will monitor performance of the contractors through semi-annual progress
reports and during in-person meetings to review the employability plans, case notes, and progress
reports.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugee children
and their parents may lack support necessary to succeed in school.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.566, FAIN # Refugee Funds
22G99RSF2. FAIN # Afghan Funds 22G992210.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully subqftitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-095-72090000-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: COMMISSIONER'S
OFFICE, OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER; REFUGEE SERVICES

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

Amount
Revised Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070015 $50,000 $24,375 $74,375

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070015 $50,000 $32,500 $82,500

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070015 $12,500 $8,125 $20,625

Subtotal: $300,000 $65,000 $365,000

Fiscal Year
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

Amount
Revised Budget

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070020 $0 $14,063 $14,063

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs" 95070020 $0 $18,750 $18,750

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070020 $0 $4,687 $4,687

Subtotal: $0 . $37,500 $37,500

Contract

Total:
$300,000 $102,500 $402,500

International Institute of New England, Inc. (177551)

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

Amount
Revised Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svos 42200024 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs ,42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070015 $50,000 $13,734 $63,734

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070015 $50,000 $40,944 $90,944

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070015 $12,500 $10,322 $22,822

Subtotal: $300,000 $65,000 $365,000

International Institute of New England, Inc. (177551)

Fiscal Year
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

Amount
Revised Budget

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070020 $0 $7,896 $7,896

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070020 $0 $23,681 $23,681

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 95070020 $0 $5,923 $5,923

Subtotal: $0 $37,500 $37,500

Contract

Total:
$300,000 $102,500 $402,500

Totals $600,000 $205,000 $805,000

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Refugee School Impact Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or "Department") and Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 21, 2018 (Item #8), as amended on September 18, 2019 (Item #7), as amended on June 16,
2021 (Item #10), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract, as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$402,500.

2. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 1, Subsection 1.4. to read:

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure translation and interpretation services are available to Office of
Refugee Resettlement (ORR)-eligible students.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Subsection 2.1., to read:

2.1. The Contractor shall provide services to refugee children up to age eighteen (18) years
through high school graduation from the Concord and Nashua School Districts, who have
been resettled through the Contractor's Services for New Americans Program, and who have
been in the United States for less than five (5) years at the beginning of the school year.
Refugees may include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Asylees.

2.1.2. Individuals who have a special immigrant visa (SIV).

2.1.3. Other Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) defined eligible immigrants.

2.1.4. Secondary migrants if they move to the Concord or Nashua communities.

2.1.5. Humanitarian parolees from Afghanistan.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4, Subsection 4.2., by replacing Table 1 in its entirety,
to read:

4.2. Table 1

Reporting Period Semi-Annual Report Due

10/1/2021 -3/31/2022 4/15/2022

4/1/2022 - 9/30/2022 10/15/2022

10/1/2022-3/31/2023 4/15/2023

4/1/2023 - 9/30/2023 10/15/2023

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, S^ion 1, to
read:

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-01 -AOS

A-S-1.2

Page 1 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date
5/5/2022
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•  1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 91%, Refugee Support Services Program, as awarded on February 6, 2020, by the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administrationfor Children and
Families, GFDA 93.566, FAIN 22G99RSF2.

1.2. 9%, Refugee Support Services Program, as awarded on February 6, 2020, by the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, CFDA 93.566, FAIN 22G992210.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
read:

3. The Contractor shall use and apply all contract funds for authorized direct and indirect costs to
provide services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in accordance with Exhibit B-1, Budget
through Exhibit B-14, Budget Amendment #3.

7. Add Exhibits B-9 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

8. Add Exhibits B-10 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto "and incorporated
by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibits B-11 Amendment #3 SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

10. Add Exhibits B-12 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

11. Add Exhibits B-13 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

12. Add Exhibits B-14 Amendment #3 SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

C—os
IK

Mscefllfia ouiiitiiuiiiiy oeiviccs, mt;. «-o-i.c miuaia
57377022

RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A03 Page2of4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval. .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/12/2022

Date

-OocuSlgntd by:

ll\AJiA. fr. l/UAjyil.
Landry

Title: Associate Commissioner

S/5/2022

Date

/^sodi^^Community Services, Inc.

llw\u. /kifcluil
m^e^'^Mi tchel 1

Title: chief community Services officer

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

RFP-2018-OHE-01 -REFUG-01 -AOa

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OocuSlgntd by:

5/16/2022 I fbViLjvv
Date Name: Roby" Guanno

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A03 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibtt B-9. AfiModiMnt 3. SFV 2022 BudgM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Naite: Ateentrii Cemmunity Sarvicet, Inc.

BudpM Haquesi ler; Refugee School Impecl Progrein (SupplementsI Fund*)

Budget Period: July t. 2021-June 30.2022 (SFY 2022)

Funded by DHHS contt»cl »h*te_^ola^to£i»rrn
Indeed "T^ Direct

Contractor Share/Match

Total btdiract

t. TotM SeleryWage* 12.27S

2. Employee Beneiit*
ComtAants

■4. Eoulpnieni;

Repair and Mainietwice
PurcfraswOepreclalien

^_Suggta^

_Ptwmae|^
MattcM
Ollic*

S. Travel
7. Occupancy
a. Curtem E«pen»e»

Telephone
Posiw
Subecrlption*
Amtl and Legal
fcrturance

_Board_E>£etB^^
9. SdtwarWCompuier Expenee
10. MarKetit»afCorTtm>jvcatror)»
11. Stall Education end TraitiinQ
12. Subcencracta/AofeemerM
13. Other (imarpretatiorvlramJalio^

Indlreei: 2aj6% ot *alarle«/w*ee» 3.SI3 3.5*3
[FederatY neoobated)

TOTAL 20J33 24J7S 3.5*3 T 2«J75 I
Indirect A* A Percent el Direct

Aacerttrta Corrunurey Servtcas. Inc.
HFP-201^0HE-01-REFUM1.ACi3
EiNbii B-9. Amenaneni 3, SFY 2022 Budget
Page 1 ol 1

Coreacior inMalt
5757^022
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Exhibit B-10, Am*ndm*nl 3, $fY 2023 BudgM

New Hampshire Department ol Health and Human Services

OidMr Nan*: Atc*nlrU Community Savtc**, fete.

BudgM R«qu*i1 for ftafug** School Impact Program (SuppHmwital Rimi*)

Budgol Pwted: July 1.2022 • Juna 30,2023 <SFY 2023)

_T£t»IProjmm_Cor
Indirael Dir*cl

Contractor Shara / Ma ten

Indlraet Total

Fund*d by OHHS contract ahar*

fetdiract "toST
1. Total Saiaryiwaooa 18.038

2. Emplotoa Bartaltta

C

5,<lt

onxtJiana

i;_^2SiEJ!!2!2L
ftonial

Rapait and Maimenanca

PurchaaaOapraciation

5. Sucofeai:

Lab

Pttarrrtacy

Mwfeeal

Ollic* 49

1.1971,197

OcctmancY

8. Curi»raE»oan«oi

Tatapfwra 58S

33Pottaga

Stit»cr1pliens

Audi and Lagat 33

163htturanc*

BoorO E'oaroaa

SoltwaaComputa Exponaa

10. MaikatinolCommunicaUont

11. SlatI Educaiion and Trainino

StibccntractilAgi

2l_Od>*<_^uapiMiUiorvimmlw

Indlract: 28,88% ot aalarta*h»aot

(Fadarafey nagoualaO)

TOTAL 27.204 32M> 27,204 8.208

feidlract As A PareanI ol DIraet

Stall hours gainad

Ascanfeta Community Sarvfcas. few.
RFP-20t8^E-01-REFUG<ll-A03

ExNbil B-10. Amandmeni 3. SFY 2023 Budgat
Paga i ol i

Contractor Initiali

57572022
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Exhibit B-n, Ai»«ndm«nt 3. SFV 2024 Bud^M

New Hampshire Department ol Health artd Human Services

BWdw KaRi«: A*C4ntrt4 Community Swvlen, Inc.

Budgw Roquosl Ion RolugM School bnpoct Program (Supplwnantal Funds)

Budgol Ported: July 1.2023 • Juno 30, 2024 (SFV 2024)

Funded by PHHS conl/acl aharo
Ind tract

Total Program Coal

Indltoci Total

Contractor Share / Uatch

"Tmr TotJ

1. Total SNWWaoos 4.509.38 t 4,509

2. Employee Banetas

3. Consultants

E0"»"4

Rontal

Repair and Maintenance
Piachaso'DeOteciatiOn

5. SucpHes:

Lab

Pharmacy

kiettcal

OOlce 12

259S. Travel

Occupancy

5. Currant Erpanaes

Telephene 146

SPoftaoe

Subscriptions

Audi and Leoal

Vwursnce

Board Eipensos

9. SolfivareComputer Erpanso
ig IJatl^atlnoiCommmiications

11. Stall Education and TraWno

12. Subconuacis/Aoreomantt

13. Olhar (inmoiatatiotvlratislalior^

Indlreq: 2SJ8% Ol salarleshvaoas

iFeOeraly nagollaled)
1,301 7 gi2Sigi2S M24

Indliect As A Pareani ol Direct

Stall hours gained

Aacantrta Community Sorvicos. ktc.
RFP-20ie^E-OI-REFUG-0l-A03

ExNbil B-l I. Amendmwil 3. SFY 2024 Budoel
Page t ol I

*57^2022
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EilUUl AmaodriMnt 3. SPY 2022 BudgM

New Hampshire Departmeni of Health artd Human Services

Bidder Name: Aseentrta Conununhy Servleea, Irw.

Budge) Request lor Relugee School enpad Progiem (Alghan Funds)

Budget Period: July 1,2021 • June 30.2022 (SPY 2022)

_^oialPro22IJ^^^
Indeed

Funded by DHH3 contract share*
fcideectTotal

Conliacloi Share' Ualch

Indked Total Total

1. Total Saiwyweoes 6.376 S

2. Emploree Benelas 1.913 S

3. CorrsiAarts

«■ Equipment:
Rental
Reoaif and Maintenance

_Pu(d<a*e/Degradstfon_
5. Supplies;

Educational
t-ab
Pharmacr
MeAcal
Cilice

7. OccupancY
B

1.250
. Current Erpensei

Tatophone
Postage

_Subsdiglior^
Audi and Legal
fettuance

_BoarO_Eiger«^^
9. Soitwaie'Conipuier E'pense
10. MaiKetinoiCommunlcallona
11. Stall Etiucaiion and Trainloo
12. Suticonuacts'Aofeemants
13. Otfier fiolerpiBliulOnlninshitio^

Indlred; 28.66% oc ealailes/weges
[PederaSy negouateo)

12.223 7TOTAL 12.223 S 14.063
bidlreci Ai A Perceni ol Olrect

.6.3rejo^»^

AscarVia Community Servlcos, tx.
RPP-2018-OH6-01-REFUG-0t-At)3
EchU B-12. Amendmani 3. SPY 2022 Budget
Page t ol i

CoraraCMt Mttati

5

/lAi
7V2022
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ExMbll B.I3, AmtodmcM 3. SfY 2023 BudsM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BIddw Nan*: Aaeanlrta Conmunlty Savk**, bic.

SudgM R*qu«»1 lor; Rafup** School Impact Program (Afghan Furtds)

Budget Pwiod: July 1. 2022 • Jun* 30.3023 (SFY 2023)

Direct btdlract Total

_TotaJPt02fW2_Co*^
lodPael ~ Total

Contractor Shar*! Hatcli

lndtr*a "ToiT
I. Total Sataryrwaao* 10.130 S
2. Emptow Berftita 2.S36 t 2X36
3. ConstAants

«■ Epulpmeni;
Romal
Repair and Mainienanea
PtfchaaorOeptaciatioo

5. Suot***:

Ijib
PhaimacY
Matcal
OtIiC* 2S

62S
810

8. Travel
7. Occupancy
8. Currartt £»pen**a

Telei>hon*
P

672

tooatao*
Subaerlptlorti
Aud.1 and Leoitl *0

tooImutarte*
Board E'penaea

9. Sollwaro'Contputer Eirpenaa
10. MarVetirxtiComrTHmlcaiiona
11. Stall Educaiiort and TraWnp
12. Subcoraracta/Aereefnenca
13. Other (irtfetptwatiorWHrtalaiion):

lncUrect:2<J6%ola*tarte*/>iraoe*
T

15.826 T
iFederaly negotiaieO)

TOTAL

Indirect A* A Percent ol Direct
1SA2< 2J24 18,750

I  7/1/2022* ill

Aacenota Communey Servtcea. ktc.
RFP-2018-OHe-01-R£FUC-0IA03
Exhibit B-13. Amendment 3. SFY 2023 Budget
Page i ol t

Contractor Initials

S7572022
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EiMWI B-14, AmmdRMnt 3. SFY 2024 BudoM

New Hampshire Oepartment o> Health artd Human Services

Bidder Nirm: Asceniri* Community Servleee, k>c.

Budget Reituetl lor Relugee School bnpect Program (Alghen Fund*)

Budget Pwiod: July l. 2023 • June 30.2024 <SFr 2024)

Uneliem

Totd SalarylWeoea''

Total Program Coal'
Indtreel

Contractor Share«Ualeh

htdlrect Total

Funded by OHKS contract ahare

Indlract Tetai

2. Emptovee BeoelM

1 Conautianta

4. Eoulpmeni:

R«ow and Maintenance

Purchaae/Peoreciatlon

5. Suoolies:

PharmaCY

Meticel

Oriica

7. Occi«ancv

3. Cuitenl Eipertee^
T

25

*00

l«3

etephone
168

to
_Sjjbser^on^_
Audit and Legal

40

too
Board Enoensea

9. SoftwareiCompuler Erpenae
10. MailtetinttiCommunicaiiona

It. Stall Education and TraMna

12. SuCcontracU/Aoieementa

13. Other (ititwoiWutlontrmtMauo^

ntdrect: 2SJS% ot aalartaahiratioa

^Federaey negotaied)
TOTAL

Indirect Ae A PereanI ol Direct

4,023 4.687

<  ' 7/i/gQa"

Ascenlrla Communiiy Sorvico*. hx.

RFP-20t8K>HE-0t-REFUG-O1-Aa3

EihU B-14, Amendment 3. SPY 2024 Budget
Page i ol I

Comractat Mtkata

—DS

5/5/2022



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Sccretar>' of Slate of ihc State of New Mampshire, do hereby certify that ASCFNTRIA COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Mampshire on June 13, 2011. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secrctar>' of State's olTice have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 652197

Certificate Number: 0005748813

Oh

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of April A.D. 2022.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Tara E. Browne ^ , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 14 . 20 21 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Aimee Mitchell. Executive VP and Chief Communitv Svcs Officer (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Ascentria Communitv Services. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: May 6.2022
Sigrrature^oTElected Officer
Name: Tara E. Browne

Title: Corporate Clerk / Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOrrYYY)

5/16/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certJflcate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s). .

PRODUCER

Hays Companies Inc.

980 Washington Street

Suite 325

Dedham MA 02026

NAME**^' Courtney Mitchell
PHONE FAX
lA/C No Fxllr (A«:,N0):

ADDRESS- Courtney. Mi tchell Sbbrown. com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC «

INSURER A: Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 16058

INSURED

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc.

11 Shattuck St.

Worcester MA 01605

iNSURERB;The First Liberty Insurance Corp. 33588

INSURER C :

INSURERD ;

INSURERE;

INSURERF;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:21-22 GL Auto UMB WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

iNqn

SUBR

wvn POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

IMM/DD/YYYYI

POLICY exp
IMM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GElERAL LIABILITY

E  1 X 1 OCCUR
X PHPK2332417 10/1/2021 10/1/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE s  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAD
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PRFMISFS IFa omurrencel

s  100,000

MED EXP (Any one oersori) J  25,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY J  1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $  3,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 I 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OPAGG %  3,000,000

%

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

PHPK2332413 10/1/2021 10/1/2022

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT %  1,000,000

X ANY AUTO

HEDULED

rros
N-OWNEO

TOS

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

SC BODILY INJURY (Per accldeni) $

NC PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

s

$

A

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAJMS-MADE

PKUB787516 10/1/2021 10/1/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE %  10.000.000

AGGREGATE S  10,000,000

DEO * RETENTIC N S 10,000 $

B

WOFKERS COMPENSATION

N /A

HCS-611-262252-011 10/1/2021 io/1/2022

V PER OTK-
* STATUTE ER

ANY PRCPRlETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVe

OFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT S  1,000,000

E.L- DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S  1,000,000

E.L- DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT S  1,000.000

A Profsssional Liability

Claims Had#

PHPX2332417

Retroactive Date: 1/1/2004

10/1/2021 10/1/2022 Eacn Occuience $1,000,000

Aggregate 53,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AMiUon«l Remark* Schadula, may b« atUchad If more apace 1* required)

Additional Named Insured: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

NH Department of Health and Human Services is included as additional insured as respects to General
Liability where required by written contract, subject to policy terms and conditions

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

^  NH Department of Health & Human Services
'  129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

James Hays/CEMITC

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

INS025 (201401)

1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

261 Sheep Davis Road, Suite A-l, Concord. NH 03301
ascentria.org 1 603.224.8111" j info@ascentria.org
Formerly Lutheran Social Services of New England

Mission statement:

We are called to strengthen communities by empowering people to respond to life's challenges.

Vision statement:

We envision thriving communities where everyone has the opportunity to achieve their full

potential regardless of background or disadvantage. We become recognized leaders for

innovative community sendees. Together with our partners, we inspire people to help one

another reach beyond their current circumstances and realize new possibilities.

Empowering People, Strengthening Communities.

ffi'- >
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CItftonLarsonAllen LLP

ClAconnect.com

INDEPENDEm" AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statement of activities, cash flows, and functional
expenses, for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A trwrnbsr of jj independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent
NSXj3 accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-flrm-disclaimer for details.
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The supporting information shown on page 20 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Maine Uniform Accounting and Auditing Practices for Community Agencies
(MAAP) and is not a required part the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is also presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supporting information required by MAAP and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 14, 2021, on our consideration of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria
Community Sen/ices, Inc. and Subsidiary's intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards
in considering Ascentria Community Sen/ices, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts

December 14, 2021

(2)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net of Estimated Uncoliectibie Accounts

Prepaid Expenses
Vehicle inventory

Total Current Assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial interest in Net Assets of Related Party

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land

Building
Building Improvements

Leasehold Improvements
Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles

Equipment Held Under Capital Lease
Computer Equipment and Software

Total

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Property and Equipment

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits
Total Other Assets

2021 2020

$  4,380,964 $  1,088,674

5,193,640 4,618,979

100,926 84,975

133,728 128,893

9,809,258 5,921,521

997,007 841,000

45.314 45,314

85,798 85,798

975,856 968,006

353,467 353,467

246,311 246,311

459,810 454,071

499,374 499,374

147.017 147,017

2,812,947 2,799,358

2.031.576 1.901.549

781,371 897,809

- 5,781

112,192 101,892

112.192 101,892

Total Assets $ 11.699.828 $ 7.768.003

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2021 2020

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Deferred Revenue

Due to State of Maine

Total Current Liabilities

33,943

400,872

1,951,115

434,376

550.526

32,752

821,453

1.630,694

311,847

468.768

3,370,832 3,265,514

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 1,820,131 3,610,245

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net of Current Maturities

Total Liabilities

3,908,861

9.099,824

409,782

7,285,541

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

1,512,713

1.087,291

2,600,004

(443,382)
925,844

482,462

$  11,699.828 $ 7,768,003

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

NET ASSET REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION

Grant and Contract Revenue

Program Service Revenue
Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

Donated Vehicles

In-Kind Donations

Net Assets Released from Restriction Used for Operations
Other Income

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Occupancy Costs
Operating Supplies and Expenses
Professional Fees

Garage Expenses
Donated Vehicle Expenses

Client Support Expenses
Translation Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance
Travel Expenses

Educational Events and Meetings
Management Fees
Taxes

Recruitment Advertising
Advertising
Licenses and Fees

Custodial Fees

Insurance

Interest

Bad Debt Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization

Total Expenses

OPERATING GAIN

NONOPERATING ACTIVITY

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment
Equity Transfers, Net

Total Nonoperating Activity

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR

RESTRICTIONS

$ 31,570,797 $ 30,973,224

3.973,733 4,779,313

856,417 645.720

2,467,954 1,818,418

26,216 20,923

43,096 201,348

168.412 356,152

39,106,625 38,795,098

18,397,039 19,179,196

4,106,391 4,297,125

1,918,293 1,985,030

368,797 463,657

2,232,650 2,244,674

758,677 776,542

1,063,000 924,000

499,820 462,904

943,100 612,048

444,249 332,791

654.494 794,550

20,619 47,931

4,558,412 5,395,119

521,856 567,842

936 10,004

210,284 157,095

4,380 5,094

5,438 12,994

226,499 197,295

40,476 32,965

39,312 52,051

130,027 131,307

37,144.749 38,682,214

1,961,876 112,884

10,349

(5.781) -

(5.781) 10,349

$  1,956.095 $  123.233

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Without Donor

Restriction

With Donor

Restriction Total

BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2019

Increase In Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party

Net Assets Released from Restrictions • Operations

Change in Net Assets

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2020

Increase in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations

Change in Net Assets (Deficit)

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2021

$  (566,615) $  1,062,379 $  495,764

123,233 - 123,233

- 64.813 64,813

(201,348) (201,348)

123,233 (136,535) (13,302)

(443,382) 925,844 482,462

1,956,095 - 1,956,095

- 204,543 204,543

(43,096) (43,096)

1,956,095 161,447 2,117,542

$  1.512.713 $  1.087.291 $ 2.600.004

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Support f»g Sofvicca

DisabUity Child Total

Trartsportation end and Family IrvHomo Services For Total Management Support Total

Services Mental Health Programs Services Now Americans Program arxl Gcrteral Fundraising Sorvlcos Ewensee

Salaries and Wages S 836.439 S 5.322.401 S  3,003.900 S 5,017,853 S 4.082.749 S  18,263,342 $  133,697 S S  133,697 $  18,397,039

Employeo Benefits 163.349 1,386.650 619,394 1,074,309 817,262 4,082,964 23,427 23,427 4,106,391

Occupancy Costs 97.286 610,342 450,123 42,738 495,027 1,695,516 222,777 222,777 1,918,293

Operating Supplies and Expenses 26.575 155,924 64,072 34,258 69,262 350,091 18,706 18,706 388,797

Professional Fees 7.745 397,058 1,240,048 . 532,551 2,177,402 55,248 55,248 2,232,650

Garage and Vehlde Expenses 758,677 - - - - 758,677
- •

.  758,677

Donated Vehide Expenses 1.063.000 • - • - 1,063,000 • -
1,063,000

Olent Support Expenses 422 35,341 240,023 3.900 219,695 499,381 439 439 499,820

Translation Eipensos . 12,179 303 - 930,616 943,100 • -
943,100

Repairs and Maintenance 38.066 68,404 109,793 61.444 141,295 419,002 25,247 25,247 444,249

Travel Expenses 199,944 171.189 80,495 18,608 183,603 654,039 455 455 654,494

Educational Events and Meetings 71 4,169 7.778 1,244 3,823 17,085 3,534 3,534 20,619

Management Foes - - • "  - • - 4,558,412 4,558.412 4,558,412

Taxes - 513,471 137 8,181 67 521,856 - • 521,856

Recnjitment Advertising 806 . - 115 • 923 13 13 936

Advertising - • • - • • 210,284 210,284 210,284

Licenses and Fees 3 160 1,660 250 272 2.345 2,035 - 2,035 4,380

Custodial Fees . . - - . • - 5,438 5,438 5,438

Insurance 6.283 72,201 42,471 44.228 55,995 221,178 5,321 • 5,321 226,499

Interest . . . . - - 40,476 • 40,476 40,476

Bad Debt Expenses - 5.342 . 26,862 7,018 39,222 90 - 90 39,312

Total Before Depredation
and Amortization 3,218.668 8.756.831 5,860,197 6,333,990 7,539,437 31,709,123 5,300,161 5,438 5,305,599 37,014,722

Depredation and Amortization 54,557 2,852 71,818 . 1,000 130,027 - . . 130,027

Total Functional Exportscs S 3.273.225 $ 8.759.683 S  5.931,815 S 6.333.990 $ 7.540.437 S  31.839.150 S  5.300.161 $ 5.438 S 5.305,599 S  37.144,749

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNPTY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Progrofn Ser/icea Supporting Servfeea

Salaries and Wages

Employee Bertefits

Occupancy Costs

Operating Supplies and E)9>er«es

Professional Fees

Garage and Vehicle Experoes

Donated Vehlda E;q>enses

Client Support Expenses

Translation Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance
Travel Expenses

Educational Events and Msetings

Management Pees

Taxes

Recruitment Advertlsirtg

Advertising

Licenses and Pees

Custodial Fees

Insurance

Interest

Bad Debt B^wnses

Total Before Depreciation

and Amortization

Depreciation and Amortization

Total Purtdiortal Expenses

DisablQty Child Total

Transportation and and Family In-Home Services For -Total Marwgement Support Total

Services Mental Health ProQrams Services New Americans Prooram end General Fundraisino Services Emnses

$  936.410 S 5.540,060 S  3.001.095 S  4.967.565 S 4,472.719 %  16.917.649 $  261.347 S $  261,347 S  19.179.196

204.976 1.482.702 559.926 1.098.877 894.519 4.241.000 58.125 56,125 4.297,125

105.843 633.124 441.702 46.282 506.536 1.733.467 251.563 251.563 1,985.030

32.973 165.585 86,680 45.825 114,506 447.569 16,068 16.088 463.657

61.456 383.971 1.354.705 5.434 391.293 2.196.859 47,815 47.815 2.244.674

775.461 916 165 - - 776,542 - -
776.542

924.000 . - - 924,000 - ■
924,000

19.826 31.647 200.925 64 210.412 462,674 30 30 462.904

. 21,739 282 - 587,030 609.051 2.997 2.997 612.046

26.444 36.069 116.558 53.936 71.180 306,189 26,602 26,602 332.791

191.640 201.678 136,374 43.072 214.719 787,483 7.067 7.067 794.550

2.067 9.036 8.311 10.139 9,118 38.671 9.260 9.260 47.931

. . . . . . 5.395,119 5,395.119 5.395.119

. 561.640 . 5,931 271 567.842 • -
567.642

3.555 664 1.404 3,691 373 9,907 97 97 10.004

. . . . . - 157,095 157.095 157.095

1.691 70 2.696 250 . 4.707 387 387 5.094

. . .
- . . - 12,994 12.994 12,994

8.014 57,285 34.105 41.583 51.611 192,596 4.697 4,697 197.295

. .
. . . - 32.965 32.965 32.965

. 3.863 . 37.684 10,503 52.050 1 1 52.051

3.294.356 9.132.269 5.946.928 6.360.315 7.534,790 32.266.656 6.269.255 12.994 6.282.249 38.550.907

55.336 2.852 69.917 . 3,200 131.307 . . - 131.307

S  3.349.694 S 9.135.121 S  6.016.845 S  6.360.315 S 7.537.990 S  32.399.965 ^__8j2W^5^ S  12.994 S 6.282.249 S  38.662.214

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Finandal Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Change In Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization

Bad Debts

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment
Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:

Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Deposits
Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party
Vehicle Inventory
Due to Third Party

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Deferred Revenue

Due to State of Maine

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Property and Equipment
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Long-Term Debt
Payments on Long-Term Debt
Advanced from Related Parties, Net

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid for Interest

2021 2020

$ 2,117,542 $ (13,302)

130,027 131,307

39,312 52,051

- (10,349)
(204,543) (64,813)

(613,973) (802,450)
(15,951) 2,496

(10,300) 2,850

48,536 201,350

(4,835) (58,601)
- 543

(420,581) (100,937)
320,421 575,524

122,529 135,376

81,758 406,296

1,589,942 457,341

(13,589) (148,710)
- 15,295

(13,589) (133,415)

3,533,020

(32,750) (43,100)
(1,784,333) 807,848

1,715,937 764,748

3,292,290 1,088,674

1,088,674

$ 4.380.964 $ 1.088.674

40.476 $ 32,965

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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OocuSIgn Envelope ID; F20DCC49-E843-4567-B257-EE5E30915AED

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Ascentria Community Services. Inc. (ACS) and Ascentria Community Care, Inc. (ACC)
(collectively, the Organizations) are corporations exempt from tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Intemal Revenue Code as a public charity. Effective July 1, 2018, assets were
transferred to the Organization from Good News Garage - LSS, Inc. (GNG), related parties,
as a result of the combination of operations (see Note 14 for details). The Organizations
provide community service, programs to children, families, refugees, and developmentally
disabled adults throughout' New England. ACS is the sole corporate member of ACC.
Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. (Ascentria) is a sole corporate member of ACS and also serves
as the management agent. .

The Organizations provide the following programs:

Transportation Services - provides low-income individuals with transportation, such as
ownership of donated vehicles or access to shared rides, providing these Individuals with
access to jobs and other economic opportunities, thus helping them to achieve economic
independence.

Disability and Mental Health - Disability and Mental Health cornprise of a wide variety of
programs that enable persons who are economically disadvantaged, have disabilities,
chronic illness, mental illness, deafness and other challenges to become and remain
successful contributors to the communities in which they live and work. Support services
include: Access to medical resources, personal case management customized for
individual needs, 24/7 supervision and support in a residential setting for individuals
diagnosed with chronic and persistent mental illness, and services offered to Individuals
diagnosed with mental illness in the comfort and familiarity of their homes.

Child and Family Programs - through a variety of programs, the Organizations provide
services related to therapeutic foster care, unaccompanied refugee minors support,
housing for teen mothers and their children, housing for homeless, small group homes
serving teenagers, various support services and living accommodations for
developmentally, physically and mentally disabled adults and other various social
support programs.

In-Home Services - In-Home Care is a licensed Home Health Care agency that offers
comprehensive, non-medical personal care services to homebound individuals or those
with a disability. In-Home Care caregivers assist In light housekeeping, transportation to
appointments, recreational activities, bathing and personal care, meals, and exercise.
Additional non-medical services supervised by a registered nurse.

Services for New Amen'cans - through this program, the Organizations seek to provide
resettlement, employment, case management, medical case management, English as a
second language classes, and other support services to refugees, asylees, and
immigrants.

Adoption - through this program, the Organizations provide services related to domestic
and international adoptions.

(10)



DocuSign Envelope ID: F20DCC49-E843-4567-B257-EE5E30915AED

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial
position, results of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows, and functional expenses
of the Organizations. Material intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial , statements of the Organizations have been prepared on the
accrual method of accounting. Accordingly, assets are recorded when the Organizations
obtain the rights of ownership or is entitled to claims for receipt and liabilities are recorded
when the obligation is incurred.

Cash and Cash Eouivalents

The Organizations consider all short-term debt securities purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance of expected losses. The allowance is
estimated from historical performance and projections of trends. Credit is extended to
customers and collateral Is not required. When the accounts become past due, historically,
the Organizations have not charged interest to these accounts.

Inventory

Vehicles identified for the purpose of being delivered to program participants are valued
based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the reporting period which
approximates the lower of cost or net realized value.

Program vehicles expected to be sold at retail are recorded based on trade-in value.

Vehicles expected to be sold at wholesale are valued using the average sales proceeds for
all vehicles sold during the reporting period.

Vehicles are recorded as donated vehicles or donated vehicles - wholesale when the

vehicle is received.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Assets with an estimated useful life of more
than one year and a historical cost in excess of $2,500 are capitalized. The Organizations
capitalize acquisitions and improvements, while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
that do not extend the useful lives of the assets are charged to operations. Donated property
and equipment are recorded at its fair market value at date of donation. Gifts of long-lived
assets are reported as net assets without donor restriction support unless donor stipulations
specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash.or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: F20DCC4g-E643^567-B2S7-EE5E30915AED

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES
(CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment fContinued)

Absent explicit donor stipulation about how long those assets must t>e maintained,
expiration of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets
are placed into service. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the assets.

Related Party Loans Receivable

The Organizations' loan portfolio is comprised on unsecured related party loans receivable
that are noninterest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms, as detailed in Note 3, and
is considered a single portfolio class. Related party loans receivable are recorded net of an
allowance for expected loan losses (allowance). The Organizations establish an allowance
as an estimate of inherent risk in the Organizations' loan portfolio. Although management
believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its estimates.

The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses that is charged to expense.
Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when the Organizations determine the
loan balance to be uncollectible. Proceeds received on previously charged off amounts are
recorded as recovery in the year of receipt. The Organizations determined that all related
party loans receivable are fully collectible as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.

The Organizations review the adequacy of the allowance, including consideration of the
relevant risks in the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors
periodically. The Organizations internally monitor related party borrowers to assess the risk
of nonperformance. The Organizations determine that changes are warranted based on
those reviews, the allowance is adjusted.

Net Assets

Net assets of the Organizations are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature when the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Net assets with donor
restrictions consist of $997,007 and $841,000 for beneficial interest in net assets of
related party and $90,283 and $84,844 other program restrictions for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. There were no net assets invested in perpetuity
as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Contract and Grant Revenue

The Organizations derive revenues through cost-reimbursable and unit rate federal and
state contracts and grants, which are conditional grants based on certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Accordingly, the
Organizations are subject to the regulations and reporting requirements of the applicable
governmental and grantor agencies. Amounts received are recognized as earned and are
reported as revenue when the Organizations have incurred expenditures in compliance with
specific contract or grant provisions. As of June 30, 2021, there was $2,942,937 of
conditional contributions that have yet to be recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized in the consolidated financial statements if the services
enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided
by donation.

Donated Vehicle Revenue

Donated vehicle revenue includes vehicles that will be repaired and delivered to program
participants. They are valued based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the
reporting period. Additionally, donated vehicle revenue includes donated vehicles that do not
meet the needs of program participants. These vehicles are sold at auction and valued
based on average proceeds for the reporting period. Vehicle auction revenue is recognized
at a point in time when the item is sold. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, there was
$1,400,120 and $835,817, respectively, included in donated vehicles on the consolidated
statement of activities.

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

During 2021 and 2020, the Organizations received federal and state grants to provide
funding to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Organizations received payments from
the CARES Act Provider Relief Fund (PRF), which is administered by the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services (HHS). The Organizations received PRF payments and
recognized revenue in the amount of $587,171 and $184,667 during fiscal year 2021 and
2020, respectively. The revenues recognized are included in Federal and State Relief Grant
Revenue on the consolidated statements of activities. The PRF payments have terms and
conditions that the Organizations are required to follow, and these funds are subject to
reporting requirements and audit. The PRF payments are subject to potential recoupment by
HHS if it is determined that the funds were not spent in accordance with the terms and
conditions. Management believes the amounts have been recognized appropriately as of
June 30,2021.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

The Organizations received payments from the state of New Hampshire, which is
administered by the Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR). The
Organizations received payments and recognized revenue in the amount of $172,112 and
$461,053 during the fiscal years 2021 and 2020, respectively. The revenues recognized are
included in Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated statements of

activities. The payments have terms and conditions that the Organizations are required to
follow, and these funds are subject to reporting requirements and audit. The payments are
subject to potential recoupment by GOFERR if it is determined that the funds were not spent
in accordance with the terms and conditions. Management believes the amounts have been
recognized appropriately as of June 30, 2021.

Additionally, the Organizations recognized payments from the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Executive Office of Health and Human Services (EOHHS) of $97,134 as
revenues as of June 30, 2021. The revenues recognized are included in Federal and State
Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated statement of activities.

Program Service Revenue

Program service revenue is from private pay services, translation services, and
interpretation services. Program service revenue is recognized as services are provided
over time. Payments received in advance of services are reported as deferred revenue.

Advertisina Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs paid for by the Organizations
amounted to $184,067 and $136,170 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Contributions of advertising are recorded at the estimated fair value on the
date of the contribution. The Organizations received contributions of advertising estimated to
have a value of $26,216 and $20,923 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted In the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the various programs and services are summarized on a functional
basis. Costs are generally identified as to program site, and are then allocated between
programs and supporting services that benefited based on total direct expenses. Salaries
and benefits are allocated on the basis of time and effort. The expenses that are allocated
are the portions of depreciation and interest expense that are not directly attributable to
specific programs or services. These expenses are allocated on a square footage basis.

Income Taxes

The Organizations are nonprofit corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC
and are exempt from federal and state income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501 (a) of the IRC.

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with professional standards, assets and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value are required to be categorized into a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of
the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value. The fair value hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within different
levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement. Assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value by
the Organizations are categorized as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that an entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these
instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically
based on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements YContinued)

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement Is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no
changes in valuation methodology used at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Change in Accounting Principles

Financial Accounting Standard Board (PASS) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2018-13 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework - Changes to the
Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. The ASU removes and modifies
disclosure requirements retrospectively for nonpublic entities. The ASU is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Organizations' consolidated financial
statements reflect the application of ASU 2018-13 using a retrospective approach to each
period presented.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, which is a comprehensive
lease accounting standard that requires entities that lease assets (lessees) to recognize the
assets and related liabilities for the rights and obligations created by the leases on the
balance sheet for leases with terms exceeding 12 months. The lessee in a lease will be
required to initially measure the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, as well as capitalize initial direct costs as part of the right-
of-use asset. The FASB issued ASU 2020-05, which deferred the effective date for the
Organizations until annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021; however, early
application is permitted. The Organizations are currently evaluating the impact this guidance
will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-07 on Topic 958, Presentation and
Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. The FASB ASU
requires nonprofits to present contributed nonfinancial assets and gifts-in-kind as a separate
line item on your consolidated statement of activities. Additionally, gift-in-kind are to be
disaggregated into categories based on the type of gift received and additional qualitative
disclosures. The FASB ASU requires the new standard to be applied retrospectively for
annual periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The Organizations are currently evaluating
the impact this guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Reclasslfications

Certain reclasslfications of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accorhpanying financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The
reclasslfications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organizations have evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through December 14, 2021,
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest In Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations record beneficial interest in assets that are held by Ascentria in the
amount of $997,007 and $841,000 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. For the years
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organizations had a loan payable, included in accrued
expenses, to the fund totaling $340,524 for both years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020.
Contributed assets are transferred to Ascentria by either the donor or the Organizations with
the approval of Ascentria. The donors did not grant variance power to Ascentria.

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizations have entered into the following transactions with related parties:

•  The Organizations are charged annually by Ascentria for accounting, management
services, and overhead in monthly installments. Charges to operations for these
services totaled approximately $4,558,412 and $5,395,119 for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These expenses have been included on the
consolidated statements of activities under the caption Management Fees. In
addition, Ascentria is the central contracting entity for insurance coverage, and
insurance costs are then billed monthly to the Organizations.

•  In connection with soliciting and managing donations received, Ascentria charged
the Organizations a custodial fee. The custodial fee charged to operations was
$5,438 and $12,994 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

•  The Organizations have various office space rentals to and from related parties and
vehicle rentals from related parties. Rental revenue from related parties amounted to
$122,592 and $137,545 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Office space and vehicle related party rents amounted to $371,039 and $391,487 for
the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

•  Related party loans that bear no interest and have no fixed repayment terms, are
as follows:

Due from Related Parties:

Lutheran Housing Corporation Brockton, Inc.
Emanuej Development Corporation

Total

Due to Related Parties:

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc.

Total

2021 2020

$ $ 5,632
- 149

$ - ? 5.781

2021 2020

$ 1,820,131 $ 3,610,245

$ 1.820.131 $ 3.610.245

NOTE 4 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Organizations participate in a defined contribution plan (the Plan) qualifying under IRC
Section 403(b) maintained by Ascentria. The Plan pennits discretionary employer
contributions based on a specified percentage of annual compensation and employee
contributions. The Organizations had no pension costs charged to operations or
contributions to the plan during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable balance consisted of the following at June 30:

2021

Accounts Receivable - Program Services
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts Receivable, Net

2020

$ 5,248,189 $ 4,663,528

(54,549) (44,549)

$ 5.193.640 $ 4.618.979

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organizations to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations maintain cash and cash equivalent balances in several federally insured
financial institutions in the same geographic area as well as a money market fund. During
the year, there may be times when uninsured cash is significantly higher and exceeds
federally insured limits.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Major Customer

The Organizations receive 'significant funding from various federal and state agencies. The
states, through which funding was received, include Massachusetts, New Hampshire, and
Maine. Approximately 84% of the Organizations' revenue was received from state and
federal agencies directly or via pass through for both years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations' unsecured gifts, held by a related party, amounted to $997,007 and
$841,000 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to its customers. Accounts receivable amounted
to $5,193,640 and $4,618,979 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The useful lives of property and equipment for purposes of computing depreciation are:

Building, Building Improvements, and Leasehold Improvements 5 to 40 Years
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures, and Vehicles 3 to 10 Years
Equipment Under Capital Lease 3 to 5 Years
Computer Equipment and Software 3 Years

Depreciation and amortization (including amortization of equipment under capital lease)
expense charged to operations was $130,027 and $131,307 for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 8 MAINE MEDICAID LIABILITY

ACS provides services for Medicaid eligible individuals under terms of costs-based contracts
with the state of Maine. Accordingly, ACS provides for the estimated amount of settlements
with Medicaid as a liability. Final reimbursement is not determined until the state of Maine
accepts the cost report. The amount of the estimated liability was approximately $550,000
and $468,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Adjustments to
these estimates are reflected on the consolidated statement of activities under the caption
Grant and Contract Revenue to the extent not previously recorded in the year the final
settlement information becomes available to management.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT

On March 19, 2021, ACS and AGO each received a loan in the amount of $2,518,900 and
$1,014,120, respectively, to fund payroll, rent, utilities, and interest on mortgages and
existing debt through the Paycheck Protection Program (the PPP Loan). The PPP Loans
bear interest at a fixed rate of 1.0% per annum, with the first six months of interest deferred,
has a term of five years, and is unsecured and guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business
Administration. Payment of principal and interest is deferred until the date on which the
amount of forgiveness is remitted to the lender or. If the Organizations fail to apply for
forgiveness within 10 months after the covered period, then payment of principal and
interest shall begin on that date. These amounts may be forgiven subject to compliance and
approval based on the timing and use of these funds in accordance with the program. The
covered periods from March 2021 to September 2021, is the time that a business has to
spend their PPP Loan funds. Subsequent to year-end, the Organizations obtained full formal
forgiveness from the SBA for their PPP Loans and their associated accmed interest.

The Organizations are liable on long-term debt at June 30, 2021 and 2020 as follows:

Description 2021 2020

Note Pavable

Term note payable to Bank of America face amount
$350,000, due August 7, 2033, secured by business
assets, payable in monthly installments of interest
only through August 2008 then monthly payments of
principal plus interest through maturity. Interest rate
is fixed at 7.105% annually. $  165,537 $ 183,082

Mortgage payable to Bank of America face amount
$370,308, secured by real property owned by ACS at
two locations, and guaranteed by Ascentria, with an
interest rate of 7.01%, due August 2032. Monthly
principal and interest payments of $2,670. 244,247 258,306

Paycheck Protection Program note payable to People's
United Bank, totaling $3,533,020 for both ACS and ACC,
bearing interest at 1.00%, due May 2028, subject to
forgiveness by the U.S Small Business Administration if
certain performance barriers are met. 3,533,020

Caoital Lease Oblioations

ACS is obligated under various capital lease agreements
for equipment and motor vehicles, expiring in 2020. with
a combined monthly payment of approximately $2,200
with interest rates ranging from approximately 4% to 8%. 1,146

Total Long-Term Debt 3,942,804 442,534

Less: Current Maturities (33,943) (32,752)

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities $  3.908.861 $ 409.782
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Following are current maturities for the next five years:

Year Ending June 30.

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Total

Amount

33,943

1,008,451

1,011,084

1.014.400

288,307

586.619

$  3.942.804

Interest charged to operations for the above long-term debt amounted to $40,476 and
$32,965 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 10 OPERATING LEASES

The Organizations lease land, buildings, equipment, and motor vehicles under various
operating lease agreements with terms of 1 to 3 years. Total rent and related expenses
amounted to $1,069,523 and $1,099,443 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows:

Year Ending June 30.

2022

2023

2024

Total

Amount

$ 529,347

357,362

■ 83,035

$ 969.744

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES

A significant portion of the Organizations' net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from services reimbursable under Medicaid programs. There are numerous healthcare
refonn proposals being considered on federal and state levels. The Organizations cannot
predict at this time whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted and
implemented, what effect such proposals would have on the Organizations.

A significant portion of the Organizations' revenues are derived from services reimbursable
under Medicaid programs. The base year costs utilized in calculating the Medicaid rates are
subject to audit which could result in a retroactive rate adjustment for all years in which that
cost base was used in calculating the rates. It is not possible at this time to determine
whether the Organizations will be audited or if a retroactive rate adjustment would result.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The receivables of the Organizations are listed as collateral under the line of credit
agreement of Ascentria. The outstanding balance is $2,290,000 and $2,500,000 as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 12 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Organizations use fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain
assets and liabilities to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on how

the Organizations measure fair value refer to Note 1 - Organization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

The following tables present the Organizations' fair value hierarchy for those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 997,007 $ $ $ 997,007

$ 997.007 $ -  $ $ 997.007

2020

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 841,000 $ $ $ 841,000

$ 841.000 $ $ $ 841.000

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Organizations'
Level 3 financial assets for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021

Contributions

Payments

204,543

(43.096)

2020

64,813

(201,348)

Since these funds are held by a third party that pools the Organizations' interest with other
related organization's assets, management has determined that the Inputs are unobservable
and therefore, .valued using a Level 3 methodology. The principal valuation technique is the
fair value of the underlying investments and the unobservable input Is the term of
distributions.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 13 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
commitments. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures
over a 12-month period, the Service considers all expenditures related to its ongoing
program activities as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities
to be general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12
months, the Organization operates a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. The
Organization considers the following to be available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures:

2021 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents ■$ 4,380,964 $ 1,088,674
Accounts Receivable, Net 5,193,640 4,618,979

Total Financial Assets 9,574,604 5,707,653
Donor-Imposed Restrictions

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs
(90,284) (84,844)

for General Expenditures Within One Year 9.484.320 $ 5.622.809

NOTE 14 COViD.19 IMPACT

In 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of Coronavirus (COVID-19) a
worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic is having significant effects on global
markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities. In response to the pandemic and in
an effort to supplement lost revenues and support increased costs incurred to secure
personal protective equipment, the federal and state governments issued stimulus payments
to the Organizations. See Note 1 for information on funding received by the Organizations in
2021.

COVID-19 may also impact various parts of the Organizations' 2022 operations and
financial results including but not limited to additional costs for emergency preparedness,
disease control and containment, potential shortages of personnel, or loss of revenue due to
reductions in certain revenue streams. Management believes that the Organizations are
taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, the full impact of
COVID-19 is unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated as of June 30, 2021.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF DEPARTMENT AGREEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Total

Aeraamafit Agraamant Agfaamant Fadwal Ststa DapwtmaiM
Oapartmani Omea Numbar Amount Agraamani Pariod Agraamani Saryica Status Expanaat Expanaaa Expanaaa

OHKS:

OPS ADS-2t-2S72 $ S7S28 7/1/2CQ0-0SrXV2021 Rantal SubaUy FM S - $ 4S.1Sa S 46,158

DPS MH2-2l.5ie 32.430 7/1/2020-OaWVaoai Con»nunity Integratlw Flnol ^ 31.431 31.431

76.589 $ 76,589

Disclosures:

Is your agency required to have a Single Audit? Yes: X' No:
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary under programs
of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets, or cash flows of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits
made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary has elected not to use the 10-percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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ClfftonLarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as of June 30. 2021, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's intemal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's intemal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.
and Subsidiary's internal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatemenls on a timely basis. A. material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of Independent

accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-flrm-disclaimef for details.
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and
Subsidiary's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CllftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts

December 14, 2021
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

f

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the years ended
June 30, 2021. Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Ascentria Community Services,
Inc.'s major federal programs based on pur audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the.audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Ascentria Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent

nter^oc^ accounting and consuiting firms. See nexia.com/member-flrm-disclaimer for details.
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2021-001. Our opinion on each major federal
program Is not modified with respect to these matters.

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.'s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective intemal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements refemed to above.
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Ascentria Community Services,
Inc.'s intemal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.'s intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in intemal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material weakness. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 14, 2021
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section I- Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued:

Intemal Control over Financial Reporting:

• Material weakness(es) identified?

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

• Material weakness(es) identified?

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are
to be reported In accordance with
2CFR 200.516(a)?

Unmodified

yes X no

^es X none reported

_yes X no

jes X no

Unmodified

.yss X none reported

_X yes no

Identification of Major Federal Programs

93.566 Refugee and Entrant Assistance
State/Replacement Designee Administered
Programs

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

£  750.000

X  yes no
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section II- Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Section III - Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Programs

2021 - 001

Federal agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Federal program title: Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement Designee Administered
Programs

Assistance Listing Number: 93.566

Pass-Through Agency: Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Social Services and
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Office of Refugee and Immigrants

Pass-Through Number(s): INTF0000009922120680: RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-01:

Award Period: 10/1/2019-9/30/2020 and 10/1/2020-9/30/2021

Type of Finding: Other Matters; Intemal Control over Compliance

Criteria or specific requirement: The Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) requires semi-annual
and annual reporting, including a narrative and statistical information on program performance. Reports
are required to be sent to the ORR by the 15th day after period end.

Condition: Support was obtained for submission of semi-annual reports for each of the applicable
contracts, noting that out of the 20 submissions tested, there were 6 instances where there was either
no support provided for the submission or where the report was submissed late.

Context: For each applicable contract, there are semi-annual reporting requirements. Both
submissions during fiscal year 2021 were tested for each applicable contract.

Cause: The Organization did not have proper controls in place to ensure timely preparation and filing of
the report.

Effect: Required annual reports are not being prepared or filed timely, indicating the organization Is not
in compliance with contract rquirements.

Repeat Finding: No

Recommendation: We recommend that the Organization implement internal controls to monitor filing
requirements to ensure timely preparation and filing of reports.

Views of responsible officials: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.
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Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

FY2021 Board and Committee Membership

Board of Directors & Corporate Officers

——:

William Mayo (Chair) Rev. Ross Goodman (Vice Chair)

Karen Gaylin (Secretary) Garth Greimann (Financial Secretary)

Angela Bovill (Ex-Officio w/Vote) Scott Hamilton

Frederick Jenoure Stacey Luster, JD

Sherri Pitcher Keith Robertson

Barbara Ruhe Kimberly Salmon

Peter Schmidt

Angela Bovill (President) Jeanette Wade (EVP)

Jeff Kinney (EVP) Nicholas Russo (Treasurer)

Tara Browne (Clerk)

Last Updated: Monday, September 9, 2019Thursday, May 12, 2022
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Kathy Kitchell

Education and Certifications

TEFL/TESOL Certification
International TEFL Academy
180 credit hours

ESOL Certification

Granite State College
Bachelor of Arts, Individualized Studies English Language Arts
Granite State College
Magna Cum Laude

Leon, Nicaragua
October 2015

Manchester, NH

In progress
Manchester, NH

lune 2013

Experience
Education Liaison, Ascentria Care Alliance, Concord, NH, August 13, 2018 - present

Teaching Assistant, Wilson Elementary School, First-Fifth Grade, Manchester, NH, September
2007 to June 2018

Teaching Assistant, Beach Street Elementary School, EL summer program, Manchester, NH,
July 2017-August 2017

Tutor, YTMCA, Manchester, NH, November 2016-present (after school)

Ready-for-Success Program, Wilson Elementary, Pre-K, Manchester, NH, summers of 2007-
2012 & 2014

Tutor, 21" Century Program, Wilson Elementary, Manchester, NH 2007-2015 (after school)

Volunteer experience, Tanzania, Africa, summer 2013

Volunteer experience, Barriletes Orphanage, Leon, Nicaragua, November 2015

Additional Skills

LLI Training - Language Level Instruction
CP! Training - Crisis Prevention Intervention
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CONTRACTOR NAME: Ascentria Community' Services, Inc.

Key Personnel

Jul.21 toJun-22

RSI Refugee

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Kathy Kitchell Education Liaison $37,000.00 75% $27,750
TBD Education Liaison $36,836.80 34% $12,525

Jul-22 to Jun-23

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Kathy Kitchell Education Liaison $40,580.00 75% $30,435.60
TBD Education Liaison $36,836.80 41.6% $15,352.40

Jul-23 to Sep-23

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Kathy Kitchell Education Liaison $40,580.00 75% $ 7,608.90
TBD Education Liaison $36,836.80 10% $ 3,837.98
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Lori A. ShiblneKe

Commlstlonfr

Lori A. Wct>er
Deputy Commluioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0J301-3857
603-271-9200 1-800-852-334$ Ext. 9200

F«x; 603-27M9I2 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.jov

June 10. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
enter into Sole Source amendments to existing contracts with the vendors listed below for school
related services for newly arriving and vulnerable New Hampshire refugees, by increasing the
total price limitation by $200,000 from $400,000 to $600,000 and by extending the completion
dates from September 30. 2021 to September 29. 2023, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on March 21, 2018, item
#8 and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 18. 2019, item
#7.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Ascentria

Community
Services, Inc.

222201 Statewide $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

International

Institute of New

England. Inc.
177551 Statewide $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

TOTALS: $400,000 $200,000 $600,000

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2022, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

Tht Department of Health and Human Seruices' Mission is to Join coinmtinilies and families
in providiitg opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



DocuSign Envelope ID: F20DCC49-E843-4567-8257-EE5E30915AED

His Excellency, Oovemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the HorK>fabte Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is extending contract beyond the
completion dale and there are no, renewal options available. The Department is extending these
contracts as the Contractors are]under contract with the United States Department of State to
resettle families via the U.S. Refugee Program. Through these contracts, the Contractors receive
pertinent demographic information, and develops and implements integration plans for each
refugee arriving in the State of New Hampshire area, therefore the Contractors are uniquely
qualified to provide these services.

The purpose of this request Is to provide assistance to refugee students in Concord.
Manchester and Nashua who are within one (1) year of arrival to the United States in order that
they may achieve improved acadernic performance and social adjustments.

Approximately 400 students in the Concord. Manchester and Nashua area will be served
from October 1. 2019 to September 30, 2023.

The Contractors provide culturally competent assistance. In collaboration with agencies
who provide health and mental health care services, child care, and social services, in order to
strengthen the ability of refugee children to achieve success in New Hampshire school systems.
Direct assistance Is provided to newly arrived students in these areas:

•  School enrollment and orientation for students and their parents.

•  Linguistically appropriate tutoring.

•  Study support.

•  Interpretation services.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

•  Number and percentage of students who achieve academic success;

•  Number of parents receiving education or training.

•  Number of school personnel who report increased cultural competence;

•  Number of incidences'of linguistic support provided in schools by Contractors;

•  Participation in school-sponsored programs;

•  Effectiveness of health care referrals;-

•  Number of parents attending parent-teacher conferences:

•  Percent of referrals and attendance at after school programs; and

•  Percentage of students assisted with registration for summer programs.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugee children
and their parents may lack support necessary to succeed in school.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA# 93.566 FAIN# 1901NHRSOC

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.
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Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-042-79220000-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. OFFICE OF HEALTH
EQUITY. CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES. REFUGEE SERVICES

Fiscal Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

Amount
Revised Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $37,500 $0 $37,50C

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 . $50.00C

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $12,500 $37,500 $50,000

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $0 $50,000 $50,000

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $0 $12,500 $12,500

Subtotal: $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

Intematlonal Institute of New England, Inc. (177551)

Fiscal Year
Class/

Class Title Job Number Current Budget
increased

Amount
Revised Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 422M024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

'2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $12,500 $37,500 $50,000

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $0 $50,000 $50,000

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $0 $12,500 $12,500

Subtotal: $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

■Altachment • Bureau of Behavioral Health
Financial Detail
Page i of1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This Amendment to the Refugee School Impact Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 21, 2018 (Item #8), as amended on September 18, 2019, (Item #7), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions. Section 3. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 29, 2023.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$300,000.

3. Modify Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by replacing In Its entirety with
Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment Amendment #2. which is attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

4. Add'Exhibit 8-6 Budget Amendment #2. 8udget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit B-7 Budget.Amendment #2, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto arid incorporated
by reference herein.

6. Add Exhibit B-8 Budget Amendment #2, Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

Ascentria Conrimunity Services. Inc.

RFP.2018-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Page l of 3

Contractor Initials

Date

A
5/6/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/19/2021

Date

Oe<u9lgn*d by:

LAnn H. N. Landry
-24aA(»7E08e(MM...

Name; Ann h. n. Landry
Title:

Associate commissioner

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

5/6/2021

Date

-l>*cuS>gn«0 by:

Name; Jeffrey Kinney
Title;

Chief of Staff & External Relations

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

RFP-2Q18-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02

Amendment U2

Page 2 ol 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as tp form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•DocuSlin*^ by:

5/19/2021

;iwc&aaaa?cv£.

Date Name: Catherine Pihos
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Ascentria Communily Services. Inc. Amendment U2

RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-C1 •A02 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

EXHIBIT 8, Amendment #2

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement is funded by Federal Funds from the US Department of Health
and Human Services, Federal Office of Refugee Resettlement, Refugee
School Impact (RSI) Program, as awarded on September 29, 2020, by the US
Department of Health and Human Services. Federal Office of Refugee
Resettlement. CFDA# 93.566 FAIN# 1901NHRSOC.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecepient , in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rale of 19.1% applies in accordance with
2 CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-
8, Budget, Amendment #2. The Contractor shall include additional
documentation, as requested by the Department, that includes, but is not
limited to:

3.1. Receipts.
I

3.2. Timecards.

3.3. Cost allocation sheets.

3.4. Credit card statements.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the

Department in order to initiate payment.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to beth.kellv@dhhs.nh.Qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
126 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

6. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (^^^aysof receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invp^|^and
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Exhibit 8, Amondmont tr2 Contractor initials

5/6/2021
RFP-2018-OHE-01 -REFtJG-01 -A02 Page i of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final Invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions

■ Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.'

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld. In
whole or In part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
If any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part

■ 200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor Is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
vear conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
'  ' 08

Ascentria Communily Seivices. Inc. Exhibll B. Amendmoni« Contractor initials —
5/0/202I

RFP-2018-OHE-01 -REFUG-OI-A02 Page 2 of 3 Da»e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an

annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Ascentria Communily Services. Inc. ExhiWi B. Ainerximeni #2 Contractor Initials,
5/6/2021

RFP.2018-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 P89e3ol3 Date
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND IeR^CE
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301-3857

603-271-9389 1-800-852-3345 E*L 9389

Fox: 603-27M332 TOD Acee«: I-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

DflS

August 29. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Health Equity, to exercise
renewal options to existing agreements with the vendors listed t>elow'to continue providing school
related services for newly arriving and vulnerable New Hampshire refugees by increasing the total price
limitation by $200,000 from $200,000 to $400,000 and by extending the contract completion date from
September 30, 2019 to September 30. 2021, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The Governor and Exececutive Council approved the original agreements on March 21, 2018
(Item #8).

VENDOR
VENDOR

NUMBER
VENDOR ADDRESS AMOUNT

INCREASE/

(DECREASE)

MODIFIED

AMOUNT

Ascentria

Community
Services. Inc.

222201

261 Sheep Davis Rd,
Suite A-1

Concord NH 03301

$100,000 $100,000 $200,000

International

Institute of New

England. Inc.

177551

2 Boylston Street. 3rd
. Floor

Boston MA 02116

$100,000 $100,000 $200,000

TOTALS; $200,000 $200,000 $400,000

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and
2021; with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified

05-95-042-79220000-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY. CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES. REFUGEE
SERVICES

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (222201)

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account

Class Title Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased.

Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2019 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for 42200024 $12,500 $37,500 $50,000
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His Excellency. Governor Chrisiopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Prog Svcs

2021 102/500731
Contracts for

Pfoo Svcs
42200024 $0 $50,000 $50,000

2022 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 $o' $12,500 $12,500

Subtotal: $100,000 $100,000 $200,000

International Institute of New England, Inc. (177551)

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account

Class Title Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 102/500731
Conlracis for

ProQ Svcs
42200024 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2019 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
42200024 $12,500 $37,500 $50,000

2021 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
42200024 SO $50,000 $50,000

2022 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 $0 $12,500 .$12,500

Subtotal: $100,000 $100,000 $200,000

Contract Total: $200,000 $200,000 $400,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue assisting refugee students in Concord, Manchester
and Nashua who are within one (1) year of arrival to the United States in order that they may achieve
improved acadeniic performance and social adjustments.

Approximately 200 individuals will be served from October 1. 2019 to September 30, 2021.

The original agreements included language in Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3 that allows.the
Department to renew the contracts for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of
funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization, and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services with each of
the vendors for two (2) of the two (2) years at this time.

Direct assistance is provided to newly arrived students in these areas:

•  School enrollment and orientation for students and their parents.

•  Linguistically appropriate tutoring.

•  Study support.

•  Interpretation services.

The Contractors provide culturally compentent assistance, in collaboration with agencies who
provide health and mental health care services, child care, and social services, in order to strengthen
the ability of refugee children to achieve success in New Hampshire school systems.
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His Exceltency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabte Council
Page 3 of 3

The following performance measures are used lo measure the effectiveness of these contracts;

•  Nuniber and percentage of students who achieve academic success;

•  Number of parents receiving education or training.

•  Number of school personnel who report increased cultural competence;

•  Number of incidences of linguistic support provided in schools by Contractors;

•  Participation in school-sponsored programs;

•  Effectiveness of health care referrals;

•  Number of parents attending parent-teacher conferences;

•  Percent of referrals and attendance at after school programs; and

•  Percentage of students assisted with registration for summer programs.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugee children and their
parents may lack support necessary to succeed in the Manchester, Nashua, and Concord school
systems.

Area served: Concord, Manchester, and Nashua

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Administration for Children and Families.
Office of Refugee Resettlement. Refugee and Entrant Assistance. Stale Administered Programs -
Refugee health Promotion Grant. Federal Office of Refugee Resettlement. CFOA# 93.566. FAIN #
1901NHRSOC.

In.the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

spectfully submitted

ey Meyers
mlssioner

Vm Dcporlnxtnl cf Henllhond Hunwn S<fuieet'Mission is to join communilics ond foniilies
in providing opportunities for ciluens to oehicue heollh ond independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the Refugee School Impact Program-Contract

This 1** Amendment to the Refugee School Impact Program contract (hereinafter refened to as
'Amendment #1*) is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or 'Department') and Ascentria Community Services. Inc..
(hereinafter referred to as the Contractor"), a rwnprofit with a place of business at 14 East Worcester St.
Suite 300. Worcester, Massachusetts 01604.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 21, 2018 (Item #8), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms end
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of worV, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Section 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, Section 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the partly agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract ard prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #1 remain In full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Oontract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

2. September 30, 2021.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$200,000.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

5. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

6. Delete Exhibit B-3 Budget and replace with Exhibit B-3, Amervtment #1, Budget Sheet

7. Add Exhibit 6-4 Amendment Hfl, Budget.

8. Add Exhibit 8-5 Amendment #1, Budget.

9. Delete Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements. 6/6017 and replace with ExhibH K.

DHHS Information Security Requirements, V5. Last update 10/09/18.

AsccfibiaCommurrity Services, Inc., Amendment 41 Contrsctor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

•g7.z--n
Date lame:t^ri*l^€rU^C^

•tie: hS5ac^'cCi<^C0UMi^t<U^r

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.,

Date Name;

Title: i rni

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

m  , County of_State of on hj>h before the

undersigned .officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the,person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

/-
Signature of Notary Public ̂ Justice of the Peace

f^r\ A Ob
Jarne and Title of Notary or Junlce of the PeaceName and Title of Notary

My Corrimission Expires:

^  PARISA AHMARIPOUR
NolO'V Public

COMMOMW«MtHO>MAU/.CMl'«UJ
My Commiition
S>Dt»n>0»i 10.

Ascentrio Community Serviofis, Inc.,

RFP-2018-OHE-01.REFUG-01

Amendment 81

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
executbn.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Oate Name:
Title:

Ascentrio Community Servicas, Inc., Amendment

RFP.20lft-OH£-0l-REFUG-01 Pofl© 3 of 3
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Exhibit &4, Amendment 91. Budget Sheet
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Eihlblt Amendment 01, Budget Sheet
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other.than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information. * Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security InckJenf shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incidenr in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data' means all confidential information
disdosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information induding without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential information also Indudes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disdosure. protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTl), iSocial Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business assodate, subcontractor, oti^er do^stream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident* means an act that potentially violates an explidt or implied security policy,
which indudes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, Instruction, or
consent. Inddents indude the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

VS.LOJIupdate I0rt)9n8 ExhMK CootractofInfUete
DHHS InfonmoUon
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New Hampshire Departmertt of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modlftcation or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network* means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information

• Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) vril) be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or donfidential DHHS data.

0. 'Personal Information' (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an indtvidual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or klentlfyir)g information which is (inked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Paris 160 end 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and arnendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Infonrnatlon* means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a techrwiogy standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBIUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Conftdential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Infonmalion
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and egents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

VS.LalupdAto 10/DS'16 EihbftK Contrscterli^ti&li
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for drsctosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.,-without first notifying DHHS so that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notiries the Contractor .that DHHS has agreed to t>e bound by additional
restrictions over and at)ove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such sddKtonal
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not t)6 used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

I). METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End .User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted .Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password^protected.

6. Open Wireless Networ1<s. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Lml update 10A)»16 EdiMK Contractor! nhlata
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless rtetwork.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devioe(8) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Conftdential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Conftdential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days' to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees H will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connectjon with the services rendered urxler this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. Ail servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, ahti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusior)-detection and fcrewaii protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
. Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic madid containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance Nvrth industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 600-68, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanrtization, National Institute of Standards and Techrtology, U. S.
Department oif Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certificatiori to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include -all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be. jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor wil| maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems t^t coDect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will , ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or
Department confidential infonnation for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness end education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub^ntractlng any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will worX with the Department to sign and comply with at! applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system{s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access t>eing authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will worX with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagemerit. The survey will be completed
annually, or an altemate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will no! store, knovyingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express vmtten consent is obtained from the Irtformatlon Security Office
leadership memt)er within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, indudirtg but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicabia statutes and regulations regarding the
' privacy and 8ecu(% of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects

maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 tJ.S.C. § 552a), OHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide .a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, end

.  procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the ernail addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a corrfidential Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire netNvorlc.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such OHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that ail End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PR are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential information only rf enavpted and t>eing
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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6. limit disclosure of the Corrfidentia! Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Conridenllal information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically arid technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biomethc identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, induding any
derivative files containing personalty identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disdosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight ar^ compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspectionis to monitor compliance with this
Contract, induding the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how tfie Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to incidents; and

VS.Lotuptfats 10A8/18 Controctor Inftiel*
OHHS IrtfDfmsUoo

SeeuHty Rsqirirements
r^gofiofS Oaio JKVW
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/

Jeffrey A. Meyers
ConunJulooer

Trlnidid Tellei. MD
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY

97 PLEASANT STREET CONCORD. NH 0330l-aM7
603-271-3986 i-eOO-86»346 Ezt S966

Pas; 603-271-0824 TOD Access: 1400-736-2964 www.dbhi.oh.0ov

February 27. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Stale House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Office of Health Equity, to enter into
retroactive agreements with the two (2) vendors listed below, for the New Hampshire School Impact
Program, in an amount not to exceed $200,000. to provide school related services to newly arriving
and vulnerable New Hampshire refugees effective retroactive to November 1. 2017, upon Governor
and Executive Council approval, through September 30. 2019. .100% Federal Funds.

VENDOR VENDOR ADDRESS
VENDOR

NUMBER

TOTAL

AMOUNT

Ascentria Community Services.
Inc.

261 Sheep Davis Rd. Suite A-1
Concord NH 03301

222201 $100,000

International Institute of New

England. Inc.

2 Boylston Street. 3rd Floor
Boston MA 02116

177551 $100,000

TOTAL; $200,000

rui lUd oi c available mi ii iw

anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020. upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office without further approval from Governor and Executive Council, if
needed and justified.

05-95-042-79220000-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES, REFUGEE
SERVICES

Ascentfia Community Services, Inc. (222201)

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 422.00024 $37,500

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $50,000

2020 , 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $12,500

Subtotal: $100,000
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Council

Page 2 o( 3

International Institute of New England, Inc. (1775S1)

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $37,500

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $50,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $12,500

Subtotal: $100,000

Contract Total: $200,000

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because, the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services.
Administration for Children and Families. Office of Refugee Resettlement, was delayed in issuing the
Notices of Award to all recipients. The delays at the federal level resulted in delays for the New
Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services in receiving and accepting the funds for this
contract.

Funds in these agreements wifl be used to assist refugee students in Concord. Manchester and
Nashua, who are within one (1) year of arrival to the United States, to achieve improved academic
performance and social adjustment. Direct assistance will be provided to newiy arrived students in
these areas;

•  School enrollment and orientation for students and their parents.

•  Linguistically appropriate tutoring.

•  Study support.

•  Transiation services.

The selected vendors will provide culturally compentent assistance -in collaboration with
agencies who provide health and mental health care services, child care, and social services in order to
strengthen the ability of refugee children to achieve success in New Hampshire school systems.

Ascentria Community Services. Inc., and International Institute of New England. Inc., were
selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on the
Department of Health and Human Services' website from April 10, 2017 through June 8. 2017.

The Department received two (2) proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a
team of individuals with program specific knowledge. Their decision followed a thorough discussion of
the strengths and weaknesses of the proposals. The final decision was made through consensus
scoring. The Score Summary is attached.

These agreements Include Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General Provisions, paragraph 3. which
reserves the Department's option to renew contract services for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to continued funding, satisfaction with vendor services and approval of the Governor and Executive-
Council,.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of
these contracts:

•  Number and percentage of students who achieve academic success;
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Hts Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 3 of 3

•  Number of parents receiving education or training.

•  Number of school personnel who report increased cultural competence;

•  Number of incidences of linguistic support provided in schools by Contractors:

•  Participation In school-sponsored programs;

•  Effectiveness of health care referrals;

•  Number of parents attending parent-teacher conferences;

•  Percent of referrals and attendance at after school programs; and

•  Percentage of students assisted with registration for summer programs.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, refugee children and their
parents may tack support necessary to succeed in the Manchester. Nashua, and Concord school
systems.

Area served; Concord. Manchester, and Nashua

Source of Funds: ^Q0% Federal Funds from the Administration for Children and Families.
Office of Refugee Resettlement, Refugee and Entrant Assistance. State Administered Programs -
Refugee health Promotion Grant. Federal Office of Refugee Resettlement.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, Genera! Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Rettoectfully submihed.

j
Trinidad Tellez, MD
ktector'

Approved by: y^rey A. Meyers
^mmissioner

Th« Deporlmenl of Health ond Human Services'Miuion is Utoin commun ities and families
in pfouiding of}}iortunilies for eitium to ochUve heaUh and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

NH Refugee School impact Program

RFP Name

RFP-20ie*OHE-01-REFUG

RFP Number Reviewer Names

•

Bidder Name Mailmum

Points

Actual

Points
2.

Aneta Kn/sdca. Program Coordinator-

V

Ascentria Community Services. Inc. 6S0 605

3.

Bart»ra Seebart. Program SpociaBst IV

2.

International Institute of New England; Inc.- 650 533

4.

Shawn Barry. Program Specialist Ml

TtvtidadTeQez. Sysytem Specialist

5.
lauara McGtasten. Pfoqram Speciafisi in

6.

Pbllip Nadeau. Administrator HI
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Subjcci: Refugee School Impact Pfogn>m-RfP-?Ql«-QHF-QI'REFHG-01.
FORM NUMBER P07(vfnloo 5«/15)

Noiice: This ogrcemcni and ail of its aiiachmenis shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any informaiion that is private, conndential or proprietary must
be clearly ideniifted to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The Sute of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

t.l Slate Agency Name
NH Department ofHealih and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 ConiraaorName

Asceniria Community Services, Inc.

0^

1.4 Contractor Address

14 East Worcester Street Suite 300

Worcester, MA 01604

i .S Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 224.811!

1.6 Account Number

05-95.90-42200024.79220000-

500731

1.7 Completion Date

September 30, 2019

1.8 Price Limilfiiion

SI 00,000

1.9 Contracting OfTiccr for State AgetKy"
E. Maria Reinem^n. Esq.
Director of Contracts and Procuremetit

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9330

l.il Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

ck/ktwledgeme , County of

On ■ before jjip^undersigned ofTtcer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven io be ihe^^n wh^ nari^ is signed in block 1.11, or>d acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Sigruiure ot'Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal]
AMBLH L HAB'.

A" NOTARY PtjBUC • NEW HAMPSKRE V
Wy QanmtUaion Eapkaa Mgtfr 23> g(B1

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

j Rdrrtt r\
l.ts Name and Title of State Agency Signatoryi^<i4a«v»/

t  .fFT^provtl by the N.H. Depann^t"b^Adminiaration. Diviaon of Personnel fi/applicahlt)
By. Director, On:

_

I  17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifepplicable)
f} A /\

B)

i .lfi Approval by the Governor arid Exccutive^RQ'fjcil (if^pj>llcoble)

By / / O"-

5 7

Page 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New Hampshire, acting
(hrough (he agency identined in block I.I ("Stale"), engages
contractor identined in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, idcmificd aixl more paniculaHy described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OFSERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to (he approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hercundcr, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, In which case
the Agreement shall become effeetive on the date the
Agreement is sighed by (he State Agency as shown in bloctc
1.14 ("•Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, oil Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in (he event that (his Agreement does not
become efteciive; the Slate shall have no liability to the
Coniractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONOmONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrecmem to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercundcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercundcr, ore
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no ev^ni shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropnaied funds, the State shall have (he right to withhold
payment until such Funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agrecmem immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to (he Account identified in block 1.6 in (he eyeni funds in that
Aceouni are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment ere identified and more panicularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is Incorporated herein by refcreiKc.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be (he
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be (he only and the complete
comxnsalion to the Contractor for the Services. The Stale
shall have no liability to (he Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The Stale reserves the right to offset from arty amounts
otherwise payable to the Coniractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7.c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agrcctrvnt to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in .
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
mode hercundcr, exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not lirriited to. civil rights and equal oppcnunily
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
' aids and services to ensure that communication

disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, (he Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Coniractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
alTtrmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or (he United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor funhc'r agrees to
Xmiii the State or United Sutes access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
end the covenants, terms and conditions of this A^ecment.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own cxxnsc provide all
Xrsonnel necessary to xrform the Services! The Contractor
warrants that all engaged in the Services shall be ^
qualified lo-xrfoTrt'ihe Services, and Shall X pfoxriy
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws. >

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a xriod of six (6) rrtonihs after the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contrecior shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other x^'^i or
corporation with whom ii is engaged in a combined effort to
xrform the Services to hire, any is a State
employee or olTlcia), who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or xrf^rmance of this

0f4

Contractor bitials

Date
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting OfTicer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Conuacting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF default/remedies.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcreundcr
("Event of Default");
8.) .1 failure to pcrfonn the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule'.

8.) .2 failure (0 submit any report required hcreundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrcrtcc of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring ii.to be remedied within, in the
absence ofo greater or lesser specification of time, Ihiny (30)
days from the dale of the notice: and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate ihis Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
' of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this

Agrctmcni and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor; .
8.2.3 set offogainst any other obligations Ihc State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of ony
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 irai the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 AS used in this Agrecmcm, the word "data" shall mean all
irtformation and things developed or obtained during Ihc
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, ittcluding, but not limited to, all studies, r^orts.
flics, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, attalyscs,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
undCT this Agreement, shall be ihc property of (he State, arid
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
lerminaiionof this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RS A
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior wrtuen approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of on early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earrted, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be Ideniics) to (hose of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTORS RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of.this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and.is neither an ageni nor
an employee of Ihc State. Neither ihe Contractor nor ony of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind (he State or receive ony benefits, workers' compeitsation
or other emoluments provided by (he Slate to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in ihi.s Agreement without the prior written notice and

■ consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subconmcied by the Contractor without (he prior written
notice and consent ofihe State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend, .
indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all loss« suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
iiftbiliiies or penalties asserted against the State, its ofTicers .
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
conuirted shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of Ihc
sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Suic. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
Survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. insurance.

14.1 The Coniraetor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
Ksignee to obtain and maintain in force, (he following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive'general liability insurance tgainS all
claims of b^ily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .(XlO.OOOper occurrence and S2.000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
StaleofNew Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers liccns^ in the State of New
Hampshire.

3 of 4
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14.3 The Coniractof shall furnish to ihcComraciing OfTicer
idenitfied in block 1.9. or his'or her successor, a ccriincaiefs)
of Insurartce for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish lo the Contracting Officer
idem! ficd in block 1.9. or his or her successor, cenificaiefs) of
insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than ihiny (30) days prior lo the expiration

'date of each of the insurance policies. The certificaic($) of
insurance and any renewals (hereof shall be attached and arc
iiKorporotcd herein by reference. Each cenificaie($) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Comractirg Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her succcssoi;, no less than thiny (30) days prior written
notice of cancelUtiort or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.
IS.I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies Ond warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
(" Worktrs' Cemptnjalion ").
Ii.7 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RS A chapter 281 - A. Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with aciivtiics which the person proposes to .
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer idcniificd in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Competisaiion in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rcncwal($) thereof, which shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The State ."ihall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Conlfacior. which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers
Compensation laws in connection with ibc performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAJVER OF breach. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Dcfouli. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Slate to enforce each and oil of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of DeftiuU
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parlies at the addresso
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

16. AMENDMEI^. This Agreement may be amended;
waived or discharged only by an itwrMmcnt in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only aflcr approval of such
amendmem, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

Such approval is required under the circumstances pursiiani to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in acctjrdance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and Is binding upon and
irtures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties lo express their mutual
imertt, and rto rule ofcortsiruction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD Parties. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. headings. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be.held lo explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the intcrprttaiion, consiruciiort or meaning of the
provisiorw of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABIUTY. Inthe event any of the provisioitsof
this Agreement are held by a court of compeierti jurisdiction to
be contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agrcemcni will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may -
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed on original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supcrs^es all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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Now Hampshiro Doporlmcnt of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the .language
assistance services they will provide to- persons with limited English
proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services
within Ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2.' The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an
impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to
modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall implement a Refugee School Impact (RSI) program to
provide culturally appropriate school support to refugee students and their
families in the Concord and Nashua school districts.

1.4: The Contractor shall ensure translation and Interpretation services are
available to:

1.4.1. Bhutanese refugee students and their families.

' 1.4.2. Congolese refugee students and their families.

1.4.3. Rohingya refugee students and their families.

1.5. The Contractor shall meet the language needs of a!) refugee students and
their famities.in the course of providing services.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall provide services to elementary through high school
aged refugees in the Concord and Nashua School Districts, who have been
resettled through the Contractor's Services for New Americans Program,
and who have been In the United States for less than one (1). year at the
beginning of the school year. Refugees may Include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Asylees.

2.1.2. SIVs (special immigrant visas).

2.1.3. Other Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) defined eligible
Immigrants.

2.1.4. Secondary migrants If they move to the Concord or Nashua
communities.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide services to a range of students from fifty (50) to
one hundred fifty (150) students, of which:

2.2.1. .Forty (40) to one hundred (100) shall be in the Concord schopl
district.

Ascefitria Community Sorvicos;. Inc. Exhibit A

Rrp-20ISOHE-0>-REFUCEE-0l Poeatol?

ContfBctfir (mttab
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New Hempshlre Oepertiriflnl of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program
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2.2.2. Ten (10) to fifty (50) shall be in the Nashua school district.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide services to to students that Include, but are not
limited to;

2.3.1. Enhanced registration services at the high school, middle school
and elementary school levels including, but not limited to:

2.3.1.1. Coordinate deliveries of backpacks and school supplies.

2.3.1.2. Coordinating school tours.

2.3.1.3. Facilitate scheduling of tests as well as. appointments
with guidance departments.

2.3.1.4. Coordinate transportation for school orientation tours.

2.3.2. Comprehensive school orientations for students that indue, but are
not limited to:

2.3.2.1. Enhanced school registrations.

2.3.2.2. Age appropriate equivalaent systems.

2.3.2.3. Advocate services to obtain classroom support for
students with academic or social challenges.

2.3.3. The Promote Perseverance. Respect. Integrity. Discipline and
Excellence (PRIDE) in the Middle schools, which indudes but is not
limited to:

2.3.3.1. Working in partnership with the Concord School District
through its 21st Century (21C) after-school program as '
well as collaborating with other community partners to
make referrals to other after-school 'and rnentoring
programs, which may include but are not limited to:

2.3.3.1.1. Boys and Girls (B&G) Club.

2.3.3.1.2. New American Africans.

2.3.3.1.3. Organization for Success.

2.3.3.1.4. Congolese Community of NH.

2.3.3.1.5. Building Community In NH.

2.3.3.1.6. The Friends Program.

2.3.3.2. Working in partnership with the Nashua School District to
learn about other after-school programs in order to make
appropriale referrals, indudlng assisting with referrals
and registration completion to summer programs for all
eligible students who otherwise may nol be referred by
the school districts, which may include, but are not limited
to:

Ascertlria ComiTiunity Sorvicos. Inc. E*NWiA Conwctw inWah,
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2.3.3.3. YMCA.

2.3.3.4. B&G Club.

2.3.3.5. Christa McAulrffe Space Camp.

2.3 3.6. Ballet North Dance Camp.

2.3.3.7. The Friend's Program.

2.3.3.8. 21st Century.

2.3.3.9. Ethnic Community Based Organizations (ECBOs)

2.3.4. A minimum of ten (10) leadership development opportunities for
students in the Concord and Nashua school districts at all levels, of

which five (5) shall be available to the Concord school district
students and five (5) shall be available to the Nashua school district
students, which may include, but are not limited to:

2.3.4.1. The student led initiative. 'Be The Change Club,' at the
Concord High School.

2.3.4.2. A civic engagement club at the Middle school in Concord.

2.3.4.3. Speaker's bureaus.

2.3.4.4. Community presentations.

2.3.4.5. Youth leadership summits.

2.4. The. Contractor shall provide Parent Orientations that assist parents with
understanding school policies, procedures, and requirements that include,
but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Guiding parents through the school system.

2.4.2. Understanding school academic testing practices.

2.4.3. Understanding homework expectations.

2.4.4. Understanding how to interpret student reports.

2.4.5. Providing an introduction to post-secondary education options.

2.4.6. Assisting individuals with school and after school program
registration paperwork.

2.4.7. Assisting individuals with completing the free and reduced lunch
applications.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide support to the students and parents through
the Attendance. Performance. Behavior (APB) Program thorugh activities
(hat include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Assisting parents to encourage students to meet the criteria of
perfect attendance.

2.5.2. Assisting students and parents with understanding passing grade

Astcnt/ia CoTTununily Services, tnc. ExMbQA Contraoor MUob
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performance.

2.5.3. Setting a goal of no disciplinary actions for behavior.

2.5.4. Assisting parents and students wjyi transportation, if necessary, at
the middle school level.

2.5.5. Conducting home visits with elementary students and their families
to leam about reasons for absences when they occur.

2.6. The Contractor shall conduct English Language Learner (ELL) Family nights
at each school level.

2.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Nashua School District to explore
the feasibility of implementing Family'Nights that Include ELL students at all
levels within the district, which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.7.1. Promoting parents and teachers to come together in a relaxed
atmosphere.

2.7.2. Promoting engagement and learning to both parents and teachers.

2.8. The Contractor shall provide case management and support services to
refugee students and their parents/families/which include but are not limited
to:

2.6.1. Access to healthcare services.

2.6.2. Access to mental health services.

2.8.3. Access to housing services and/or assistance.

2.8.4. Other social support sen/ices and trainings.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide linguistically and culturally appropriate school-
related programs and services, which shall Include, but not be limited to:

2.9.1. Providing training to Concord and Nashua school district personnel,
regarding linguistic and cultural competence.

2.9.2. Providing ongoing orientations at all levels for teachers, school
administrators and guidance counselors on the subject of refugee
children in the United States education system.

2.9.3. Providing ongoing education to school personnel to ensure current
knowledge, skills and best practices are utilized when providing
services to refugee populations.

"2.9.4.. Utilizing evidence based practices as described In online resources
of BRYCS-Bridglng Refugee Youth and Children's Services.

2.9.5. Assisting with the education of school districts and
related/associated partners about national Culturally and
Linguistically Appropriate Services(Cl-AS) standards and facilitating
their use of appropriate interpreter/translation services.

2.9.6. Offering linguistic services through case management staff, vj^hen
AsccnWa CofnjTvunUy Services. liK. EnhJbHA Convactof inJUab,
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possible.

2.10. The Conlractor shall provide communication assistance to all limited English
proricient and deaf or hard of hearing refugees. The Contractor shall ensure
that:

2.10.1. Services are provided at no cost to the client, at key points of
contact, ensuring direct contact with Contractor's staff.

2.10.2. The reception office is equipped with 'I Speak' signage.

2.10.3. Communication access Is delivered in a timely manner whether in-
person or over-the-phone.

2.10.4. Case .file forms are reviewed and prioritized for translation services.

2.10.5. Staff conduct intake with refugee families to:

2.10.5.1. Verify information provided from overseas.

2.10.5.2. Identify and note preferred languages.

2.10.5.3. Identify linguist needs.

2.10.6. All resettlement services, including communication assistance
services are provided at no cost to the client.

2.10.7. Procedures for filing a discrimination complaint are verbally
explained and currently translated in Arabic. French, Kinyarwanda.
Nepali, Somali and Swahili.

2.10.8. Periodic evaluation of the effectiveness of communication access
services through client satisfaction surveys, vendor satisfaction
surveys and individual feedback.

2.10.9. Modifications to services are made, as needed, based on the
feedback received from surveys described in Section 2.16.8,
above.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain a diverse staff that reflects the demographics
of the population served.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the staff is trained on federal civil rights laws
cornpliance. Including policies and procedures for handling discrimination
corhplainls.

3.3. The Conlractor shall ensure a .70 full-time equivalent Education Liaison is
embedded In Concord School District.

3.4. The Contractor shall employ a .05 full time equivalent administrative support
staff.

3.5. The Contractor shall ensure each employee and volunteer providing
services to students in this agreement completes the forms as follows:

A$ccnlri8 Community Sorvlcos. inc. erfiteH a Contr»eior wilon
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3.6. The State of NH Criminal Background Check form. The Contractor shall:

3.6.1. Ensure the form and payments of associated fees are submitted to
the Department of Safety for processing.

3.6.2. Ensure results received from the Department of Safety are on file,
on premises and available to the Department upon request.

3.7. The Contractor shall meet with the Department a minimum of one (1) lime
per month to provide updates on progress' toward meeting performance
measures, program goals and program objectives.

4. Reporting ^
4.1. The Contractor shall provide narrative reports with a summary of project

outcomes to the Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the
month following the close of the reporting period in Subsection 4.2. Table 1.

- 4.2. Tablet

Reporting Period Trimester Report Due Date

10/1/2017- 1/31/2018 2/15/2018

2/1/2018-5/31/2018 6/15/2018

6/1/2018-9/30/2018 10/15/2018

10/1/2018- 1/31/2019 2/15/2019

2/1/2019-5/31/2019 6/15/2019

6/1/2019-9/30/2019 10/15/2019

Asceniria Community Services. If>c.
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5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall address academic and social needs of refugee
students in the Concord and Nashua School Districts starting no later than
ten (10) days after the effective date of the Contract, in order to prepare
them and their families for full participation in school activities.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of three (3) ELL Family Nights
described in Section 2.6. above, no later than September 30,2018.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of three (3) ELL Family nights,
described in Section 2.6 ak>ove. between Octolser 1. 2016 and the

completion date of the contract.

5.4. The Contractor shall conduct a minimum of three (3) trainings described in
Section 2.9.1, above, to. school district personnel In the Concord School
District.

5.5. The. Contractor shall conduct a minimum of three (3) trainings described in
Section 2.9.1, above, to school district personnel in the Nashua School
District.

6. Performance Measures

6.1. The Contract or shall ensure that:

6.1.1. At least 90% of refugee families complete the New Refugee School
Orientation Program.

6.1.2. 90% of the parents of refugee children participate in at iWst one (1)
parent/teacher conference.

6.1.3. 90% of the parents of refugee children participate in at least one (1)
school Open Hose event.

6.1.4. 85% of refugee families participate in at least one (1) Family
Literacy event.

6.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan for any
performance measure not achieved on a monthly basis.

Asc«nlrldConvnuni)y Sonficos, Inc. ExNblt-A Contnoor Inftlsls.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract is funded with funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services.
Federal Office of Refugee Resettlement. US Department of Health and Hurrtan Services.
Federal Office of Refugee Resettlement. Refugee School Impact (RSI) Program, CFDA
#93.566.

2. The Slate shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, General
Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to
Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

3. The Contractor shall use and appty all contract funds for authorized direct and iridirect costs
to provide services in Exhibit A Scope of Services, in accordance with Exhibit B-1. Budget,
Exhibit B-2. Budget and Exhibit B-3. Budget.

4. Payment for services provided in accordance with Exhibit A, shall be made as follows:
4.1. Payments shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis only for allowable costs,

expenses and fees identified in Exhibit B-1. Budget; Exhibit-B-2,^Budget and Exhibit
B-3. Budget.

4.2. Allowable costs and expenses shall include only those expenses detailed in Exhibit
B-1, Budget. Exhibit B-2. Budget and Exhibit 6-3 Budget.

4.3. .The Contractor shall submit additional expenditure documentation to support
amounts idenlifred for reimbursement, as requested by the Department. The
Contractor shall:

4.3.1. Ensure expenditure documentation verifies the amounts requested.

4.3.2. Be prepared to respond to the Department's request for expenditure
documentation for any given month prior to the month of receiving notification
for documentation.

4.3.3. Ensure expenditure documentation includes enough infomiation to allow
Department to determine that the requested amounts on the invoice are
consistent with the allowable purposes pursuant to Exhibit B-1. BudgeL
Exhibit B-2, Budget; and/or Exhibit B-3. Budget. Documentation may include,
but is not limited to:

4.3.3.1. Receipts.

4.3.3.2. Timecards.

4.3.3.3. Cost allocation sheets.

4.3.3.4. Credit card statements.

20t8-OHE-01-REFU6-01 ExhlbllB Conlfaclorlnilials
Ascanlria Communily Services. Inc.
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4.4. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Slate by the
twentieth (20th) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.5. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in
order to initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities
related to Department programs and services.

4.6. ' The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds
are available.

4.7. The Contractor shall submit a final invoice to the State no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date identified iri Form P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

4.6. In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to: Barbara.seebaft@dhhs.nh.QOv. Otherwise, invoices shall be mailed to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Office of Health Equity
97 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

4.9. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified In Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both
parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Coundl.

20lS-OHE-014=tEFUG-01 Exhibit B ConUsctor Initials
Ascentrifi Community Services. Inc.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compllanco with Federal and State Laws: If the Contraclor Is permitted to deiermine the eligibility
of individuals, such eligibility determirtalion shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
slate laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and IWenner of Dotormlnotlon: Eligibliiry determinations shaD be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documonlotlon: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data Hie on each recipient of services hereunder, which'file shall include aP
information necessary to support an eiigibiPty deterrninalion and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ail forms and documentation
regarding eligibility dcterminatiorxs that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contraclor hereby covenants and agrees that aQ applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each appPcani or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees (hat it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of cmploymeni on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Slate In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this.
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement If it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor'or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that f>o payments wit! be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred lor
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided

■ prior to the dale on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rale which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds ihe amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the qualiiy of such service, or at a
rale which exceeds Ihe rate charged by the Contractor to indigible individuals or other third party
fundisrs for such service. If at any lime during the term of this Conuacl or after r^ipt of Ihe Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall deiermine that the Contraclor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Dcparlmenl n^ay elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimtwrsement In

excess of costs;

Exhbitc-special Provisions Controctor inltfa^
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7.3. Oemar>d repayment of the excess payment by the Ccnlrador in which event failure to make
such repayment shall consUlute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibiCty of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time durirtg the period of retention of records estabfished herein.

RECORDS: flrlAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AtJDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFlDENTlALtTY:

8. Maintenance of Records; In addition to iho eligibility records specified above, the Contractor ^
covenants or>d ogrccs to maintain the foilowirtg records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
mainlaincd in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficienliy and
properly reflect all such costs and exp^hses. and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, recads. and original evidence of costs such es
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of

•  in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, end other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollmeni. attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required lo determine eUgibillty for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment (or such services. ,

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Coniracior shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an arviual audit lo the Department within 60 days after the dose of the
agency fiscal year. Ii is recommended thai the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Managemcni end Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organiialions' end the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organijatlons.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain lo ftnanciai compliance audits.
9.1. Audil and Review; During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Oepartmenl. the United Slates Department of Heallh and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access lo aD reports and records matniained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audil. examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audil Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood end agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any stale
or federal audit exceptions arxJ shall return lo tiie Department, all payments made under the
Contract to v^ich exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services artd the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by Ihe Contraclor. provided however, thai pursuant to stale laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of su^ information, disclosure may be made lo
public officiafs requiring such irtfonaaiion in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly cortnected to the administration of ihe services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose noi
direcUy connected with Ihe administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities wllh
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

ExWbU C - Sp«i#i PfOvisioM Conwcrof iniUao
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Notwilhatanding anylhlrtg lo Ihc contrery contained herein the covenants and conditions contairted in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination ol the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

n. Reports: Fiscal and Slatrsiical: The Conuactor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the OcpartmenL ^ »
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descnplwn of

ell costs and non-allowable expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
cor^lainlng such other informaUon as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Depertmeni to
justify the rate of payment hereurxJer. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Oepertmeni or deemed aoUsfactory by tho Deportment.

11 2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within Ihir^ (30) days after the end of the term
of this Coni/acl. Tho Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement ol progress toward goals and ot^ectlves stated in the. Proposal
and other Information required by the Department

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Dcpa^eni of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price Bmitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the lerrns of the Ckmtracl are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final ExperxJilure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

,13, Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of tha services of the Contract shall include the following
statement: ■ w .u c. .
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the blate

of New Hampshire, Oepertmeni of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the Slate of.New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as wore available or
required, e.g.. the United Stales Department of Health end Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyrighl Ownership: AD materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS wBI relam copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract vrithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Oporotlon of FaclHtios: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any facilities
fo/ pfovidifvg services, the Conuactor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of ledcrai.
state, county and municipal authorities and sWth any direction of any Public Officer or ofTfcers
pursuant to laws which shall impose en order or duly upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of Ihe services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said senricos.
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, ar>d will at all lirnas comply with the terms end
conditions of each such license or permit. In correction with the foregoing requirements, the
Conuactor hereby covenants and agrees that, durir^g the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with ail rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16 Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Conuactor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

e*h'biiC-Sp«cJ«l Provisions ControGor Initials
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on Tile errd submit an E60P Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For redpicnis receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardlass of the amount of the award, the recipient will provtde^an
EEQP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, end medical and educational institutions ore exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certiftcation Forms are available at: http://www.oip.usdoi/about/oa/pdfs/ceri.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons wlih Limited English Proficiency, ond resulting agency guidance, national origin
dischminotion includes discrimination on the basis of limited Er>glish proficierxy (LEP). To ensure
compRence with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningri.d access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstloblower Protections; The
following shall apply to aO contracts that exceed the Sirhpllfled Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currentty. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Wmistleblower Rights and Requirement To inform Employees of
Wmstleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistlebiower righte
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistlebiower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 028 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Coniraclof shall Inform its employees in writing. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistlebiower rights and prptectior^s under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In an
subcontracts over the simpliried acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that the Conlrector may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the functioh(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evatuaie the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functjon(s). This is accomplished through a written egrecment that speciftcs activities end reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor end provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject l"o the same contractual
•conditions as the Contractor and the Conuactor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
vnlh those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsbiiities and how sanctions/revocelion will be managed If the subconlractor-'s
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subconlroclor's performarKO on an ongoing basis

EKrtOhC-Special Provbtom Conwctor Wfoto
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontraclors. delegated functions and
fesponsibilllies. and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHMS shall, at its discretion, review and approve ai) subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
lake corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms rfiall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost end accounting principles established in accordance
with Slate and federal laws, regulations, oiies and orders.

DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health end Human Services.

FINANCIAL fMNAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean that section of (he Contractor Manual which is
entitled 'Financial Management Guidelines* and wh'ch contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of (^tractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL; II applicable, shall mean the document submlited by the Conuactor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
Individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cosi and sources of revenue for each service to be provided urtder (he Contract.

UNIT; For each service that the Contractor is lo provide to eligible Individuals hereunder. shall mean thai
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW; Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to ̂ me.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL; Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regutalions promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act NH RSA Ch 541 -A. lor the purpose of implemenling Stale of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Extvbil C - Sp«dAl Prevbbru Contractor lr>llleb
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REVlStONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this coniract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Nolvnthstandif>g any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ail obligations of the Stale
hereunder. Including without limilation. the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under
this Agreement ere contingenl upon continued appropriation or availability of furxls. including
any subsequent chartges to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or
federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or othenvise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in
Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction,
termlr\3iion or modificelion of appropriated or available funds, the Slate shall have the right to
withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever., The Stale shall have the right to
reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification. The Slate shall nol be required
to transfer funds from any other source or account into the Accounl(s) Identified in block 1.6 of
the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced
or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of ihis contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following Idnguage:

10.1 The Slate may-terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Stale, 30 days after giving the Contractor v/ritten notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of earty termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement. Including but not limited to. Identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Stale and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support'the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any infomnation or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to cliertls receiving
services under the Agreement are (ransillcned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the Stale, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Stale as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Goverr>of and Executive Council.

Exhibil'C-1 - Revisions to Generol Provisions Corttroctor Iniiials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG^FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Conlracior idenUfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Freis Woriiplace Ad of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et $eq.). and furlher agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foltowing Certincalion;

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certifrcation is required by Ihe regulations implementing Sections 5151-5l$0 of the Drug-Pree
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. THle V. Subtille 0:41 U.S.C. 701 et seq,). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and pubBshed as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grartlees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a Stale
may elect to make one certification to the Oepartmeni in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certlficotes for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certificfltior^. The certificale set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance b placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of Ihe certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmcnt. Contractors usir>g this form should
send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Servicas
129 Pleasanl Street.

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying emptoyecs that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance b prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a .drug-free woikplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabililalion. ar>d employee assblance programs; and
i!2.4. The penatlios that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the vrorkplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee lo be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of Ihe statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in Ihe statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employmenl ur>der the grant, the employee Will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of hb or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

'  statute occurring In the vrorkplace no later than five calendar.days after such
conviclion;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, lo every grant
officer on whoso grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit 0 - CertllcrtooiepartinoOiuB Ff«« Contrsciv Wiiaii
WorkptoM ReqiJrem«n(s
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identificalion hunnber(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. wHh respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Takir>g appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

terrriination. consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended: or ■

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to panicipate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. Slate, or local health,
iaw enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2.1.3. 1.4. 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the 8ite{s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific graoL

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there ere workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Contractor Name: ^Irrv^lVlvv^^k| CW., T'oc.

Dati ' Name.'

Eihlbii 0 - CertiScailon fegardlng Drug Fr« Coreador trttJalj
Wor*fil»c« Rc^ulremenis
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Conlraclof identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sectioh 319 of Public Law iOl •121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. ond further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections i.H
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: '•

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
•Temporery Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
XhiW Support Enforcemenl Program under Title IV-0
'Social Services Block Grant Program-.under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Tjile VI
•Child Care Devclopmonl Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to ^
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub^grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or. an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the uridersigncd shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Fom to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as StarxJard Exhibit E-i.)

3  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under gmnts.
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

\

This cerliftcalion is a material representation of fad upon which reliance was placed when this ifansaclion
was made or entered into. Submission of this certrticalion is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
t/ansactlon imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any persw who fails to file the required _
certification shall be.subject to a civil penalty of not less than SlO.OOO ond not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: iHceniocv- J/^c,

•2.

Date ^ ^ . Narne!^
Title:

e - CertiflcaJSon Reflsrding Lobbying Conincior Iniltaii
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING OEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor tdentiTted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisiona agrees to comply with the provisbns of
Executive Office of the President. lExecutive Order 12S49 end 45 CFR Pad 76 regarding Deberment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Cedifrcalion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal fconlract). the prospective primary padicipant is providing the
cedification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the cedification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of padicipation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the'prospective padicipant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the cedification. The cedification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Oepadmenl of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
padicipant to fumlih a cedification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from padicipation in
this transaction.

3. The cedificalion in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary padicipant knowingly rendered an erroneous cedificalbn, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted if at any lime the prospective primary padicipant teams
that its cedification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. . r '

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred.' 'suspended.* 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'padicipant,' 'person.* 'primary covered transaction.' 'principal,' 'proposal.' and
'voluntarily excluded.* as used in this clause, have the meanings sot out in the Definitions and
Coverage sedions of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Pad 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospectivo primary padicipant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, i shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voHintarily excluded
from padicipation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary padicipant fudher agrees by submitting this proposal thdt it will include the
clause tilted 'Cedification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered'Transactioru.* provided by DHHS. without modification, in oil lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A part'icipanl In a covered transaction may rely upon a cedification of a prospective padicipant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the cedification is erroneous. A padicipant may
decide the method and frequency by which h determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded padies).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order (o render in good faith the cedification required by this clause. The knosvtedge and

Etffbit F - Ccrtiftcatlon Regtrtllng Oebarmem. SuspentloA Contractor Inillah
And Oiner Reipor^atoiity Mancrs
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information of a participant Is not required to exceed that wtiich is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemmeni, OHMS may termmate this transaction
for cause or defauR.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTJONS

11. The prospective primary participant cerfines to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it arrd its
principals:
11.1. are not presently deban-ed. suspended, proposed for debarmenl. declared lneligit>le. or

volunlarify excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within o three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a cnmlnal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or locaf)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or r^eiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. Slate or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certirication: and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more pubtic
transactions (Federal. Stale or local) terminated for cause or defauR.

12. Where the prospective primary participant rs unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant. as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal departrrrenl or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14 The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
ifKlude this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Dobarmcnl. Suspension, fneligibility. end
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: ScA/>Ufl.,Xi

Date Na
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND
~  WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractoi's
representative as idenfrfi^ in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cenifcation;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgraniees or subcontractors to comply. wlth any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnation requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. Section 3709d) wtiich prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefts. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employmeni Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Oelinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligaliohs of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employmeni pracfces or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, r^ational origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

. the CMI Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
ossislence fron discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits redpientscf Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or-activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34). which prohibits
discrimination end ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabiliiies in employmeni. Stale and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facililies. end transportdlion;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1685-66), which prohibits
discrimlr\ation on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

. the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discruninalion on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal finarKial assistance. It docs not include
employment discrimination;

- 26 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice R^ulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. p1-^2
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnation: Equal Employment Opportunity. Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for farth-based and community
organiiallons): Executive Order No. 13559. wWch provide fundarnental principles and policy-malung
criteria for partnerships wHh faith-based and neighborhood organizatiorxs;

- 2BC F R pi 38 (U S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations)- and Whislleblowef protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for ■
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whislleblower Protections, which protects ernptoyees agamst
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below ts a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certrficaiion or violation of the certifjcation shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemmenl wide suspension or
debannent.

ExNbilG
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In tho event a Federal or Stele court or Federal or State administrative ager^y makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Offico of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificdlion:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name; A SwACt.3 Xr*c

Da! Na

Tib

ExNbil C
ContraOor Ntlali.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PubDc Law 103-227, Part C - Envirofjmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-ChlWren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility ovmed or leased or
contracted for by an entity arxl used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16. if the services are funded by Federal programs eKher
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
IMedicare or Medicaid funds, end portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Pailuro
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition ol e civil monetary penalty of up to
SIOOO per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible enlity.

The Contractor identified in Section l .3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12of the General Provisions..lQ execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisior^s of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Ad of 1994.

CchtTBCtor Name:{isc Strutif

Dale Na

U'M,
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'  HEALTH INSURANCE PORTASLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
wiih the Standards for Privacy and Security of'lndividually Identifiable Health information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

{1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tiye 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQOreqation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501,

f. 'Health Care Ooerations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations*
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic end Clinical Health
Act. TitleXlll, Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery"and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA* means the Health insurance Pofiability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104>191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments Iherelo.

i. 'tndivlduaC shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). .

|. 'Privacv Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United Slates
Department of Health and Human Services. ■

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information* in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Con(r«aor Irilis's
Health Imiximce PonabUty Act
Buslneii AsaoclaieAgreeiTieni ,
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I. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law* in 45 CFR
Section 154.103.

m. 'Secretary* shall mean tl^ Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards-for'lhe Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 154. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health information' means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusat^e.
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Defmitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein sh'all have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Pahs 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate.shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate. Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall hot use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a viotaUon of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

'  II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below: or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third pahy that such PHI will be held confidenllally ar^
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (11) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance vhth the HIPAA Privacy,. Security, and Breach Notification
Rule.s of any breaches of the conrrdentlality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Assodate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/3014 Ext^ll Conmtor IddSb
HetRh ins«xcnca Pori»bQi>y Ad
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security

•  .safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disdcse PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Oblloatlona and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of. protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o ■ Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has b^n

mitigated.

The Business.Associale shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and.
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business-Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive; use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in wriiirig to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

V20U ExNbll I Contractor tnlliat)
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcemer^t and indemnirication h'om such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
conlract. provision's (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered'Entity,
Business Associate shall make availabte during normal business-hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHrio the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to deterniine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) buslr^ss'days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for ar>
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. . Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
Ind'wkJuaVs request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PH)
receWed from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain ar^y copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has'been otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreemeni. to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long'as Business

ttfAiil Contractor inltitb3/2014
Haahh intursnco ForUbUty Act
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires lhat the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obtlqattons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limilation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the e)rtent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
154.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity s.hali promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity'has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a limeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
'determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a.' Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit 1. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as .
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. tnteroretation. The parties agree lhat any ambiguity ir> the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/20H EiNbiii Cortjaoof inhWa
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Segregation. If any term or corxlltion of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
per5on(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall r^ot affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. retum or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of (he Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Oepartmem of Health and Human Services sc/ic/v/i
Name of the Contractor /The Stat

Signaldc^f Authoriz epresentativetiveSignature of Authorized Repre

Name of Authorized Representative
_ An*

Name oT7\Ulft(}nzeii Re^sentative

Title of Authorized Represer>talive -^Title of Authorized Representative

T./z.tik'b w.

Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT iPFATA^ CQMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal granU equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010. to report on
data related-lo executive compensation and associated first-tier sub<grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modHications result in a total award equal lo or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following infofmalion for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for cortracls / CFOA program number tor grants
5. Program source
6. Award title desaiplive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place cl performance
9. Unique identifter of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation ar\d names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross rcvenuas are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation info.rmation is not already available through reporting to the SEC. >

Prime grant leciplenls must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 at^ Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward ond Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contract^.s rcpresenlaiive, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General, Provisions
execute Ihe following Certification;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined 8t>ove to Ihe NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act '

Contractor Name;

Date Na

7M
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FORMA

As the ConUactof IdenlrTed in Section 1.3 of Iho General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. Tho nUNfi numhflf for vour entity s:

2. in your business or organUation's preceding completed ffscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^rants. and/or cooperolivo egreaments; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual •
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants. sut>grants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to d2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to P2 above is YES. please ansvrer the foitowing:

3. Ooes the public have access lo information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(b) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Acl of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 760(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to d3 above is YES. slop here

If the answer to »3 above is NO. please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name;.

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Amount:

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

cuo*iviion}
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nHHS INPQRMATION SEHURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Confideniial Informalioo: In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
SOW. the Department's Conrtdentiai irtformation includes any and all Informalion owned or managed by the
State of NH - created, received from'or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Serv'ices (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performirtg contracted services • of collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition Is governed by stale or federal law or regutstlon. This information includes, but is not limited to
Personal Health Information (PHI); Personally Idenlifiable Informalion (PH). Federal Tax Inforrnalion (FTI),

. Social Security Numbers (SSN). Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and conndeniial
Inform allon.

2. The vendor will maintain pro(>er security controls to protect Department conftdential information collected,
processed, rnanaged. and/or stored in the delivery ol contracted services. Minimum expectations Ir^clude:

2.1. Contractor shall ixrt slore or iransfer data collected in conr^eciion with the services rendered
under this Agreement outside of the United Stales. This includes backup data and Disaster
Recovery locations.

2.2. Maintain poDcies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the
informalion fifecycte. where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use. storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).

2.3. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to coniracior systems that collect, transmit.or
store Department confidential informalion y^tereapplicabie.

2.4. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confiderMial data stored on portable media, e.g.. laptops, US8
drives, as well as when transmitted over public netwrks like the Internet using current Industry
standards end best practices for strong encryption.

2.^ Ensure proper security monilorirtg capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can
impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential infonnation for contractor provided systems.

2.6. Provide secufHy awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-conlraclors in
support of protecting Department confidential information

2.7. Maintain a documented breach notification and Incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's conlract manager, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any Stele of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.7.1 .'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach* in section 164.402 of Tiile 45. Code of
Federal Regulations. 'Computer Security incidenf shall have ihe same meaning "Compuler
Security Incidenf In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications will be sent to the follovring email addresses;

2.7.1.1. DHHSChieflnformationOffK:er@dhh5.nh.Qov

2.7.1.2. DHHSInformationSecurilvQfficetaidhhs.nh.QOV

2.8. If the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on its s)rsiems (or its sub<oniraclor systems).
the vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or
conlract termination; and will obtain written certificalion for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed

irtcy RttQulftfn«rtJ - / / a
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K ^

by ihe vendor pr any subconiractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use. electronic media conlainirtg State of New Hampshire data shaU be
rendered unrecoverable via a secure vt^pe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for
secure deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor
w3l document and certify in writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification
to the Department upon request. The written certification will Include ail details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and vatidaled. Where applicable, regulatory end
professiorxai standards for retention requirements will t>e jointly evaluated by the State and the vendor
prior to destrx>ction.

2.9. If the vendor-will be sub-contracting any core functions of the ertgagemenl supporting the services for
Stale of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an internal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, artd monliortng compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor will worX wiih the Department to sign and comply with all applicable Stale of New Hampshire and
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the ver^dor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR S60.103. the vcndorwill
woilt with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maintaining compriance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is lo
enable the Department and vendor lo monitor (or any changes in risks, threats, end vulnerabilities that may
occur over the We of the vendor engagement The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time
frame at the Departments disaelion vrilh.agreemeni by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the Departmeni and the vendor changes.
The vendor will rx>t store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Slates unless prior express written consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within the Department.

6. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contraclor shall make efforts lo investigate
the causes of the breach, promptly lake measures lo prevent future breach and minimize any damage or
loss resulting from the breach. The Slate shell recover from the Contractor ell costs of response arxJ
recovery from the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs
associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the breach.

ErftfbllK ContrertorlnZiib
OHHS lAtonn&tloo

Sooiniy R«Qiiromcnts
Pov, 2 ol 2 Oatfl
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Refugee School Impact Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and International
Institute of New England, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 21, 2018 (Item #8), as amended on September 18, 2019 (Item #7), as amended on June 16,
2021 (Item #10), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract, as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$402,500.

2. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Subsection 2.1. to read:

The Contractor shall provide services to refugee children up to age eighteen (18) years or through
high school graduation from the Manchester and Nashua School Districts, who have been resettled
through the Contractor's Manchester Resettlement Program, and who have been in the United
States for less than five (5) years at the beginning of the school year. Refugees may include, but
are not limited to:

2.1.1. Asylees.

2.1.2. Individuals who have a special immigrant visa (SIVs).

2.1.3. Other Office of Refugees Resettlement (ORR) defined eligible immigrants.

2.1.4. Secondary migrants if they move to the Manchester or Nashua communities.

2.1.5. Humanitarian parolees from Afghanistan.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3, Subsection 3.3., to read;

3.3. Reserved.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4, Subsection 4.2., by replacing Table 1 in its entirety,
to read:

4.2. Table 1

Reporting Period Semi-Annual Report Due

10/1/2021 -3/31/2022 4/15/2022

4/1/2022-9/30/2022 10/15/2022

10/1/2022-3/31/2022 4/15/2023

4/1/2023 - 9/30/2023 10/15/2023

International Institute of New England. Inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A03 Page 1 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date

Jt

5/3/2022



DocuSign Envelope ID; C4CC094B.01C7-47FE-9EDF-68781828E63B

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to
read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 91%, Refugee Support Services Program, as awarded on February 6, 2020, by the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Administration for Children
and Families, CFDA 93.566, FAIN 22G99RSF2.

1.2. 9%, Refugee Support Services Program, as awarded on February 6, 2020, by the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Administration for Children and
Families, CFDA 93.566, FAIN 22G992210.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to
read:

3. The Contractor shall use and apply all contract funds for authorized direct and indirect costs to
provide services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in accordance with Exhibit B-1, Budget,
through Exhibit B-14, Budget Amendment #3.

7. Add Exhibits B-9 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

8. Add Exhibits B-10 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibits B-11 Amendment #3 SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

10. Add Exhibits B-12 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget, which Is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

11. Add Exhibits B-13 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

12. Add Exhibits B-14 Amendment #3 SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

^os

fjt
International Institute of New England, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

RFP-2018-OHE-01 ■REFUG-02-A03 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/6/2022

Date

OocuSiQn«d by:

^ —ziiaABsrepeesdM.. z—
Name: Landfy
Title: Associate commissioner

5/3/2022

Date

International Institute of New England, Inc.
Ootu$iQ(>»d by;

^|qgppygw*Ta«ttrey Thielman
Title: president and CEO

International Institute of New England, Inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A03 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

'[>0€uSign«d by:rL>0€uSign«d by:
FaOFiWOaiMiaOO :

Date Name:RODy" Cuanno

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

International Institute of New England, Inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A03 Page 4 of 4
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ExhiWt B-». Afnendminl 9, SFY 9022 Bildgtl

New Hampshire Oepsrtmeni of Health artd Human Services

Ceniraeier Name: Mematierul InuKute ol New Enpiand. Inc.

Pr^ed Title: Reiugee Schoel bnpad Pregrsfn - Supplemental Fund*

Budeel Period: .My 1, 2021 • June 30, 2022 (SFY 2022)

Total Proflfitn Co^
Ul

Coniiacior Share / Match

Direct reet Total Direct WSecT T5K3"
Furtded l>y DHKS contract altare

ESnS
1. Total Satarywaoee

2. Employee Ber<etit»~
3. Comiitantt

4. Eouipnieol:

Repair and Mainienance

PurcnaaotOepreciallon

Lab

Pttarmacv

Medcal

Occupancy

8;_^uiie2_£*ge2^L
Telephone

Poetaoe
_SiOe2£lion^
Audn and (.eqil

kwurance

Board Ejpecteee

to. MarfcetinalCommunieaiione

II. Stall EducatiooarxlTralninQ

II Subcontracls/Aoreementi

13. Otliet (speailc detalle mandatory):

Indireci Ai A Percent ol Direct

2JS1.00 7 TSTOT irsmf TssmTOTAL
Indirect Ae A Percent el Direct

11,373.07 9 TSWT

Iniemationil Insiliule ol New England. Inc.
RFP-20l6.OHE-0t-REFU&{)2-A03

Exhibit B-9. Amendmeni 3. SFY 2022 Budget
P^ I of I

jr
Contraoor Mtlal*

37372022
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Eihlbtt 8-10. Amvndnwnt ). SFV 2023 BudgM

New Hampshire Department ot Health and Human Services

CorUracter p<vn*: IMematlenil htuitutt el New Engtand. Inc.

Prelect Title: Retueee School knpad Program • Supplwnenttf Fund*

BudgM Parted: July 1.2022 • June 3a 2023 (SFV 2023}

Una Hem

t. TomSalarWWaoaa

Total Progrim Com"
Indbeet' birael

Con tract Of Share / Match

Ind tract Oliecl

Funded t>y DHHS contract atiare

Indlracl Total

2j_Emgloj(aaJ
3. Comultant*

«;_62S!iE!!!2Si
Rant^

Repair and MaWenarKa

PurchaaarPeoteciation

5. Suoo*ai:

Qlilca

6. Travel

7. OcQoanev

8. Current Enpaneea

Telephona

Subeciipliorrs
Auda and Laoal

krsutanca

Board EipatBes

9. SoRwate

10. MarfcetlnoiCbmrTHrteatiera
t1. Stall Education aitd TraWno

12. Subcontracia'Aoieamarita

13. Other (tpaoiic delate mandalory):

Irxlitect Ai A Percent d Direct

TOTAL

Indirect At A Pareani ol Oiract

34,119 a«2S T TTWT "BITTT TBS TTStT]

Intontaiional Hetltule ol New England, Inc.
RFP-201SOHE-01-REFUG-02-A03

Eitifeit B-10, Amendment 3. SFV 2023 Budget
Page i ol i

Jt
Corttractor Inltialt

5/3/2022
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Exhibit B-n, Amendment 3, SFV 2034 Budget

New Hampkhire Department ot Health and Human Servlcea

Centneter Nwne: biiemallond btxtliute ol New England, Inc.

Project Title: Reltjgee School Impact Program • Supplemental Funde

Budget Period: .Kity 1. 2023- September 30,2023 (SPY 2024)

Total Program Cost'
Direct Tsa" ■TOST

Contractor Share / Match

Indirect issr
l^unded by 0HH3 contract ahar^

Ittdlreet T53"
Total Salarywaoea 6,934^0 $

I.S95.00 T2. Employee BenelM
X Consiltanta
4, Ettiapmem:

Remai
Repair and MalruerarKa
PurchaioOeoreoalion

S. Suppaei;

_Pf2rmacL
Medeal
Oltice

6, Travel
7. Occupancy
X Cunetc £»oenaea

Telephorre
Poataoe
Subacnptiont
Audii and Leoal
incuiaiKe
Board Eipemet

9. Sottware
to. MarketmorCommunlcaUom
II. Staff Education and Ttoinlna
12. SubconuaciarAoteemenu
IX Other tspoqitedMala mandatory):
Rocrultino
indrect Aa A Peican ol Direct

1.792 7 "OT TW TOT
Indlreel Aa A Percent el Direct

Imemationai hietiiuie ot New England, mc.
RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFtJG-02-A03
ExhM B-ll. AmendnentS, SPr2024 Budget
Page 1 ol i

Jt
Contractor Idtialt.

5/3/2022
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Position LOE
Case Specialist (TBH) 53.7%
Manager, Community Services 10.0%
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Exhibit B-12. AmandnMnI i. SFY 2022 BudgM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Coniraeibr Mama: Intamatienjl irwtRut* al N«v> England. Inc.

Ptojaet Thie: Refuge* School Impact Progrwn • Afghan

Budget Period: July 1.2021 • June 90.2022 (SPY 2022)

Una flam

1. Total SaUyWaoa*

Talil Program Co^
ToUl TKcT

Con tract dt Share r Halcfi

Indlraci TST Dlract

Funded by DHHS contract aftara

•raKS"

2. Emplovae Banafos

3. Cormitants

«■ Equipmart:
Rental
Repair and Malntananca
PurchaatOapraciaacn

5' Supola*:

Ptwmacv
Mad^
Oflica

s. Travel
7, Occupancy
3. Curiara Expanaae

Taiephcne

Subacriptiora
Audit and taoal

Board Exoantat
9. Software
10. MarVetinoCommunlcat»eft$
11. Stall Education and TraWno
12. SubcontractarAoreenianta
19. Other (SOaCliictletAltniandalorvl:
Rental A»$i$tance

AxAl

TotaE
Indlraci A* A Parcani ol (Xract

7M7 TUT TBT TBT

Inter national Inatltui* of Naur England, Inc.
HFP.201ft^E-01-ReiRJ<>02-A03
Exhibit B-12. AmantSneni 3, SPY 2022 Budget
P^ I of 1

Contractor imtlati
I

Data
W

jr

T72022
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ExhMl B-13. AmMdmanl 3. SFY 2033 BudQtl

New Hampshire Departmeni of Health artd Human Services

Ceniraeter Naiw: buamailone Inuituw «l New Engtand, Inc.

Protect TKle: Retugea School hnpaci Prog ram • Afghan

Budget Period: July 1,2022 • June 30,2023 (SPY 2023}

Total Program Coat

Una Ram Diract Indiraci T«3-
Contractor Stwra! Ualch

Indiraci "T^
Futidad t>y DHMS contract titara

"T35r
1. Totid SearyrtVaoea

2. Emptoroa Beneiita
}. Cormiiianta

a. Equjcnant:

Rental

Repair and Mainiananca

PurcheaaiOeoraciaaon

5. Suppliea;

Lab

Pharmacy

Medcal

Otiice

S. Travel

7. Occupancy

B. Current £«per«aea

Talaphone

Poaaoe

Sut>tcnptior»t

AudKandtJoal

Insurance

Board Ejq>erwe«

9. SoRwara

10. MarVatinoCammunicallona

n. Stall Education and TraWno

12. SutJcorafactiiAoraamanta

)3. OthactsoaclilcaatailcmarxttKyv):
Rental Assitanca

indiraci As A Parcan* ol Diract

TOTAL

Indiraci As A Percent 01 Dlra^
"BS23,sot "BJSTT 23.M1 I

Imamatiotul hiailiuie ol New England, Inc.
RFP-2016-OM£-01-R£FUG^)2-A03

ErhilM B-13. Amendment 3. SPY 2023 Budget
Page i ol i

Jt
Coraractor Intfala

■57372022
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Exhibit &-t4. Amendment 3. SFY 2024 BudffM

New Hampshire Oepsrtment of Health and Human Services

Cdntnctor Name: InlemMtond instftule el New England. Ine.

Protect Tide: Refugee School Impact Program • Afghan

Budget Period: Jufy t. 2023 - September 30, 2023 (SFY 2024)

birect
Total Program Coal

Indlreei ^ 'fotai Direct

Contractor sttare) Match

Irrdbact T3r
Funded by DHHS contract ehai^

-rara-
1. Total SalarY»Waoe*

2. Emplovee Berwi4a~
3. Comtiiam

*. Eqyipinent:

Rental

Repair arvl Maktlertance

PurchtiaaiOeotaciallon

5- Supplies:

Lab

Pharmacy

7, Occupancy

a. Current Expenee*

Telephone

Peeaoe

Sutxenptrona

Audit ena Leoal

Imurance

Board Erpenaee

9. Software

10. iitorKetina/Communleallorta

II. Staff Education wiOTraWno

12. Suttcontrega'AQieerner'iU

13. Other l»peqncdeta48manaaiofy):
Retniiting

Indrect As A Percent ol Direct

S.923 Tsm
indirect Aa A Percent ol DIrecl

Intematlortal Ineittuie ol New England, Inc.
RFP.20ie-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A03

ExfiM B-14. Amendneni 3, SFY 2024 Budget
P^ 1 ol 1

Jt
Contractor Initlalc

57T/2022
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Position LOE
Case Specialist (TBH) 46.3% Expected to start in March'22
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner Secretar>' of Stale ofihc Stale ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE

OF NEW ENGLAND. INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

Februar>' 12. 2016. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Seerelar>' of Stale's ofFicc have been received and

is in good standing as far as this oflicc is concerned.

Business ID: 739194

Certificate Number: 0005748539

ss P/S

Bs.

o

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of April A.D. 2022.

William M. Gardner

Secretar\'of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Deborah Shufrin . hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of International Institute of New Enoiand.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a rroeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 1. 2015, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED; That Jeffrey Thielman, President & CEO (mav list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of International Institute of New England to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)
of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated '4 Z12/2022

Signature orElectw
Name: p€Wt/Y«'K

Rev. 03/24/20
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AC^O CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMmomrYY)

05/05/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement{s).

PRODUCER

Hilllt Tow*ra Watson Northaaat, Inc.

c/o 26 Cantury Blvd

P.O. Box 305191

Nsshvilla, TN 372305191 USA

Towers Watson Certificate Center

PHONE
fA/C. No. Ex

E-MAIL
ADDRESS;

1-877-945-7378 PUC No)- 1-888-467-2378

certificatesSWillis.com

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICi

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Coi^any 18058

INSURED

Intsrnstional Insticuts ot H«w England, Inc.

2 Bolyston Scraat

3rd Floor

Boston, MA 02116

INSURER a

INSURERC

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL

IN8D
SUBR

WYD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

fMM/DD/YYYYI
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL G(NERAL LIABILITY

5E 1 X 1 OCCUR

PKPK2410664 05/05/2022 05/05/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE $  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MA
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISF.S (Fb orcurrencel j  100,000

MED EXP (Any one person) %  5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY %  1,000,000

GE'I'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY QJ JECT O LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE $  3,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $  3,000,000

s

Ain OMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Fa Bcrtdenll s

ANY AUTO

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) %

BODILY INJURY (Per acddenl) $

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accidentl $

$

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE s

AGGREGATE s

DEO 1 RETENTION $ s
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS- LIABlLriY y ̂ ̂
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 1
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUOED?
(Msndalory In NH) ' '
11 yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddKlensI Rsmsrks Schsduls, msy bs atUchsd If mors spacs It rsqulrsd)

Named Insured includes International Institute of New Has^shire, Inc. and International Institute of Lowell, Inc.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of wa

Department of Health and Human Sarvices

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
8R 10; 22557885 batch: 2515532
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

CWOODSIDE

DATE (MM/oorrm)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement/s).

PRODUCER License# 1780862
HUB International New England
600 Longwater Drive
Norwell,>i1A 02061-9146

NAMF*^^ Patricia Condon

r>Ko. Ex.t: (781) 792-3243
IddII^ss- patricia.condon@hubinternatlonai.com

INSURER(S) APFOROING COVERAGE NAIC a

INSURER A Travelers Property Casualty Company of America 25674
INSURED

International Institute Of New England, Inc.
2 Boylston Street, 3rd floor
Boston, MA 02116

INSURERS

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

Ti
ih

0
E.

HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
DICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
KCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL
iNSn

SUBR
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LIMITS

COMMERCIAL G:neral uability

5E OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE s
CLAIMS-MAI DAMAGE TO RENTED

s

s

PERSONAl A ADV INJURY s

GE VL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY □ Q LOG
OTHER;

GENFRAl AGGREGATE $

PRODI ICTS - COMP/OP AGO s

s

AU1 OMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEfl erridentl s

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per oerannl s

BODILY IN.IIIRY (Per arz-Jrientl s
TOOPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accHlenli s

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE
EACH OCCURRENCE s

AGGREGATE s

DEO 1 RETENTIONS
A WORKERS COMPENSATIONAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ^ ̂  ^

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/ExeCLmVE rTD
lAl

K yas. descdba under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A
8JUB-9975L65-4-21 10/1/2021 10/1/2022

V PER OTH-
^ STATUTF ER
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT J  500,000
E.L. 0ISFA.se . EA EMPLOYEE J  500,000

.  500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarks Schadula, may ba attachad If nwa apaca Is raoulrad)
Coverage for New Hampshire

State of NH
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WPTH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
International Institute of New England, Inc.:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of International Institute of New England, Inc.
(a Massachusetts nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, cash
flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statennents in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of International Institute of New England, Inc. as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted In the United States of America.

Boston, Massachusetts
March 28,2022

Page 1
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

Assets 2021 2020

Current Assets:

Cash $  680,095 $  906,611

Short-term investments 300,000 400,000

Government contracts and contributions receivable 1,301,245 723,511

Accounts receivable 49,313 54,101

Prepaid expenses and other 75,712 17,744

Total current assets 2,406,365 2,101,967

- Investments 7,919,112 6,772,529

Property and Equipment, net 1,738,963 1,588,536

Security Deposits 94,434 100,434

Total assets S 12,158,874 $ 10,563,466

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $  40,733 $  . 59,503

Accrued expenses 268,166 347,866

Current portion of lease incentive 110,782 110,782

Conditional advances 55,197 57,924

Total current liabilities 474,878 576,075

Deferred Rent and Lease Incentive, net of current portion 632,991 751,328

Total liabilities 1,107,869 1,327,403

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Operating ■9,203,985 7,968,322

Property and equipment 1,203,525 942,314

Total without donor restrictions 10,407,510 8,910,636

With donor restrictions 643,495 325,427

Total net assets 11,051,005 9,236,053

Total liabilities and net assets S 12,158,874 S 10,563,466

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 2



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Activities and Changes In Net Assets
For the Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Without With Without With

Donor Donor Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

Revenues:

Government contracts $ 3,919,032 $ $ 3,919,032 $ 3,965,017 $ - $ 3,965,017
Grants and contributions 1,924,356 1,503,795 3,428,151 1,747,787 675,977 2.423,764

Donated goods and services 617,041 - 617,041 . 560,288 - 560,288

Program service fees 272,470 - 272,470 229,059 - 229,059

Contracted services 63,242 - 63,242 159,183 - 159,183

Net assets released from program restrictions 1,035,727 (1,035,727) - 639,210 (639,210) -

Total revenues 7,831,868 468,068 8,299,936 7,300,544 36,767 7,337,311 .

Expenses:

Program services 5,276,292 - 5,276,292 4,921,123 - 4,921,123

General and administrative 1,704,520 - 1,704,520 1,515,827 - 1,515,827

Fundraising 794,600 - 794,600 835,801 - 835,801
Total expenses 7,775,412 - 7,775,412 7,272,751 - .  7,272,751

Changes in net assets from operations 56,456 468,068 524,524 27,793 36,767 64,560

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense):

Investment return 1,155,418 - 1,155,418 382,836 - 382,836

Capital grants and and government contracts - 135,000 135,000 35,832 150,000 185,832

Net assets released from capital restrictions 285,000 (285,000) - - - -

Loss on disposal of property and equipment - - - (42,514) - (42,514)

Total non-operating revenue (expense) 1,440,418 (150,000) 1,290,418 376,154 150,000 526,154

Changes in net assets 1,496,874 318,068 1,814,942 403,947 186,767 590,714

Net Assets:

Beginning of year 8,910,636 325,427 9,236,063 8,506,689 138,660 8,645,349

End of year S 10,407,510 $  643,495 $ 11,051,005 $ 8,910,636 S 325,427 .$ 9,236,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 3
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Changes in net assets. $ 1,814,942 S  590,714

Adjustments to reconcile changes in riet assets to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Capital grants and contracts (135,000) . (185,832)

Investment return (1,155,418) (382,836)

Loss on disposal of property and equipment - 42,514

Depreciation 326,275 299,534

Amortization of lease incentive (110,784) (110,784)

Donated stock (173,945) -

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 4,788 (12,481)

Government contracts and contributions receivable (713,556) 310,780

Prepaid expenses and other (57,958) 57,387

Security deposits 6,000 -

Accounts payable (18,770) (6,687)

Accrued expenses (79,700) (24,222)

Conditional advances (2,727) (26,940)

Deferred rent (7,553) 4,695

Net cash provided by (used) in operating activities (303,426) 555,842

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Proceeds from sale/transfer of investments 282,780 200,050

Acquisition of property and equipment (476,702) (202,390)

Net cash used in investing activities (193,922) (2,340)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Capital grants and contracts 270,832 50,000

Net Change in Cash (226,516) 603,502

Cash:

Beginning of year 906,611 303,109

End of year $  680,095 $ 906,611

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Transactions:
i  83,056Unrealized gain on Investments $  914,311

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 4
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW EN6UND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2020)

2021 2020

General

and

Program Adminis

Services trative Fundralsing Total Total

Personnel and Related:

Salaries $ 2,537,585 S  808,301 $ 422,893 $ 3,768,779 $ 3,851,030

Payrdll taxes and fringe benefits 491,278 158,926 83,756 . 733,960 713,450

Donated services 570,121 • - 570,121 513,454

Purchased and contracted services 90,020 212,677 66,384 369,081 228,811

Recruitment 1,996 123,776 - 125,772 .  3,564

Staff training 292 1,623 988 2,903 4,732

Total personnel and related 3,691,292 1,305,303 574,021 5,570,616 5,315,041 ,

Occupancy:

Rent and utilities 446,036 50,111 43,160 539,307 533,159

Depreciation 161,786 36,672 17,257 215,715 203,116

Equipment rental 7,803 2,873 1,295 11,971 15,334

Repairs and maintenance 73 1,073 -
1,146 2,537

Total occupancy 615,698 90,729 - 61,712 768,139 754,146

Other:

Client assistance 617,377 - - 617,377 361,974

Supplies and materials 93,956 25,727 2,435 122,118 62,684

Professional fees - 115,693 115,693 110,711

Depreciation 82,920 18,795 8,845 110,560 96;418

Special events - - 109,356 109,356 220,806

Service charges 3,258 71,323 13,174 87,755 76,114

Telephone 47,338 1,207 2,055 50,600 .  61,640

Insurance 855 48,340 - 49,195 46,498

Donated goods 46,920 - - 46,920 46,834

Dues and subscriptions 18,993 10,153 15,592 44,738 26,296

Travel, meetings and conferences 16,981 12,420 1,430 30,831 48,500

Printing 14,105 -

3,242 17,347 13,614

Postage 10,192 1,299 1,714 13,205 10,064

Storage 12,265 583 -
12,854 10,581

Miscellaneous 3,578 2,837 -
6,415 3,693

Advertising 564 105 1,024 1,693. 7,137

Total other 969,302 .  308,488 158,867 1,436,657 1,203,564

TotaI.expenses $ 5,276,292 $ 1,704,520 $ 794,500 S 7,775,412 S 7,272,751

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 5
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

General

and

Program Adminis

Services trative Fundraising Total

Personnel and Related:

Salaries S 2,572,879 $  867,535 $ 410,616 $ 3,851,030

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 483,114 151,974 78,362 713,450

Donated services 513,454 -
- 513,454.

Purchased and contracted services 78,949 116,003 33,859 228,811

Recruitrrient 846 774 1,944 3,564

Staff training 2,330 1,827 575 4,732

Total personnel and related 3,651,572 1,138,113 525,356 5,315,041

Occupancy:
533,159Rent and utilities 427,811 67,662 37,686

Depreciation 152,337 34,530 16,249 203,116

Equipment rental 13,362 1,047 925 15,334

Repairs and maintenance 1,749 788 • 2,537

Total occupancy 595,259 104,027 54,860 754,146

Other:

Client assistance 361,974 -

-
361,974

Supplies and materials 49,692 12,594 398 62,684

Professional fees - 109,586 1,125 110,711

Depreciation 72,510 ■ 16,257 7,651 96,418

Special events -
-

220,806 220,806

Service charges 10,480 51,510 14,124 76,114

Telephone 52,321 7,375 1,944 61,640

Insurance 12,639 33,859 - 46,498

Donated goods 46,834 -
- 46,834

Dues and subscriptions 11,387 10,861 4,048 26,296

Travel, meetings and conferences 25,337 22,075 1,088 , 48,500

Printing 6,060 5,331 2,223 13,614

Postage 6,683 1,303 2,078 10,064

Storage 10,304 277 -
10,581

Miscellaneous 1,034 2,659 - 3,693

Advertising 7,037 .  - 100 7,137

Total other 674,292 273,687 255,585 1,203,564

Total expenses S 4,921,123 $ 1,515,827 S 835,801 $ 7,272,751

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 6
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30,2021 and 2020

1. OPERATIONS AND NONPROFIT STATUS

International Institute of,New England, Inc. (the Institute) is a nonprofit organization that
provides assistance to the immigrant and refugee populations of Massachusetts and New
Hampshire. In fiscal years 2021 and 2020, there were approximately 3,000 unduplicated people,
from approximately 112 countries that benefited from the Institute's services, gaining the
knowledge and skills necessary for their integration into American life. The Institute's services
include English and literacy classes, citizenship education, job training and placement, legal aid
and counseling services, and case management.

The Institute is exempt from Federal income taxes as an organization (not a private foundation)
formed for charitable purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). The
Institute is also exempt from state income taxes. Contributions made to the Institute are
deductible by donors within the requirements of the IRC.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Institute prepares Its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards and principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB). References to U.S. GAAP in these notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards.
Codification (ASC).

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
program services are reported as revenues and expenses in the accompanying statements of
activities and changes In net assets. Non-operating revenue (expense) includ.es Investment and
property and equipment related activity.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Property and Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair value at the date of
donation. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Leasehold improvements Lesser of life of
lease or 10 years

Furniture and equipment 3-10 years

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded based on management's analysis of specific
accounts and their estimate of amounts that may be uncollectible, If any. No allowance for
doubtful accounts was deemed necessary as of September 30, 2021 or 2020.

Page 7 i
I
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, management considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash, except those funds that
are included in the Institute's investments (see Note 4).

Fair Value Measurements

The Institute follows the accounting and disclosure standards pertaining to ASC Topic, Fair Value
Measurements, for qualifying assets and liabilities. Fair value Is defined as the price that the
Institute would receive upon selling an asset or pay to settle a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants.

The Institute uses a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is
broken down into three levels based on Inputs that market participants would use in valuing the
financial instruments based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Institute.
Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
financial Instrument, Including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs arc inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the financial instrument developed based on market data obtained from
sources Independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the
reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset developed based on the best information available,

The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
at the measurement date,

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset either directly
or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable, and which require significant judgment or
estimation.

An asset or liability's level within the framework Is based upon the lowest level of any input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

Investments

Investments are recorded in the financial statements at fair value. If an investment is directly
held by the Institute and an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price of an
identical security is used to report fair value. Reported fair values of shares in mutual funds are
based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year. The
Institute's interest in a limited liability partnership is reported at the net asset value (NAV)
reported by fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate fair value, unless
it is probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from
NAV. As of September 30,2021, and 2020, the Institute had no plans to sell this investment.

Page 8
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

Government Contracts, Grants and Contributions

The Institute's primary sources of revenue are from Federal and state government contracts.
Amounts received under these contracts have been recorded in accordance with Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958). These contracts are
considered nonreciprocal transactions because the general public receives the benefit as the
result of the assets transferred, These conditional contributions are recognized as services are
provided or qualifying costs are incurred.

Grants and contributions and United Way allocations are recorded as revenue and net assets
without donor restrictions when unconditionally committed. Grants and contributions with
donor restrictions are recorded as revenues and net assets with donor restrictions when
unconditionally received or pledged. Net assets v/ith donor restrictions are reclasslfied to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the accompanying statements of activities and
changes In net assets as net assets released from restrictions as costs are incurred, time or
program restrictions have lapsed, or capital improvernents have been placed into service.

In accordance with Topic 958, the Institute must determine whether a contribution (or a
promise) is conditional or unconditional for transactions deemed to be , a contribution. A
contribution is considered to be a conditional contribution if an agreement includes a barrier
that must be overcome and either a right of return of assets or a right of release of a promise to
transfer assets exists (see Note 8), Indicators of a barrier include a measurable performance-
related barrier or other measurable barriers, a stipulation that limits discretion by the recipient
on the conduct of an activity, and stipulations that are related to the purpose of the agreement.
Topic 958 prescribes that the Institute should not consider probability of compliance with the
barrier when determining if such awards are conditional and should be reported as conditional
grant advance liabilities until such conditions are met. Assets received, before the barrier is
overcome are recorded as conditional advances.

A portion of the Institute's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable and unit-rate contracts
(contracts), which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts are recognized as revenue when the
Institute has Incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract provisions. Amounts
received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as conditional advances in the
accompanying statements of financial position.

Special events revenue, included in grants and contributions In the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets, is from the Institute's ability to host fundraising events.
Special event income consists of both contributions and sales. The contribution portion of the
special event income Is recognized as revenue when unconditionally committed or received In
accordance with Topic 958. Special events are considered donor restricted if the proceeds of
the event are restricted for specific purposes or time periods at the time of the event. The sales
portion of the special event income is recognized in accordance with Revenue from Contracts |
with Customers (Topic 606) and is derived from various components, including ticket sales from j;
fundraising events held In which the transaction price is determined annually. Registration fees ;•
for these events are set by the Institute and have not been allocated as the events are each j
considered to be separate perforrhance obligations. The fee portion for these events is |
Immaterial and has not been recognized separately from the contribution portion. r

Page 9
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Topic 606

The Institute generally measures revenue from exchange transactions based on the amount of
consideration the Institute expects to be entitled for the transfer of goods or services to a
customer, then recognizes this revenue when or as the Institute satisfies its performance
obligations under a contract. The Institute evaluates its revenue recognition based on the five-
step model under Topic 605; (1) Identify the contract with the customer; (2) Identify the
performance obligations in the contract; (3) Determine the transaction price; (4) Allocate the
transaction price to separate performance obligations; and (5) Recognize revenue when (or as)
each performance obligation is satisfied.

The Institute recognized program service fees for legal and translation services provided for
clients, in which the clients either pay for the services themselves or are sponsored by
corporations, depending on the service provided. Program service fees generally consist of a
single performance obligation to provide services, and agreements with clients do not contain
variable consideration. Accordingly, program service fees are recognized at a point in time,
which is also when the performance obligation is satisfied, The transaction price is a fixed fee
based upon the service provided, which is established by management based on hourly rates
and expected number of hours to complete the service.

Contracted services revenue consists of various training and education service programs
provided to immigrants and refugees that span over several months based on the nature of the
program or course. There is a single performance obligation for all programs, which consists of
the completion of the training and education program or course and related events. Revenue is
recognized ratably over the period of the program or course, and the transaction price is based
on fixed quoted prices. The contract amount may vary based upon the number of participants
in the program and the rate per participant. Generally, a fixed-fee contract Is signed by either
an individual participant in the program or an organization sponsoring the individuals. The
transaction price is deterrhined based upon hourly rates established by management and the
number of, hours estimated to complete a contract.

Other

Investment return consists of interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses.
Interest income is recorded as earned and dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date.
Realized gains and losses on investment transactions are recorded based on the average cost
method. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded based on changes In fair value. All other
revenue is recognized as earned.

Expense Allocations

Program expenses include direct expenses, as well as indirect expenses, which are allocated
based upon management's estimate of the percentage attributable to each program. Expenses
related directly to a program or supporting function are charged to that function, while all other
expenses are allocated based upon management's estimate of the percentage attributable to

-  each function.

Certain categories of expenses are attributable to more than one program or supporting
function and are allocated on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that
are allocated are salaries, payroll taxes and fringe benefits, which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort; occupancy and depreciation, which are allocated on a square
footage basis; and Indirect other operating expenses, which are allocated based on
management's estimate of usage.

Page 10
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Advertising Costs

Costs incurred for producing and communicating advertising are expensed when, incurred and
are reflected as advertising in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

!
Donated Goods and Services |

The Institute receives donated goods and services in various aspects of its program services.
The value of the donated items is based on values assigned or estimates made by the donors.
Donated goods include food and clothing; and donated services Include legal, teaching, and
consulting work. Donated items received were as follows:

2021 2020

Donated services $ 570,121 $ 513,454
Donated goods 46.920 46.834

5 617.041 5 560.288

The Institute also receives a substantial amount of donated administrative services. Many
individuals volunteer their time and perforrri a variety of tasks that help the Institute accomplish
its goals. These services do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services under
U.S. GAAP and, accordingly, are not Included in the accompanying financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 28, 2022, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. There were no events that met the criteria for recognition
or disclosure in the financial statements,

Income Taxes

The Institute accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic, Income
Taxes. This standard clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions and prescribes a.
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statements regarding a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Institute has determined that there
are no uncertain tax positions which qualify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements at September 30, 2021 or 2020. The Institute's information returns are subject to
examination by the Federal and state jurisdictions.

Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:

Net assets without donor restrictions are those net resources that bear no external restrictions
and are generally available for use by the Institute. The Institute has grouped its net assets
without donor restrictions into the following categories:

Operating - represents funds available to earn/ on the operations of the Institute.

Property and equipment - reflect and account for the activities relating to the Institute's
property and equipment, net of related liabilities.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2021 and 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net Assets (Continued)

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions:

The Institute receives contributions and grants that are designated by donors for specific
purposes or time periods, These contributions are recorded as net assets with donor
restrictions, until they are either expended for their designated purposes or as the time
restrictions lapse,

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the following at September 30:

2021 2020

Purpose restricted $ 643,495 S 175,427
Capital restricted 150.000

^ 643.495 S 325.427

3. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Institute has a defined contribution retirement plan covering all eligible employees over the
age of twenty-one who have completed a minimum of 1,000 hours of service within each of
their first two years of employment. Employee contributions are vested immediately into the
plan upon eligibility. The Institute made $60,839 and $60,174 of matching contributions to the
plan during the years ended September 30,'2021 and 2020, respectively, which are included in
payroll taxes and fringe benefits in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

4. INVESTMENTS

Investments, which are stated at fair value (see Note 2) in the accompanying statements of
financial position, are as follows:

2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds $ 703,642 $ - $ - $ 703,642
Mutual funds;

Equities 5,273,083 - - 5,273,083
Fixed income 808.309 ^ 808.309

g 6.785.034 I $ 6,785,034

Limited liability partnership (see page 13) 1.434.078

Total investments
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

4. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds $ 1,200,058 $ - $ - $ 1,200,058
Mutual funds:

Equities 3,621,534 3,621,534

Fixed income 1.019.733 1.019.733

Lirriited liabHity partnership (see below)

Total investments

5,841,325

1.331.204

S 7.172.529

In accordance with ASU No. 2015-07, the Institute's investment in a limited iiablllty partnership
is valued at fair value using the NAV per share (or Its equivalent) practical expedient and has not
been classified In the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the table above
and on page 12 are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts
presented in the statements of Financial position (see Note 2).

Investments are reported in the accompanying statements of financial position as current or
long-term assets based on management's intent with respect to the use of the investments. At
September 30, 2021 and 2020, $300,000 and $400,000, respectively, were reported as current
short-term investments as management's intent is to use these funds for operations in the
subsequent year.

The investments are not insured and are subject to market fluctuation.

CONCENTRATIONS

The Institute maintains its cash balances with two banks. The Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) insures balances at each bank up to certain amounts. At certain times during
the year, cash balances exceeded the insured amounts. The Institute has supplemental
coverage at one bank, which insures the portion of deposits in excess of the FDlC's limit, The
Institute has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes the Institute is
not exposed to any significant credit risk on Its operating cash balance.

Funding agencies and donors exceeding 10% of the Institute's operating revenue and support
(excluding donated goods and services) or government contracts, contributions and accounts
receivables as of and for the years ended September 30,2021 and 2020, are as follows:

Funder

Commonwealth of Massachusetts
U.S. Committee for Refugees and immigrants
State of New Hampshire
Private donor

Operating
Revenue

and Support %

Government

Contracts,
Contributions

and Accounts

Receivables %

2021 2020 2021 2020

23% 21% 32% 37%

21% 14% 13% 20%

9% 9% 13% 18%

-% 1% -% 14%
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

6. FUNDING

The Institute receives a significant portion of its funding from government agencies. These
contracts are subject to audit by these government agencies. In the opinion of management,
the results of such audits, if any, \A/ill not have a material effect on the financial position of the
Institute as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, or on the changes In its net assets for the years
then ended.

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Institute leases Its main office space in Boston, Massachusetts under on agreement that
runs through July 2026. Monthly lease payments for fiscal years 2021 and 2020 were
approximately $43,000 and $42,000, respectively, and increase throughout the term of the
lease. The Institute records rent on a stralght-linie basis over the term of the lease. The
difference between the monthly lease payments and the related rent expense for a given fiscal
year is recorded as deferred rent. The straight-line rent expense combines the escalation
amounts and an initial three-month rent-free period. At September 30, 2021 and 2020,
deferred rent was $208,335 and $215,888, respectively, and is included in deferred rent and
lease incentive in the accompanying statements of financial position.

The lease agreement also includes a tenant improvement allowance of $1,107,822 in the form
of a reimbursement for construction and related costs incurred by the Institute for leasehold
improvements. This, improvement allowance Is reported as a liability and is being amortized
over the lease term. The improvement allowance is included in deferred rent and lease
incentives in the accompanying statements of financial position. Amortization of the lease
incentive was $110,784 during each of the years ended Septeniber 30, 2021 and 2020, and is
netted with rent and utilities in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

The Institute leases program and administrative space under various operating leases and
tenant-at-wiil agreernents. These leases expire at various dates through January 2023. The
leases require the Institute to maintain certain insurance coverage and pay for its proportionate
share of reai estate taxes and operating expenses.

The Institute entered into an operating lease agreement for program space in Lowell,
Massachusetts, which commenced on July 1, 2021, with monthly payments of $5,756 through
June 30, 2031, Rent increases annually based on the Consumer Price Index, which is limited to a
maximum annual increase of 3%. There are extension options for two additional five-year
periods.

Facility rent expense under all leases was approximately $521,000 and $514,000 for the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in rent and utilities in the
accompanying statements of functional expenses.

The Institute also has a copier lease with monthly payments through June 2022.

Future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements are as follows:

2022 $ 669,029
2023 639,566
2024 635,853
2025 649,445
2026 565,488
Thereafter 441,829

.  Total $ 3.601.210
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

6. CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AND GRANTS

Conditional Government Contracts and Grants

During fiscal years 2021 and 2020, the Institute received grants and contributions (including
government contracts) that contained donor-imposed conditions that represent a barrier that
must be overcome, as well as a right of return of assets or release from obligations, The
Institute recognizes these grants and contributions, including government contracts, when
donor-imposed conditions are substantially met (see Note 2).

Conditional promises to give at September 30, 2021 and 2020, consist of:

2021 2020

Incurring qualifying expenses $ 773,802 S 557,306
Subject to measurable performance barriers 222.907 629.471

Total conditional promises to give S 996.709 S 1.186.777

Paycheck Protection Program Loan

Duririg fiscal year 2020, the institute applied for and was awarded a ioan of $884,501 from the |
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) established by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic j
Security Act (CARES Act). The funds were used to pay certain payroll costs, including benefits •
during a covered period as defined in the CARES Act. The Institute believed there was less than j
a remote chance the loan would be forgiven, and therefore, accounted for It as a conditional \
grant. As of September 2020, the Institute recognized the full PPP loan amount of $884,501 as I
grant revenue as the condition was met as of Septerhber 30, 2020, which is included in ;
government contracts in the accompanying fiscal year 2020 statement of activities and changes j
in net assets. During fiscal year 2021, the entire PPP loan amount and related accrued interest j
were formally forgiven by the bank and the Small Business Administration. i

I

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSAaiONS j
The Institute's President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is also the Treasurer of the Board of I
Directors. .Compensation and employee benefits for services provided as the President and CEO i
are determined by the independent members of the Board of Directors and are based on |
performance objectives. j

The institute's Chief Financial Officer was the Treasurer of the Board of Directors during fiscal
year 2020.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

10. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Institute's financial assets available within one year from the statements of financial
position date for general operating expenses are as follows at September 30:

2021 2020

Cash

Short-term investments

Government contracts and contributions receivable
Accounts receivable

Less - donor restricted cash and contributions receivable

$  680,095 $  906,611
300,000 400,000

1,301,245 723,511
49.313 54.101

2,330,653 2,084,223
643.495 325,427

Total financial assets and liquidity resources available
within one year S 1.687.158

The Institute is substantially supported by grants and contributions without donor restrictions
and government contracts. As part of the Institute's liquidity management, the Institute has a
policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and
other obligations come due.

11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment consist of the following as of September 30:

2021 2020

Leasehold improvements $ 2,354,140 $ 1,955,962
Furniture and equipment 680.966 679.676

3,035,106 2,635,638
Less - accumulated depreciation 1.296,143 1,047.102

.  Net property and equipment S 1.738.963 S 1.588.536

Depreciation expense was $326,275 and $299,534 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

12. CONTINGENCY

The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States has caused business disruption and a reduction in
economic activity. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there Is
considerable uncertainty around the duration. While the Institute expects this matter to
negatively Impact its operating results, the related financial Impact and duration cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time.
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International Institute of New England

Board of Directors and Affiliations

Name; Board Position Affiliation

Avak Kahvejian, Ph.D.,

Chair
Partner, Flagship Pioneering

Christina Bal
President and Chair of the Board, MeBo Global Education,

Inc.

Sam ̂ p6e-Bounya Fixed Income Credit Analyst, Wellington Management

Tuan Ha-Ngoc President and CEO, AVEO Pharmaceuticals (Retired)

Belinda Juran Partner, WilmerHale (Retired)

William Krause, Secretary Portfolio Manager and Vice President, Northern Trust

Shari Loessberg Senior Lecturer, MIT Sloan School of Management

Bopha Malone Vice President, Enterprise Bank

Libby May
Senior Vice President, External Affairs and

Communications, Southern New Hampshire University

Theo Melas-Kyriazi CFO, Levitronix LLC

Dr. Frederick Millham Chief of Surgery, South Shore Hospital

Deborah Shufrin, Assistant

Secretary/Clerk
Chief Investment Officer, Colby College

Nia Tatsis Chief Regulatory Officer, Vertex Pharmaceuticals

Jeffrey Thielman, President

and CEO
President and CEO, International Institute of New England

Celine Mukasine, Treasurer
Chief Financial Officer, International Institute of New

England



HENRY HARRIS, MSW

Dedicated professional serving youth, families and communities in need through program development and

operations, clinical counseling and supervision, K-12 afterschool programming and community partnerships.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, Manchester, NH 2021-Pre5ent

Managing Director

Provide site leadership and data-driven/outcome focused program management for one of the largest human

services organizations for New Americans in the region, including case management, youth and family services,

English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL), employment and skills training, and immigration legal services.

Manage the planning, development, implementation, ongoing modifications and grant compliance of all

programs, including policy setting, regular assessments, data collection and reporting

•  Monitor and document program effectiveness and outcomes to reflect contractual obligations and ensure

responsiveness to client needs in alignment with IINEs mission and goals

Partner with the Chief Program Officer and Chief Institutional Advancement Office to achieve translation and

interpreting revenue targets, as well as develop new programming in the areas of education, employment,

skills training, community services, and citizenship that are financially sustainable

•  Build and maintain relationships and partnerships with community-based and student-serving organizations

Manage program and expense allocations across all contracts and grants, ensuring accuracy and accountability

□ Draft annual site budget in concert with the Finance Department, Chief Program Officer and Chief
Institutional Advancement Officer

Recruit, supervise and evaluate staff at the New Hampshire site, including program interns and volunteers
•  Provide professional development opportunities that align with staff and program needs, contractual

regulations, and emerging trends in the community
Identify client and program stories that can be highlighted in marketing communications materials
Maintain relationships with community leaders, funders, employer partners and stakeholders

•  Collaborate regularly with IINE Development, Institutional Advancement and Marketing staff

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, Manchester, NH 2013-2021
Client Services and Community Outreach Director
Leadership role managing agency programs and coordinating with government officials and local businesses in
the areas of health, nutrition, housing, employment assistance and crisis response.

•  Oversaw clinical supervision for Mary's House, a subsidized single-room apartment complex for
homeless women in need of a safe and supportive living environment

•  Managed the summer food program, including site selection, operations, marketing and meal delivery
Foster community partnerships, including a $25K donation from Hannaford Charitable Foundation

•  Collaborated on submissions, compliance, reporting and evaluation for the Community Services Block
Grant program Develop referral networks and support client participants in the YouthBuild vocational
education and training program Present regular updates, feedback and recommendations to the
executive leadership team and board of directors



Created and implemented a crisis helpline referring clients to services during the COVIO-19 pandemic,

resulting in over 5K inquiries and distribution of over $1M in rent, mortgage and utilities assistance to
protect clients from eviction

ANNIE E. CASEY FOUNDATION, Concord, NH 2003-2013

Franklin Resource Center Program Director

Directed the Franklin Celebrates program, providing afterschool and summer programming opportunities for
at-risk middle and high school students and their families in Franklin, NH.

Managed outdoor recreational and academic offerings designed to engage students and foster
independence while providing advocacy and support

•  Recruited and motivated a staff of teachers, tutors and volunteers

Led 21st Century Grant curriculum development and managed operations and funding goals
•  Engaged difficult-to-reach students via adventure-based activities that also met state physical

education requirements Consulted on the Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports team

Presented at conferences and collaborated with partner agencies, SAU officials and area healthcare

professionals to improve program quality

Casey Family Services Family Support Specialist

Managed a caseload of foster children and families, including clinical assessment, documentation, counseling,
in-home therapy, court advocacy, family strengthening programs, rehabilitation and resource referrals.

Recruited foster families and provided and training and reunification support

•  Piloted an aversion program with court-appointed foster children utilizing Trauma Focused Cognitive
Behavioral Therapy and anger management techniques

Counseled clients on Individual Service Options, Home-Based Therapy, Accelerated Unification Model,

Play Therapy and 3-5-7 Therapeutic Techniques

THE COUNSELING CENTER OF NASHUA, Nashua, NH 2001 - 2003

Neuropsychological Technician

Assessed clients of all ages via neuropsychological tests and observations for developmental and
cognitive disorders

Collaborated and shared clinical observations and diagnostic recommendations with reporting and

feedback sessions

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work, University of New Hampshire, 2014

Clinical internship at the Payson Center for Cancer, Concord, NH

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, Rivier College, 2002, Academic Honors

CERTIFICATIONS

NH DHHS Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team (2010-2020)

NAMI Suicide Prevention Trainer (2014)



Junior Achievement Volunteer Collaborator of the Year (2006)

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP

Chair of the Board of Directors, The Well School - an independent pre-K through grade day school in

Peterborough, NH (2018-Present)
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COURTNEY GOOD
Case Specialist seeking opportunities to further develop management skills. Detail-oriented worker with

a passion for helping others. A team player, but can also complete tasks individually.

EXPERIENCE

FEBRUARY 2022 - PRESENT

COMMUNITY SERVICES MANAGER, INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NE

• Recruit, manage, and oversee the activities of all community services staff, and interns

• Establish goals and manage all supervisees to established performance targets.

• Supervise the delivery of client services to support families and individuals accomplishing

self-sufficiency.

• Collaborate with the development and implementation of training around best practices

in refugee resettlement and case management.

• Lead performance tracker review during weekly all-staff meetings. Provide structured

supervision and support to staff through weekly Client Focused Meetings and weekly one-

on-one meetings with direct reports.

• Provide immediate support to families and individuals in crisis due to metal, physical,

behavioral and other challenges.

• Support colleagues in addressing client needs and questions, especially in instances

where problem solving is required.

• Complete administrative responsibilities, including approval of supervisee requests and

documentation, as required.

• Manage Community Services programming including strength-based resettlement, case

management, youth, and family-based services for IINE-Manchester clients including

refugees, asylees, Haitian/Cuban entrants, Afghan evacuees, unaccompanied minors and

other immigrants.

• Supervise the comprehensive intake system for all new clients accessing Community

Services programs.

• Supervise all client related program expenditures and prepare monthly financial reports

for IINE Central office.

• Complete all Community Services contract reports on a monthly, quarterly, trimester,

semi-annual, and annual basis. Program reports include LDS Donation Tracking, Case

Coordination billing. Quarterly Consultation Reporting, R&P 90 Day Case Closure Reports,

OR! monthly reports, other USCRI requests for information, and other reports as assigned.

• Support IINE data collection efforts, submit written reports as required and ensure

accurate/timely contract reporting.

• Responsible for all program-related data entry, including that of supervisees.

• Ensure that Community Services related documentation in case files are audited and

completed on a monthly basis.

• Coordinate with Employment Manager, Education Manager and Volunteer Coordinator to

refer clients and coordinate services.

• Maintain a small caseload in support of Preferred Communities Conduct quarterly quality

assurance reviews of Community Services documentation in case files and data entered

into Apricot system.

• Maintain community relationships with health centers, public benefits offices and
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community and external support systems.

AUGUST 2021-PRESENT

CASE SPECIALIST FOR PREFERRED COMMUNITIES, INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NE

• Supports the resettlement and integration of vulnerable refugee families in New

Hampshire through Preferred Communities Intensive case management program

• Assesses clients' progress on self-sufficiency goals during intake, mid-enrollment, and

upon completion of services and reports progress through online database

• Coordinates client care with relevant medical and social service provides and evaluates

services or treatment options based on quality and cost-effectiveness

• Facilitates referrals to in-house and community-based services including public benefits,

employment services, career readiness opportunities, and legal services

• Manages current UNH intern through assigning day-to-day tasks, having weekly check-ins,

and organizing client caseloads for the intern to assist with

OCTOBER 2020 - JULY 2021

KEY HOLDER, BATH & BODY WORKS

• Sold products to customers through accurate assessment of customer needs and overall

product knowledge

• Consistently worked to exceed goals for sales, inventory management, and productivity

• Responsible for running the sales floor throughout the day and overseeing cash drawers

at open and close

• Managed associates by providing training to new-comers, designating employees to zones

for their shift, assisting with payroll and upcoming schedules, and assigning tasks as need

be

JANUARY 2019 - MAY 2019

UNDERGRADUATE TEACHING ASSISTANT, WELLS COLLEGE

• Provided times outside of class to aid in essay writing, reading assignments, and research

on anthropology and cultural topics

• Reviewed papers with supervisor to determine grading and feedback

• Taught lessons and distributed homework on the occasions the professor could not

attend class

• Organized materials in preparation for the following week's class, in accordance with the

syllabus

AUGUST 2018 - DECEMBER 2018

FOREIGN EXCHANGE ORIENTATION LEADER, WELLS COLLEGE

• Welcomed and oriented study abroad students from Doshisha Women's College in Kyoto,

Japan

• Organized workshops, tours, and off-campus trips that provided information about both

Wells College and American culture while simultaneously familiarizing them with the local

area

• Coordinated times throughout the remainder of the semester to tutor the student in ESL
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FEBRUARY 2018 - DECEMBER 2018

ADVANCEMENT EVENT COORDINATOR, WELLS COLLEGE

• Planned alumni-related events on campus for students to attend each semester

• Arranged vendors and activities for the college's annual summer alumni reunion

• Oversaw Excel spreadsheets to organize alumni reservations, room occupancy, event

dates, and hired venders

• Assisted in pre-screenings and interviews for the summer reunion student workers, and

managed fellow workers during the event by creating daily work schedules and assigning

tasks as need be

JUNE 2017 - AUGUST 2017

CAMP COUNSELOR, CASOWASCO

• Solely monitored groups of 5 to 8 campers at a time between ages 6 and IS

• Prioritized tasks such as ensuring the children's safety, keeping track of daily and nightly

schedules, and providing emotional support for both children away from home and

children coming from the Rescue Mission

• Planned activities in advance for the campers including Bible studies, games, and road

trips to ensure campers had a fun-filled experience

EDUCATION

SEPTEMBER 2019 - DECEMBER 2020

MA ANTHROPOLOGY & CULTURAL POLITICS, GOLDSMITH'S, UNIVERSITY OF LONDON

AUGUST 2015 - MAY 2019

BA ENGLISH: CREATIVE WRITING; BA SOCIOLOGY & ANTHROPOLOGY, WELLS

COLLEGE SKILLS

Oral and written communication

Employee management

Punctuality

Microsoft Office

Google Suite

French - Conversational
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Jamie Lee Suarez

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

Well organized, self-motivated, honest and dependable

Excel in proofreading and editing skills
Familiar with AP style format

Abie to meet deadlines in a timely fashion

Confident in making independent decisions

French language skills

Excellent budgeting skills

Proficient in Microsoft Word. Excel and Publisher

Proficient in Google Docs, Excel, Slides and Meet

WORK HISTORY

School Impact Coordinator, International Institute of New England, Manchester, NH, February
2022 - present

• When appropriate and/or requested by School or Parents, attend IEP/504 and other

parent teacher meetings that involve the child.
•  Accompany families and Case Managers on school tours.

•  Support school enrollment process for newly arrived refugee youth.
• Work in partnership with Case Managers to develop service plans to address the family

needs of newlyarrived refugee and asylee clients and provide client information to
schools.

• Work to identify and build relationships and referral networks for youth centered
programs and supports, including after school and summer programs.

• Work collaboratively with New Hampshire Public Schools, spending time in the school
and in regular communication with teachers, administrators and social workers.

•  Provide weekly updates to all site staff that includes a list of all case notes written and
confirmation that all case notes in each case are up to date.

•  Attend bi-weekly staff meetings and weekly Client Disposition meetings.
•  Maintain all client notes in the Apricot database.

•  Reporting responsibilities as assigned.
•  Assist Case Managers when possible.

SMG, SNHU Arena, Box Office Teller, Manchester, NH, January 2008-present

•  Assist customers with purchase/return of event tickets
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•  Help train new employees
•  Ensure event vouchers are properly counted and logged
•  Cashier

•  Miscellaneous projects for management

21^' Century Afterschool Program Site Coordinator, Manchester, NH, August 2007- February
2022

•  Coordinated all aspects of a before and after school program for at-risk youth, including
maintaining a program budget, staff recruitment and program design

•  Coordinated all aspects of a four to six week summer program for at-risk youth, including
maintaining a program budget, staff recruitment and program design

•  Assisted at-risk elementary school children with their homework, school work and class
projects

•  Mentored at-risk elementary school children for both educational and personal issues
•  Hired and managed staff to teach classes within the program
•  Assured staff had all necessary program supplies in order to teach classes within the

program

•  Kept track of the allotted budget for the site, including staff pay. office supplies and
program supplies

•  Implemented the SES (Supplemental Educational Services) Program into the 21"
Century Afterschool Program at Henry Wilson Elementary School for the three year
grant period it was available

•  Built and maintained community partnerships

•  Completed daily, weekly, monthly and yearly reports in compliance with the current grant
standards for the Department of Education

•  Assisted program families with the registration process for the school year and summer
program

•  Contacted school personnel on behalf of the families regarding assistance for a variety
of needs, both educational and personal

•  Completed data entry into the Cayen database in a timely manner
• Was a member of the 21st Century Program Mentor Team for the Manchester School

District, mentoring new Site Coordinators on program policies, procedures and day to
day operations

• Was part of a small team who created an Operations Manual for the Manchester 21 st
Century Program

EDUCATION

•  University of New Hampshire at Manchester, Bachelor of Arts, English, December 2003
•  Louisiana State University, General Courses, January 2001-May 2002
•  Manchester Community College, Credits earned in Early Childhood Education
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International Institute of New England

Key Personnel

Refugee School Impact - Supplemental

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Henry Harris Managing Director
$91,875

10% $18,375

Courtney Good

Manager, Comms Services $54,000
18% $15,390

TBH Case Specialist $41,600 53.7% $35,370

Refugee School Impact - Afghan

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
TBH Case Specialist $41,600 46.3% $30,496
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9200 1-800-8S2-334S Ext. 9200

Fix; 603-27M912 TOO Acce»s: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 10. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Office of the Commissioner, to
enter into Sole Source amendments to existing contracts with the vendors listed below for school
related services for newly arriving and vulnerable New Hampshire refugees, by increasing the
total price limitation by $200,000 from $400,000 to $600,000 and by extending the completion
dates from September 30. 2021 to September 29, 2023, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on March 21. 2018, item
#8 and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 18. 2019, item
#7.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Ascentria

Community
Services. Inc.

222201 Statewide $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

International

Institute of New

England. Inc.
177551 Statewide $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

TOTALS: $400,000 $200,000 $600,000

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2022, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

Th« Department of Health and Human Struiees' Mission is to join communilies and families
i')i providiitg opporiunilits for eilitens to achitue health and independence.



His Excellency. Governor Chrlslopher t. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is extending contract beyond the
completion date and there are no renewal options available. The Department is extending these
contracts as the Contractors are under contract with the United States Department of Slate to
resettle families via the U.S. Refugee Program. Through these contracts, the Contractors receive
pertinent demographic Information, and develops and implements integration plans for each
refugee arriving in the State of New Hampshire area, therefore the Contractors are uniquely
qualified to provide these services.

The purpose of this request is to provide assistance to refugee students in Concord.
Manchester and Nashua who are within one (1) year of arrival to the United States in order that
they may achieve Improved academic performance and social adjustments.

Approximately 400 students In the Concord. Manchester and Nashua area will be served
from October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2023.

The Contractors provide culturally competent assistance, In collaboration with agencies
who provide health and mental health care services, child care, and social services, In order to
strengthen the ability of refugee children to achieve success in New Hampshire school systems.
Direct assistance Is provided to newly arrived students In these areas:

•  School enrollment and orientation for students and their parents.

•  Linguistically appropriate tutoring.

•  Study support.

•  Interpretation services.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

•  Number and percentage of students who achieve academic success;

•  Number of parents receiving education or training.

•  Number of school personnel who report Increased cultural competence;

•  Number of Incidences of linguistic support provided in schools by Contractors;

•  Participation In school-sponsored programs;

•  Effectiveness of health care referrals:

•  Number of parents attending parent-teacher conferences;

t  Percent of referrals and attendance at after school programs; and

•  Percentage of students assisted with registration for summer programs.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugee children
and their parents may lack support necessary to succeed in school.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA# 93.566 FAIN# 1901NHRSOC

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.



His Excellency, Govemof Christopher T. Sununu
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Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-042-79220000-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. OFFICE OF HEALTH
EQUITY. CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES. REFUGEE SERVICES

Fiscal Class/
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

Amount
Revised Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $37,500 $0 $37,50G

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,00C

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $12,500 $37,500 $50,000

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $0 $50,000 $50,000

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $0 $12,500 $12,500

Subtotal: $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

Intemational Institute of New Enqland, Inc. (177551)

Fiscal Year
Class/

Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

Amount
Revised Budget

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

■2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

:2022 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $12,500 $37,500 $50,000
2023 102/500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs 42200024 $0 $50,000 $50,000

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $0 $12,500 $12,500

Subtotal: $200,000 $100,000 $300,000

•Atiachmeni • Bureau of Behavioral Health
Financial Detail
PaQe 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This Amendment to .the Refugee School Impact Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or ■■Department") and International
Institute of New England. Inc. ("the Contractor'^).
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 21, 2018 (Item #8), as amended on September 18. 2019, (Item #7), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums.specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
General Provisions. Section 3. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the'parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council: and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

•  NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
September 29, 2023.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:
$300,000.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by replacing in its entirely with
Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment Amendment #2, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Add Exhibit B-6 Budget Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

5. Add Exhibit 8-7 Budget Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

6. Add Exhibit B-8 Budget Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

International Institute of New England. Inc. Contractor Initials^ , S/5/2021
RFP-2018-OHe-01 -REFUG-02-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date



OocuS(gn Envelope ID: FOA3C08A-5324-4063-9Fl8-A0E4FgaO2803

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective, upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/24/2021

Date

G—OeeuStgnad bjf:
Ann H. N. Landry
-24BAft37E08Ea4t«_

Name: Ann h. n. Landry

Title;
Associate Commissioner

S/5/2021

Date

International Institute of New England, Inc.

-OocuSlgncd by:>  PocuaJgf>»o

^  57AlEPlCK7Ae«59._

Name: Jeffrey Thielman

Title:
President & CEO

International Institute of New England, Inc. Amendment U2

RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

— DMuSljMd by:

5/24/2021

DocuMMd by:

.C>$CAfl303e32C4AE..

□ate Name: Catherine Pinos
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Inlernalional Institute of New England, inc. Amendment #2

RFP-2018-OHE-01 .REFUG-02-A02 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of HeaUh and Human Services
Refugee SchooMmpact Program

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This Agreement Is funded by Federal Funds from the US Department of Health
and Human Services. Federal Office of Refugee Resettlement, Refugee
School Impact (RSI) Program, as awarded on September 29, 2020, by the US
Department of Health and Human Services, Federal Office of Refugee
Resettlement, CFDA# 93.566 FAIN# 1901NHRSOC.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subreceplent , In
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D. in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 20% applies In accordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
Incurred In the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line Item, as specified In Exhibits B-l, Budget through Exhibit B-
8, Budget, Amendment #2. The Contractor shall include additional
documentation, as requested by the Department, that Includes, but is not
limited to:

3.1. Receipts.

3.2. Timecards.

3.3. Cost allocation sheets.

3.4. Credit card statements.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and'
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred In the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the Invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department In order to Initiate payment.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to beth.kellv@dhhs.nh.qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

6. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30^ays
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invol^^d

International institute of New England. Inc. Exhibit B, Amendment Contractor Initials
5/5/2021

RFP.2018-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Pag©lof3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 . of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final invoice-shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

10. Notwithstariding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been"
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget OfTice may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.'

12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part

jr

International Institute of New England, Inc. Exhibit B. Amendment tt2 Contractor Initials
5/5/2021

RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-02.A02 Page2ol3 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact-Program

EXHIBIT 8, Amendment #2

200. Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Inlernalional Institule of New England, Inc. Exhibit B, Amendment F2 Contractor Initials
5/5/2021

RFP.2018-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Page 3 of 3 . Date
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JefTrcy A. M<yen
Commb>iontr

STATE OF NEW HAlNtPSHTRE

7
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND

OFFiCE OF THE COMMISSIONER

PM 2-00 OAS
R VICES

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 0330L3857

603-271-9389 I-800-8S2-334S Ext 9389

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Acccii: I-800-73S-2964 tt^ww.dhhs.nh.gov

August 29. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council .

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

' Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Health Equity, to exercise
renewal options to existing agreements with the vendors listed below to continue providing school
related services for newly arriving and vulnerable New Hampshire refugees by increasing the total price
limitation by $200,000 from $200,000 to $400,000 and by extending the contract completion date from
September 30. 2019 to September 30, 2021, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The Governor and Exececutive Council approved the original agreements on March 21, 2018
(Item #8).

VENDOR
VENDOR

NUMBER
VENDOR ADDRESS AMOUNT

INCREASE/

(DECREASE)

MODIFIED

AMOUNT

Ascentria

Community
Services. Inc.

222201

261 Sheep Davis Rd,
.Suite A-1

Concord NH 03301

$100,000 $100,000 $200,000

International

Institute of New

England, Inc.

177551

2 Boylston Street. 3rd
. Floor

Boston MA 02lie

$100,000 $100,000 $200,000

TOTALS: $200,000 $200,000 $400,000

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and
2021. with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified

05-95-042-79220000-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES, REFUGEE
SERVICES

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (222201)

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account

Class Title Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased.

Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
42200024 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2019 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for 42200024 $12,500 $37,500 $50,000
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Prog Svcs

2021 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
42200024 $0 $50,000 $50,000

2022 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 $0 $12,500 $12,500

Suft/o/a/: $100,000 $100,000 $200,000

International Institute of New England, Inc. |177551)

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account

Class Title Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

Amount

Revised

Budget

■ 2018 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 $37,500 $0 $37,500

2019 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
42200024 $12,500 $37,500 $50,000

2021 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 SO $50,000 $50,000

2022 102/500731
Contracts for

Proq Svcs
42200024 $0 $12,500 ;$12,500

Subtotal: $100,000 $100,000 $200,000

Contract Total: $200,000 $200,000 $400,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue assisting refugee students in Concord, Manchester
and Nashua who are within one (1) year of arrival to the United Stales in order that they may achieve
improved academic performance and social adjustments.

Approximately 200 Individuals will be served from Octot>er 1, 2019 to September 30. 2021.

The original agreements included language in Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3 that allows.the
Department to renew the contracts for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of
funding, satisfactory performance of service, parlies' written authorization, and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council. The Department is In agreement with renewing sen/Ices with each of
the vendors for two (2) of the two (2) years at this time.

Direct assistance is provided to newly arrived students in these areas:

•  School enrollment and orientation for students and their parents.

•  Linguistically appropriate tutoring.

•  Study support.

•  Interpretation services.

The Contractors provide culturally compentent assistance, In collaboration with agencies who
provide health and mental health care services, child care, and social services, in order to strengthen
the ability of refugee children to achieve success in New Hampshire school systems:



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

The fotlowing performance measures are used to measure the effectiveness of these contracts:

Number and percentage of students who achieve academic success;

Number of parents receiving education or training.

Number of school personnel who report increased cultural competence;

Number of incidences of linguistic support provided In schools by Contractors;

Participation in school-sponsored programs;

Effectiveness of health care referrals;

Number of parents attending parent-teacher conferences;

Percent of referrals and attendance at after school programs; and

Percentage of students assisted with registration for summer programs.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugee children and their
parents may lack support necessary to succeed in the Manchester, Nashua, and Concord school
systems.

Area served: Concord. Manchester, and Nashua

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Administration for Children and Families,
Office of Refugee Resettlement, Refugee and Entrant Assistance. State Administered Programs -
Refugee health Promotion Grant, Federal Office of Refugee Resettlement, CFDA# 93.566. FAIN U
1901NHRSOC.

In.the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program. '

spectfully submitted,

Jeffrey A. (Meyers
imissioner

The Deporlmcnt o!Uenlih and Hnnxan Servieei'Mi*$\on a u>)o'm coniniunitia and(omiliet
in prouiding opporiuniliet for eilaens 10 achieve heollh and independence.



NiBW Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the Refugee School Impact Program Contract

This 1*' Amendment to the Refugee School Impact Program contract (hereinaher referred to as
'Amendment ffT) is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire, pepartmenl of Health and Human
Services (hereinalter referred to as the 'State" or "Department") and International Institute of New
England. Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor'), a nonprofit with a place ol business at 2
Boylston St. S*** Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02116.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 21, 2018 (Item 08), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the Stale and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Section 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions. Section 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement ol Ihe parlies and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #t remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

2. September 30. 2021.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$200,000.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block i .9, Contracting Officer for Slate Agency, to read:

Nathan 0. White. Director.

5. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10. Stale Agency Telephone Number, to read;

603-271-9631.

6. Delete and replace Exhibit 8-3, Budget with Exhibit 8-3. Amendment 01, Budget Sheet.

7. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment 01. Budget Sheet.

8. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment 01. Budget Sheet.

9. Delete Exhibit K. OHHS Information Security Requirements, 6/6017 and replace with Exhibit K,

DHHS Information Security .Requirements, VS. Last update 10/09/18.

Ji"
Intomational Institute ol New England, inc.. Amendmoni I Contractor Initials: i .

RFP.2018-OHE-01'ReFUG-02-A01 Page 1013 Date: o jZoJlj



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

Date

\Asif\AiA)
Name: Lon'
™e: ^tXAj^SSiOlLc/'

Intetoalional Institute of New England. Inc.,

Nam?: ' iVji-el
?vesc4fnT+ ceo

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

Stale of M .. County of5^FPr>\\^ on
Jirectiy above,

13_ before the
undersigned oflicer, personally appeared the person identified directfy abovfe, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
ipacity indicated above.

Signature of rT5la^LPliJ6lfia^67"dti?rice of the Peace

p\e>V\Veti ̂ oei\\omaL..
Name and Title of notary"or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

■  AahloyM.Wellbroch

-UadiH.20U

Iniernalional InsHiule ol New England. Inc.. Amendment

RFP-20^8-OHE-0»-ReFUG-02-A01 Page 2 ol 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee School Impact Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this oHice, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Name: ^
Title: Wy

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the f^^eeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

InlerrwHonal Institute o( New EnQland, Inc., Amendment #1

RPP-2018-OHE-0I-REFUG-02-A01 Page 3 ot 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The foiiowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term relerring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or poientlal access to personalty Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident* shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident* in section two (2) of NIST Publication eoo-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information
disclosed by one parly to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal inlormation including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identiliable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Inlormation (PFI), Federal Tax Inlormation (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accouniability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knov/ledge. instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss ol data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

VS.UsJupdate iO/M/18 £*hWiK ConiractwinWats
DHHS Inlormation

Sacufliy Raqulromanw SicLo/li
Pago 1 ol 9



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all o( which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment ot a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means o1 the Slate, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359*C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as dale and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc. ^

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for, Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health information al 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a' standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure ol Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Inlormation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but no! limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidenlial Inlormation In response to a

Ml I

vs. Lasiopdat# uyo9/iB Eihbit K Coniraciof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on (he basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS SO that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to (he disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional securily safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to ihe terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance wilh the terms of this
Contract.

W. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSfrtlSSION OF DATA

1.. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, Ihe Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber securily and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHMS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Slorage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Dala via cerf/Z/ed ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

6. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidenilal Dala via an open

vs. Lasi updalo 1(V09/ie K Contfacior Inhials ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. II End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
Iransmltied or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. II
End. User is employing, an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure ol Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside ol the United
Slates. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery tocations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential informalion for conlractor provided systems.

3. The Conlractor agrees to provide security awareness and educalion for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Conlractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and idanilfied in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidantial Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAfvlP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supporled and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anii-spam. anti-spyware, and anti-malware ulililies. The environment, as a

vs. Laaiypdaio lOrt>9/i0 EnWbUK ConjfacioflfJiiois,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection o( any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Inlormation on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State ol New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
saniiizatlon, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NlST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for f^edia Sanitization, National (nsiiiute of Standards and Technology, U. -S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data deslruclion. and will provide whiten certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be.jointly
evaluated by the Slate and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days ol the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data-received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to proiecl Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, andyor stored in the delivery
ol contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential inlormation throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure deslruclion) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information tor contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. II the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systerhs access forms, and corriputer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access lo any Department syst0m(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If ihe'Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the.Depadment and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey bo completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10- The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or .outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
.make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call cenier services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes arxJ regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security ol PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act ol 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.P.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Conlidentiat Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at httpsy/www.nh.gov/doitArendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process.. The Contractor v/ill notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this inlormation at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V5. Lasi updoto 10/09/18 6xhbli K Conifaclof Inlilals _
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confideniial information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locKs, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Conridential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally Ideniifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessrri'ent of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third parly application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 30S. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Lui update 1<V09/I9 Exhipti K ConKaciorlnliiels,
DHHS Intormsiion

Socurliy Requi/efnenis
PagoSolS Dale

JT
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

omcs OF HEALTH EQVITY

9T PLEASANT STREET CONCORD. NH 0330MS67
603-271-3986 )-800-8&2-3346 Ext. 3986

Fes: 603-271-0824 TDD Accett: 1-800-736-8964 www.dbht.nb.gov

February 27. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councii

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Oepariment of Health and Human Services. Office of Health Equity, to enter Into
retroactive agreements with the two (2) vendors listed below, for the New Hampshire School Impact
Program, in an amount not to exceed $200,000. to provide school related services to newly arriving
and vulnerable New Hampshire refugees effective retroactive to November 1. 2017. upon Governor
and Executive Council approval, through Seplernber 30, 2019. 100% Federal Funds.

VENDOR VENDOR ADDRESS
VENDOR

NUMBER

TOTAL

AMOUNT

Ascentria Community Services.
Inc.

261 Sheep Davis Rd. Suite A-1
Concord NH 03301

222201 $100,000

International Institute of New
England, Inc.

2 Boylston Street. 3rd Floor
Boston 1^02116

177551 $100,000

TOTAL; $200,000

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2018 through 2019. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020. upon the availatsility and continued apprbpriation
of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between Stale Fiscal
Years ttvough the Budget Office without further approval from Governor and Executive Council, if
needed and justified.

05-95-042-79220000-500731 HEALTH. AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES. REFUGEE
SERVICES

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (222201)

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2018 102^500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $37,500

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $50,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $12,500

Sublofa/; 5100,000



His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

International Institute of New England, Inc. (177651)

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $37,500

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $50,000

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs 42200024 $12,500

St/bfota/; $100,000

Contract Total: $200,000

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services.
Administration for Children and Families. Office of Refugee Resettlement, was delayed in issuing the
Notices of Award to all recipients. The delays at the federal level resulted in delays for the New
Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services in receiving and accepting the funds for this
contract.

Funds in these agreements wii! be used to assist refugee students in Concord. Manchester and
Nashua, who are within one (1) year of arrival to the United States, to achieve Improved academic
peflormance and social adjustment. Direct assistance will be provided to newly arrived students in
these areas;

•  School enrollment and orientation for students and their parents.

•  Linguistically appropriate tutoring.

•  Study support.

•  Translation services.

The selected vendors will provide culturally compentent assistance in collaboration with
agencies who provide health and mental health care services, child care, and social sen/ices in order to
strengthen the ability of refugee children to achieve success in New Hampshire school systems.

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.. and International Institute of New Erigland, Inc.. were
selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on the
Department of Health and Human Services' website from April 10, 2017 through June 8. 2017.

'  The Depariment received two (2) proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a
team of individuals with program specific knowledge. Their decision followed a thorough discussion of
the strengths and weaknesses of the proposals. The final decision was made through consensus
scoring. The Score Summary Is attached.

These agreements Include Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General Provisions, paragraph 3. which
reserves the Department's option to renew contract services for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to continued funding, satisfaction with vendor services and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of
these contracts:

•  Number and percentage of students who achieve academic success;
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•  Number" of parents receiving education or training.

•  Number of school personnel who report increased cultural competence;

•  Number of incidences of linguistic support provided in schools by Contractors;

•  Participation in school-sponsored programs;

•  Effectiveness of health care referrals;

•  Number of parents attending parent-tcacher conferences;

•  Percent of referrals and attendance at after school programs; and

•  Percentage of students assisted with registration for summer programs.

Should Governor and ..Executive Council not authorize this Request, refugee children and their
parents-may lacK support necessary to. succeed in the Manchester. Nashua, and Concord school
systems. '

Area served: Concord. Manchester, and Nashua

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Administration for Children and Families.
Office of Refugee Resettlement. Refugee and Entrant Assistance, State Administered Programs -
Refugee health Promotion Grant. Federal Office of Refugee Resettlement.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

ReStectfully submirted.

■j
Trinidad Tellez. MD
director

l^v-
Approved by: \Wrey A. Meyers

^mmlssioner

Th« Deparimfnl of Heollh ond Human Scrvitti'MUthn It lojoln communiliet ond fonuU<t
in providing opportunllltt for citiient lo ochitvt heoUh and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

NH Refugee School rmpact Prograrn

RFP Namo

RFP-2018-OHE-O1-REFUG

RFP Numt>er Reviewer Names

V
Trinidad TeOez. Sysytem "Speciartst

Bidder Name
Maximum

Points

Actual

Points
2.

Aneb Kruscica. Program Coordinator

1.

Ascentria Community Services. Inc. 650 605

3.

Barttara Seebari. Program Specialist IV

2.

International Institute of New Erigland. inc.... 650 533

4.

Sriawn Barry. Program Specialist ill

5.

Lauara McGla&rian. Pfogram SpeciaCsi lit

6.

Ptiiiip Nadeau. Administratof IH-



FORM NUMBER P-37 (venioo S/8/I5)

Subjeci; Refugee School Impact Proeram fRFP-70 \ B-GHE-Ol -REFUG-O^^

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any informalion that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I. I State Agency Name
NH Ocpanmeni of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street -

Concord. NH 03301-3857

IJ Contractor Name

International Institute of New England. Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

2 Boylston St.. 3"* Floor
Boston. MA02II6

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

6I7.695-W90

1.6 Account Number

05-095-042-4220010-

79220000-500731

1.7 Completion Date

September 30, 2019

1.8 Price Limitation

SlOO.OOO

1.9 Contracting Officer for State AgcfKy
E. Maria Rcinemann, Esq.

if Contraciwnd Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

Com S'gor ure 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory ^

1.13 /Kknowlcdgemeni: State of .County of K

On / *1? f E. u) before the undersigned'officer, personalty appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfoctorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block I. H, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document irt the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

^ l(x. A/(1. 13.1 simmtKui Nunli V public or jmufi or ing

1.13.2 N

RrTAU.WCOONOUQH
NOTARVPUBUC

eTATE OP MASBACHUarrrS
n  11 I ■ nil riiiB 11 ttawa

mtWTillf nrNniiry nr lnnirr nfiho ^ ./V\c

4 Stai^gency Signature i 5 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
0-f

Agency Signatory

rk 0-^
Dale: Z*

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department bTbAdministration, Division of Personnel (i/applieable)

^

By: Director, On:

17 Approval by il^ Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By: (

ud
yr//5

1.18 Approi^ by the Governor and Execuii>id'T^r>cil Ji/op^itoble)

By; / y ■ • On:

Page I of 4



2. employment OF contractor/services TO
BE PERFORMED. The Swie of New Hampshire, acjing
through ihe agency idencified in block l.l (' Stoic ), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor ) to perfonn,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporaicd herein by reference
CServices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Noiwiihstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subjcct.io the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNewHampshirt. if
applicable, this Agreement, and ail obligations of the panics
hcrcunder. shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement u indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
(he Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
I.UC'EITcctivc Date").
3.3 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services perforrrKd by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date Shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Coniracior, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the Swte shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.
Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcrcunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
' offui>ds. and in no event shall the State bcliabic for any

payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or lennlnation of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate (his Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such icfminaiion. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to ihc Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRiCEn»RICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
paytrteni are identified and more particularly described in
EXHrerr B which is irKorporaicd herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by (he Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Coniraciof other than the contract

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to (he Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the loul of ail payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8. .

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
opportunity.

•6.1 In connection with the pcKormanceofthe Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of fc^dcral. state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliaor
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition. ihc Coniractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the lerrri of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual oricntatiott. or national origin and will take
afTirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 Ifihis Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States. the Contractor-shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Depanmcm of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement ihc.sc regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this AgieerrKni.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Service.*. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualiHcd to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of $i* (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom,it is engaged in a combined elTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or ofTicial. who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance^of this

pnce.

Page 2 or4
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A^ccmcni. This provision shall survive terrnlnadon orihts
Agreemeni.

7.3 The Coniraciing Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the inierpreistion of this Agreement,
(he Contracting Orflcer's decision shall be final for the Sute..

8. EV£NT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundcr

I'Eveni ofOefaulf);
8.1.1 failure lo perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, lenn or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrerKe of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give (he Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from (he date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days aRcr giving the Coniracior notice of lerminaiion;
8.2.2 give (he Coniroctor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agrecmeni and ordering (hot the ponion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

Shall nevei be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the. State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State sufTcrs by reason of any
Event of Default; ar^or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCCSS/COiNFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or develops by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, rcpons,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chans, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and docunTcnts,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data aruj any properly which has been received from
the Slate or purcha.sed with funds provided for thai purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the Stale upon demand or upon
termination of (his Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSa
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any rea.^n other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a-report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the dale of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Rcpon shall be identical to those of any Final Repon
described in the aiiKhed EXHfBrT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent coniracior. and is neiiher an agent nor
an employee of the Siaie. Neiiher the Coniractor-nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Stoic or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12.ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written r>o(ice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subconiracicd by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Coniracior shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of (he State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSUR^kNCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and mainiaif> in force, (he following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ I .OOO.OOOper occurrence and S2,000.000
aggregate ; and
14.1.2 speciol cause of loss-coverage form covering all
properly subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Coniroctor shall furnish lo the Comraccing OfTicer
idcnlified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, o cenif«caie<s)
of insurance for insurance required under this Agreement.
Contnctor shall also furnish (o the Contracting OfHcer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cenificate(s) of
InsurarKc for all rcncwrB](s) of insurance required under this
Agrccmem no later than thirty (30) days prior lo the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certinca(c<s)of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and ate
incorporated herein by reference. Each ceniricaie(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting OfTicer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modincstlon of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

I S.I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Conirector is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28) - A
/"H'orkers' Co'»penui(ion"j.
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A, Contractor shall
mainiain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compcruaiion in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undcrukc pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting OITicer idcniirted in block 1.9, Or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manna described it> N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall r>ot be
responsible for payment of-any Workers' Compensaiion
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in contKCiion with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAJVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiva of the right of the Stale to enforce each and all of the
provisiortf hereof upon any funhcr or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing'by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses ,
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agrcemcni may be amended,
weivcd'or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto arid only afia approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Goverrxji and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless r>o

such approval is required under the circumstarKcs pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express ihdr mutual
intent, and no rule of construct ioit shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
ore for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the imerpretaiion, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C tire incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. inihe event any ofthe provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of compacnt jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
elTect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding baween the panics, and supersedes alt prior
Agreements and understandings relating hacio.
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Now Hampshlro Oopartmont of Health and Human Sarvlcea
Rofugoo School Impact Program

exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language
assistance services they wll provide to persons with limited English
proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services
within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the
New Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an
Impact on the Services described herein, the Slate Agency has the righl to
modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall implement a Refugee School Impact (RSI) program to
provide culturally appropriate school support to refugee students and their
families in the f^anchester and Nashua school districts.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide translation and interpretation ■ services for
refugee students and their families in languages that include, but are not
limited to:

1.4.1. Arabic.

1.4.2. French.

1.4.3.' Hindi.

1.4.4. Kiswahill.

1.4.5. Nepali.

1.4.6. Swahili.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall provide services to elementary through high school
aged refugees In the Manchester and Nashua School Districts, who have
been resettled through the Contractor's Manchester Resettlement Program,
and have been in the United States tor less than one (1) year at the
beginning of the school year. Refugees may include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Asylees;

2.1.2: Individuals who have special Immigrant visas (SIVs);

2.1.3. Other OfTice of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) defined eligible
immigrants; or

2.1.4. Secondary migrants if they move to the Manchester or Nashua
communities.

siT
IfttemstionaMnsIitute of Now England. Iftc ExhiWiA Contrador imwis —

RFP.20l8OHE-0l-fleFUG-02 ,Po9«1of6 . Ooto «</ ̂ 6f



Now Hampshira Dapartmont of Haalth and Human Sorvicas
Rofugea School Impact Program

Exhibit A

2.2. The Contractor shall provide services to a minimum of one hundred and fifty
(150) students that include, but are not limited to:

2.2.1. Enhanced registration services at the high school, middle school,
and elementary school levels including, but not limited to:

2.2.1.1. Coordinating deliveries of free, backpacks and school
supplies to students.

2.2.1.2. Coordinating school tours.

2.2.1.3. Facilitating the scheduling of tests and appointments
wiih guidance departments.

2.2.1.4. Coordinating transportation, as needed.

2.2.2. Comprehensive school orientations for students, that include, but
are not limited to:

2.2.2.1. Enhanced school registrations.

2.2.2.2. Age appropriate equivalent systems.

2.2.2.3. Tutoring programs to assist students to complete
assignments.

2.2.2.4. Advocate services to obtain classroom support for
students with academic or social challenges.

2.2.3. Tutoring programs that focus on assisting students to understand
and complete classroom and homework assignments..

2.2.4. Mentoring programs and psycho-social support groups for students.

2.2.5. One-on-one classroom support, for up to five (5) students per *
week. In both English and the student's native language.

2.2.6. Leadership development activities including, but not limited to:

2.2.6.1. Teamwork activities.

2.2.6.2. . Civic and engagement and volunteer activities.

2.2.6.3. Peer mentoring and advocacy.

2.2.7. Liaison services to provide linguistic support to students and
cultural orientations to staff.

2.2.8. After-school and summer programs that support remedial work
and/or promote school readiness, which include but are not limited
to:

2.2.8.1. Two {2} summer field trips to area museums, historical
locations, or Institutes of higher education.

2.2.8.2. Four (4) trips to outdoor recreational areas.

2.2.8.3. One (1) summer art project.
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2.2.8.4. Summer tutoring 'and study support that promotes
school readiness.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide support services to parents of refugee students
in order that parents may assist students with school-related activities, that
include but are not limited to;

2.3.1. Orientations for parent of students to facilitate parental Interaction
with the school system., which includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.1.1. Guiding parents through the school system.

2.3.1.2. Explaining school academic testing practices.

2.3.1.3. Explaining homework expectations.

2.3.1.4. Explaining how to read student reports.

2.3.1.5. Providing an introduction to post-secondary education
options.

2.3.1.6. Providing training and orientation relative to school
culture and expectations.

2.3.1.7. Scheduling one-on one in-person meetings with IINE-
Manchester staff to:

2.3.1.7.1. Discuss school placements.

2.3.1.7.2. Review the roles of parents, teachers, and
students.

2.3.2. Accompanying parents to school open house sessions to:

2.3.2.1. Explain student schedules.

2.3.2.2. Introduce parents and teachers.

2.3.2.3. Orient parents to classrooms and resources.

2.3.2.4. Provide translation services as needed.

2.3.3. Explaining procedures for transporting, students to school, including
bus enrollment.

2.3.4. Completing student enrollment in schools and related programs.
Including but not limited'to:

2.3.4.1. School lunch programs.

^  2.3.4.2. Afterschool programs

2.4. The Contractor shall be available to provide tutoring, language and
translation services for students and their parents at the Manchester office
location from 3:00 PM to 8:00 PM at least three school days per week. The
Contractor shall ensure services include, but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Homework assistance.

imomBilono'l^sUluto ol New England. Inc EiNWiA Conuaoor inHWs—__—
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2.4.2. English language practice groups.

2.4.3. Basic social services support.

2.5. The Contractor shall assist refugee families to engage in community and
family supports, that include but are not limited to;

2.5.1. Accessing schools at regularly scheduled Intervals, including
parent-teacher conferences.

2.5.2. Accessing computer and internet services.

2.5.3. Ability to attend a minimum of four (4) Family Literacy Night events.

2.5.4. Access to support services through referrals for:

2.5.4.1. Case management.

2.5.4.2. Housing assistance.

2.5.4.3. Health services.

2.5.4.4. Mental health services.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide senrices to school personnel in the Manchester
and Nashua school system, including, but not limited to:

2.6.1. Linguistic and cultural competence training for school personnel.

2.6.2. Four (4) Infonmationai sessions on topics as they relate to refugee
students, including, but not limited to:

2.6.2.1. Dietary needs.

2.6.2.2. Religious holidays.

2.6.2.3. Literacy rates.

2.6.2.4. Respective challenges.

2.6.2.5. Family dynamics.

2.6.2.6. Relevant community services.

2.7. The Contractor shall partner with a variety of Ethnic Community Based
Organizations (ECBO's), to assist with outreach, in order to encourage
parent Involvement in schools and the community.

2.8. The Contractor shall provide communication assistance, at no cost and in a
timely manner, to all limited English-proficient and deaf or hard of hearing
student refugees and their parents.' The Contractor shall ensure
communication assistance includes, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. Posting 'I Speak' signage in the Manchester office reception area.

2.8.2. Conducting intake meetings with refugee families to:

2.8.2.1. Verify Information provided from overseas.

2.8.2.2. Identify and note preferred languages.
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2.8.3. Explaining and Iranslaling procedures for filing a discrimination
complaint.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain a diverse staff that reflects the demographics
of the population served.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure staff is trained in federal civil rights lavk'S
compliance, including, but not limited to. policies and procedures for
handling discrimination complaints.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure staff includes, but is not limited to:

3.3.1. One (1) Arab Youth and Parent Liaison who will work in
collaboration with the Manchester School District.

3.3.2. One (1) Nepalese Youth and Parent Liaison who will work in
collatjoralion with the Manchester School District

3.3.3. One (1) Part-Time Program Director (.10-.20 FTE) to oversee
program operations.

3.4. The Contractor shall ensure each employee and volunteer providing
services to students in this agreement completes the forms as follows:

3,4.1. The State of NH Criminal Background Check form. The Contractor
shall:

3.4.1.1. Ensure the form and payments of associated fees are
submitted to the Department of Safety for processing.

3.4.1.2. Ensure results received from the Department of Safety
are on ftle, on premises and available to the Department
upon request.

3.5. The Contractor shall meet with the Department a minimum of one (1) time
• per month to provide updates on progress toward meeting performance
measures, program goals and program objectives..
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4. Reporting

4.1. The Conlraclor shall provide narrative reports with a summary of project
outcomes to the Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the
month following the dose of the reporting period in Subsection 4.2. Table 1.

4.2. Table 1

Reporting Period Trimester Report Due Date

10/.1/2017- 1/31/2018 2/15/2018

2/1/2018-5/31/2018 6/15/2018

6/1/2018-9/30/2018 10/15/2018 .

10/1/2018- 1/31/2019 2/15/2019

2/1/2019-5/31/2019 6/15/2019

6/1/2019-9/30/2019 10/15/2019

Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall address academic and social needs of refugee
students in the Manchester and Nashua School Districts t)eginning no later
than ten (10) days after the contract effective date.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide services to a minimum of one hundred fifty
(150) students and their families.

Performance Measures

6.1. The Contract or shall ensure that;

6.1.1. At least 90% of refugee families served complete the New Refugee
School Orientation Program.

6.1.2. 90% of the parents of refugee students participate in at least one
(1) parent/teacher conference.

6.1.3. 90% of the parents of refugee students participate in at least one
(1) school Open Hose event.

6.1.4. 85% of refugee families participate in at least one (1) Family
Literacy event.

6.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan for any
performance measure not achieved on a monthly basis.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1  This contract is funded with funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services,
Federal OfTice of Refugee Resettlement. US Department of Health and Human Services.
Federal Office of Refugee Resettlement. Refugee School Impact (RSI) Program. CFDA
#93.566.

2 The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. General
Provisions. Block 1.6. Price Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to
Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

3 The Contractor shall use and apply all contract funds for authorized direct and Indirect costs
to provide services in Exhibit A Scope of Services, in accordance with Exhibit 8-1. Budget.
Exhibit 8-2. Budget and Exhibit 8-3. Budget,

4. Payment for services provided in accordance with Exhbiti A, shall be made as follows:
4.1. Payments shall be made on a cosi reimbursement basis only for allowable costs,

expenses and fees Identified in Exhibit B-1, Budget: Exhibit 8-2, Budget and Exhibit
B-3. Budget.

4 2 Allowable costs and expenses shall include only those expenses detailed in Exhibit
B-1. Budget. Exhibit 8-2, Budget and Exhibit 8-3 Budget.

4 3. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a forrn satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The invoice
must be completed, signed, dated and relumed to the Department in order to initiate
payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities .related to
Department programs and services.

■ 4.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

4.5. • The Contractor shall submit a final Invoice to the Stale no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date Idenllfied in Form P-37, Block 1.7 Complellon Date.

4.6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to: Barbara.seebart@dhhs.nh.Qov. Otherwise, invoices shall be mailed to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Office of Health Equity
97 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

4.7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
Identified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both
parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

20lfl-OHE-0l-REFUG-02 Exhibil B Contraclor InilialS '
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Coniractor covcn'ants arid agrees thai alt funds received by ihe Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only .as payment to the Coniractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance ol the aforesaid covenants, the Contraaor hereby covenants and
egrees as follows:

1  Complianco wlth-Fodbral and Stale Lows: If the Contractor Is permltied to determine tho eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
slate laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2: Time and Menner of Dotormlnation: Elloibillty dolermlnalions shall be mode on foims pro>^ed by
the Department for that purpose and shaH be made and reniade al such times as are prescnbed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Conuaclor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall Include all
information necessary to.support an eligibitily determination ar>d such other information as the

- Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Oepartmeni with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or rcqvrfre.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
Individuals declared Ineligibia have a right to a fair hearing regarding that deierminalion. The
Conlractof hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants lor services shall be permitted to fill out
an applicalion form arxJ that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of hisfher right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer ol cmploymenl on behalf of the Conuactor. any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performarwe of the Scope ol Worl< detailed in Exhsbit A of this
Contract. The Slate may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it Is
determined ihafpayments.gratuities or offers of employment ol any kind were ottered or received by
any offidais, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, conuaci or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Ettcclivo Dale of the Contract
arvj no payments shall be made (or expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or {cxcepf es otherwise provided by the
federal regulaiions) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7  Conditions of Purchoso: Nolwiihslsnding anything to the contrary contained In the Cont/acL nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Oepartmeni to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at e rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rale charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
furtders for such service. If at any lime during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expertdilure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by (he Contractor to Ineligible Individuals
Of other third party funders. the Department may electto:,

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future paymeni to the Contractor the amount of any prior relmbursemenl In

excess of costs: ^

J \
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7.3. Demand repayment of (he excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall coristilule an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of irtdividuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by (he Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual v^o is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTEI^ANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: in eddition to (he eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to molniain the foOowing records during the Contract Period:
6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Coniractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period; said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which suffioently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the OepartmenL-snd
to include, wiihoul limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, tabor'time cards, payrolls, and olher records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollmeni. attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding (he provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

6.3. Medical Records; Where appropriate and as prascn'bed by (he Department reguialkms, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each paitent/recipieni of services.

9. Audit: Coniractor stiall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Mariagement and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of States. Local Goverrvnenis, and Non
Profit OrganlzaUons' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions.'issued by the US General Accounting Offcce (GAG siar)dards) as
ihey pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audil and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
(he Contract for purposes of audil. examlnaiion. excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audil Liabilities: In addiik)n lo and not in any way in limitation of obtigations of the Contract, it is
uixferslood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for eny slate
or federal audil exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments'made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or wh'ich have been'disallovi^d because of such an
exception.

10. Conndontiallty of Records: Alt Information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or cotlected
in connection with the performarKc of the services end the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, (hat pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
(he Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public offtciais requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for. purposes
directly connecled to the administration of the services and (he Contract; and provided further, that
(he use or disclosure by any parly of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of (he Oepadment or the Contractor's respcn^bllities with
respect to purchased services hereui^er is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
al&>mey or guardian.
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Notwilhstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survh/e the tcrmiriation of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Ropoits: Fiscal and Statistical: The Corttractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
limes if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Oeparimeni to
justify the rate of payment hcreunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by (he Department,or deemed satisfectory by the Oeparvnent.

11.2. Final Report: A flnol report shot! bo submitted within thirty (30) days oher the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in e form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other information required by the OepartmenL

12. Complotton of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon paymeni of the price fimliabon
hcreunder. the Contract and all the obligalions of C^e parties hereundcr (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination.of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that K. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereundcr the Department shall retain U>e right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: Ail documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contracl shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) svas financed under a Contract with the Slate
of New Hampshire. Department ol Health and Human Services, with funds provided In port
by the Stale of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or •
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production.

• distribution Or use. The OHHS will retain copyrighl ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures; resource directories, prolocbis or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior vwitten approval from OHHS.

15. Oporation of Facilities: Compli'anco with Lows and Regulations: In the operaiion of any facilities
for providing services. Ihe Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
slate, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operaiion of the facility or the provision of the services al such lacifily. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for Itie operation of the said faciOiy or the performance of the sakJ services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will al all times comply with ihe terms end
cofxJiiions of each such license or pcrmil. In ccnneclion with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees thai, during the term of this Contracl the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office ol the Fire Marshal and
the local fire prelection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Emptoymeni
• Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Clwl Rights. Office of Justice programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit art EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient wiP provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profil.organiiations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirernent. but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http:/fwww.(^p.usdoi/about/oa/pdf$/cert.pd{.

17. Limited English Proflcloncy (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Umited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidarxe. nabonal origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of (he Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must talte reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meanirigful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistloblowor Protections; The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Amplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. S150.000)

Contractor Employee Whistleslower Rights and Reouirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This, contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower proteciidns established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 826 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.608.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of (his clause. Including this paragraph (c). in all
Subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. SubcoRtractore: OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the funclion(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's abltity to perfonm the delegated
function($). This is accompBshed through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is rxt adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as (he Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with (hose conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a furxtion to a subcon(ractor. the'Contrsctor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcor^tractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities end how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's

^performance is not adequate
19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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New Hsmpshira Oopartmont of HaaHh and Human Sorvfcoa
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to OHMS an annual schedule tdenlifying all subcontraclors. delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at Its disaetion. review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement ere Idervtified. the Contractor shan
talie corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in (he Contract, (he fotlowlng terms shall hove the followtng meanings:

COSTS; Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordahce
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Ocparirnent of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the ContrBClor Martual which is

entitled 'Financial Management Guidelines* and which contains the regulations governing the financial
ectrvities of contractor ogendes which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL if applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be pro.vided to eligible
individuals by the Conlrocior in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of lime or lhai'speoTied activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state taws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the lime to time.

CONTf^CTOR MANUAL: Shall mean (hat document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures AcL NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgaied thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees thai funds provided under this
Contract wtii not supplant any existir>g federal funds avaaable lor these services.

ExNDllC - Soeclsl Provisions Conlfctor (nlUili j
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New Hampshire Departmeot of Health aod Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4.of ihe General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature ol Agreement, is replaced as
follows;
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the Stale hereunder.
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement ore
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive eciion that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modirios the oppropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A; Scope of Services, in whole or in part In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modiTication of appropriated or available funds, the Stale shall have the right
(0 withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall, have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving Ihe Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modirication. The State shaD not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or accent Into the Account(s) Wenlirjed In blocK 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number,
or any other account, in the event fimds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the GoneraJ Provisions of this contraci. Termination, Is amended by adding the following
language;
10.1 The Stale may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discrelien of the State.

30 days after giving the Contractor vrriticn notice that the Stale is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of earty termination,
develop and submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the A^eement
and establishes a process to meel those needs.

10.3 The Contractor-shall fully cooperaia with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transillon Plan Including, but not limited to. any Information or .data requested by the
Stale related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are iransilioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, (ho Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. Tho Contractor shall include the proposed communicaiions in its Transition Plan submitted
to (he State as described above.

3. Extension:

The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availabiJity of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor end
Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Genorel Provisions Contractor Initials ,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDiNQ DRUG-PREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of (he Generat Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections S1S1-S160 of the Drug-Free Worlcptace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have (he Contractor's representative, es jdenlified in Sect'cns
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Cerlificalion;

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTIMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This ceitification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of (he Orug-Free
Workplace Act of 1986 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle 0:41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and pubGshed as Part 11 of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21S81-21691). and require cerlificalion by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that (hey vwll maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to (he Oeparlment in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the cerlificalion. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution.

• dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the act'ions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-freo awareness program to inform employo'es about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee osslslance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making H a requirement that each employee to bo engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying (he employee in the .statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condit'on of

employment under the grant, (he employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of (he statement; and
1.4.2. Notify (he employer in writing of his or her conviction for e violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within (en calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of conv'icled employees must provide r>otice. including posilionilKla. to every grant
officer on whose grant activ'ity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

0 • CertUicalion tegartfinoOruQFnw Contraclor IriUela
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
- Exhibit 0

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identiricaticn numbef{s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following ections. within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any empbyee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate persortnel eclbn against such an employee, up to and Including

lenmination. constslent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requinng such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug^free workplace through
implomenlalion of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2,1.3. 1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insetl in the space provided below the sile{s) for the performance of work done in
connection.with the specinc granL

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check 0 K there ore workplaces on Tile that are not idenliried here.

2 Nil
Date

Conoactor Na

am >: Jeffrey Thielman
(President & CEO

CUO*<S/U07O
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Now Hampahiro Doportment of Hoalth and Human Sorvicos
Exhibit E

CERTIFtCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor kJenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provialons agrees to comply with the "provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance tor New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Se^lons 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certirication;

US OEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IVO
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX '
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Developmenl Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certiries, to the best of his or her knowledge end belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employeo of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Cor)gr6SS. or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modificaHon of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employeo of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreemenl (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

1

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of .this certification be Included in the award
docurhent (or sub-awards.at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-granls. and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-rec'ipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
v/as made or cr>tered into. Submission of this certcTcalion is a prerequisite for making or enterirtg into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any persort who faib to file the required
certification shall be su^'ecl to a civil penalty of not less than 510.0(X) and not more than 5100,(XIO for
each such failure.

^ /6
Date \ Na/pe: Jeffrey Thielman

President & CEO

tractor Name:

CUCMKSn ic>0
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REQARDINQ DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Port 76 regarding Determent.
Suspens'on, and Other ResponsibiPly Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identrfied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting (his proposal (contract), the prospective primary participani is providing (he
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide (he certification required below will not necessarily resuK in denial
of participdUort in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanaliort wiD be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
detennination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanatton shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participani knowingly rendered an errorwous certirication. in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transition for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participani learns
lhat (Is certification was erroneous when submitted or has b^cme erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.* 'debarred.* "suspended.* "ineligible.* •lower tier covered
transaction,* 'participant.* 'person,* 'primary covered iransaclion.* 'prirKipal.* 'proposal,' and -
'voluntarily excluded.* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions end
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participani agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) (hat. should the
proposed covered transaction l>e entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participani further agrees by submitting this proposal that H will include the
clause tilled 'Certification Regarding Oebarment. Suspension. Ineligibility end Voluntary Exclusion -
l.ower Tier Covered Transactions,* provided by DHHS, without modification. In all lower liar covered
(ransactions and in all solicitations for lower tier'covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction moy rely upon a certification of a prospective participdni In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered (ransaction. unless it knows that (he certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide (he method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participanl.may. but is not r^uired to. chock the Nonprocurcmcnt List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be conslrued to require eslabdshment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the cetlificalion required by this clause. The knowledge and

Erfiitoll F - C«i1ir(C<tlon ftegtrdlrtQ OctMimfrni. Suspension Conliactoi Inflioti
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of busirwss dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorued under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction krtowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, inedible, or volunte/ily excluded from partic'rpation in this trensaclion. in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this trBr\saclion
for cause or default.

PRlftAARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospociive primary participant certifies to the l>est of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principab:
11.1. are r>ol presently debarred, suspertded. proposed for debanment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transadions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Stale anUtrusi
statutes or commission of embeulement. theft, forgery, bribery, fatsificalion or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmenial entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certincation; end

11.4. have not within a Ihree-ye.ar period preceding this application/proposat had one or more public
transactions (Federal. Slate or local) lormlnated for cause or defautl.

12. NVhere the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certificalion. such prospective participant shaO attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), (he prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Pah 76, certifies to the best of fts knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineiigibte. or

volunterity excluded from particlpalion In this transaction by any federal department or agertcy.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participani b unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier parlicipani further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regardirig Debarment. Suspension. Inetiglbility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without mc^ification In at) lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Q? //6

tractor Name;

Dale \ Na^e; Jeffrey Thieiman
President & CEO
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Now Hampshire Oopartmont of Health and Human Sorvicos
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATiON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLGWER PROTECTIONS

The Conlracior idenUfied in Section l .3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identiriad in Sections t.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Conlracior will comply, and will require any subgraniecs or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscriminalion requirements, which may include:

- Ihe Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benerils. on the basis of race, color, religion, naiional origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employmeni Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvertile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)). which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obygations.of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute ere prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

• the Civil Rights Ad of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibils recipients of federal financial
assistance from dtscriminating on the basis of race, color, or national-origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sedion 794). which prohibifs-recipienis of Federal financial •
assistance from discriminatirig on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or adrvity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government sen/ices, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sedions 1681.1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

. the Age Oiicrimlnafon Ad of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Seclions 6106-07). which prohibils discrimination on the
basis of ago in programs or actMiies receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not indude
employment discrimination;

• 2a C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondbcrimlnation; Equal Employmeni Opportunity; Policies
and.Procedures); Ertcutive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S". Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): and Whtsllebiov/er protedions 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Ad (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilol Prograrri for
Enhancement of Contrad Employee Whislieblower Protections, which proteds employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing adivilies in conneclioo with federal grants and contrads.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fad upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certificalion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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Now Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services
Exhibit G

in ihe event a Federal or Slate court or Federal or Slate admintsirative. agency makes a finding of
dischminalion after a due process hearing on ihe grounds of race, coior. religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Ctvii Rights, to
the appficable contraclirtg agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services DfTice of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representalrve as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing end Submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with ihe provisions
indicated above.

Date

or Name:on

Name;]Jeffrey Thielman
resident & CEO
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CeRTIFICATlON REGARDINQ ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103*227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also Known as (he Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facHHy ovmed or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
direclly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
taw does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up lo
91000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Conlractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisior^. to execute (he following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contracl. the Conlractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicdbie provisions ol Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Acl of 1994.

2 16
Date

ctor Namo'

.Name;]Jeffroy Thielman
'resident & CEO
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New HampsKire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractof Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Porlabifity and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health informatior^ under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section 164.402 of Title 45. ■
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aooreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Heatth Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Techrtology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitfeXlll. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 150, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). ■

j. 'Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Paris 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information* shall have the same meaning as the term *protecled health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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I. 'Reouifed bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term "requited by law" in A5 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary'shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Heallh and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
l-iealth Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto:

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected heallh information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected heallh information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by

' a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Paris 160. 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HIT6CH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
ExN'bit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held conndentially and

' used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

JT
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediaiety
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perfoim a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but.not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected hearth information involved, Including the
types of identiriers and the likelihood of re-identification:

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

' 0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete (he risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment ih writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate oh behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI'
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) o1 this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within tisn (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526;

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a writter> request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Indrviduafs request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by Ihe Busir^ess Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If reium or
destruction is no! feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make ihe return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Qbtlaatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limiiation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
1^.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 Of 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In-addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately.
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and ReQUlatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to tirT^e. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ^
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SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit 1 or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit 1 regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnlficalion provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard'terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the lerminatior* of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

OepartfTteni ol Health and Humag Services tmcmational Instate of New England. Inc
The Stibte e Con ractorNam

d
of Authorized Representative

)effrcy Thiclman

Siveignature of Authorized Represe

Tr'IKt t' Tell
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

President and CEO

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

^^tle of Autho
Q

o

Date

ozed Representative
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CeRTIRCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABtUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IPPATA^ COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25.0X but subsequent grant modincalions result in a tolai award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance vnlh 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subawerd and Executive Compensation Informalion). the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subBward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS U)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal goverrvnenl. and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reportir>g to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Trarisparcncy Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
(0 have the Contractor'a representative, as identifted in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined at>ove to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to compfy with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial AccountabiTily and Transparency Act.

Dale Name! Jeffrey Thielman
TilfSJ^residenl & CEO

Name:tor
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FORM A

As (he Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify thai the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The OUNS number for your entity is: 9484S997

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 perceru or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontrocts.
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal controcts. subcontrocts. loans, grants. sut>grants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

It the answer to U2 at>ove is NO, stop here

If the ansyyer to U2 above is YES. please answer the foDowing;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensalion of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.70m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO, please answer the follcwing:

4. The names and compensation of the Hve most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as tollows;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:
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nHHR INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Confidential Information; In addition to Paragraph <!f9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
SOW. the Department's Conndential information includes any and ail information owned or managed by the
Stale of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the.course of performing contracted services • of which cottection. disclosure, protectioh. and
disposition is governed by stete or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limiied to
Personal Health Information (PHI), Personalty Identifiable Information (Pit). Federal Tax Information (FTI).
Social Security Numbers (SSN). Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential
information.

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential information collected,
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectations include:

2.1. Contractor shall not store or transfer dale collected in connection with the services rendered
under-thls Agreement outside of the United Slates. This includes backup data and Obasler
Recovery locations.

2.2. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the
Information tifecycle. where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use. storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media us^ to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.3. Maintain,appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that coDecl. transmit.or
store Department confidential mformation whereappiiceble.

2.4. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops. USB
drives, as v^ll as when transmitted over public networks tike the Internet using current industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.5. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities ere in place to detect potential security events that can
impact Stale of NH systems andyor Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.6. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in
support of protecting Department confidential information

2.7. Maintain a documented breach notification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Oepenment's conlroci monoger. and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential Information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach vrhlch affects or includes any Slate of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.7.1 .'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the tenm 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45. Code of
Federal Regulations. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer
Security Incident* in section two (2) of NIST PublicaliOf\ 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handfing Guide. Nafional Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Dcpartmenl of Commerce.

Breach notifications will be sent to the fotiowing email addresses:

2.7.1.1. DHHSChieflnformationOfficerfadhhs.nh.Qov

2.7.1.2. QHHSInformatlQnSccuritvOfficefadhhs.nh.aov

2.0. If the vendor will maintain any Confidential information on its systems (or its sub-contractor systems),
the vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or
contract termination; and will obtain written certificellori for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed
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by the vendor or any subcontractors as a part o( ongoing, emergency, and or .disaster recovery
operations. When no lor^ger In use. electronic media containing Stale of New Hampshire date shall be
rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for
secure deletion, or otherwise physicalty destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor
will document and certify in writing el lime of the data destruction, end will provide written certification
to the Department upon request. The written cenificdiion will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and '
professional standards for retention requrromenls will be jointly evaluated by the Stale and the ver>dor
prior to destruction.

2,9. If the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
Stale of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an internal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor will wofX wilh the Department to sign and comply wHh all applicable State of New Hampshiroand
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department 8ysiem(s). Agreements will
be completed end signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determlnos'the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103. the vcndorwill
worh with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maimaining compfiance wiih the agreement.

5. • The vendor will work with the Department at Ks request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any chaf>ges in risks, threats, and vuJnerabilities that may
occur over the fife of the vendor engagement. The survey wilt be completed annually, or an alternate time
frame el the, Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be compteled when the scope of the engagement between the Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the. United Stales unless prior express written consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within iheDepartmenl.

6. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make efforts to investigate
the causes of the breach, promptty take measures to prevent future breach and minimize any damage or
loss resulting from the breach. The Slate shell recover from the Contractor all costs of response and
recovery from the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitorir>g services, mailing costs and costs
assodaied with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the breech. .
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